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Company Structure
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,
Financial Results

On behalf of PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (“PetroAsian Energy”
or the “Company”), | hereby present to the shareholders the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2012 (“the year”). For the year under
review, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$339,967,000 (2011: HK$282,398,000), representing an increase
of 20.39% as compared with the previous year, while loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$176,864,000
(2011: HK$305,507,000).

Corporate Development Review

During the past year, the global operating environment deteriorated
rapidly. The European debt crisis harassed the financial market and had
greatly bombarded investors’ confidence. Market funding was tight
and the momentum of economic recovery driven by the two rounds
of quantitative easing monetary policy was eradicated. The Hong
Kong Heng Sang Index was even down to 16,000 points in mid-2011,
the lowest since the financial tsunami in 2008. Under such economic
sentiments, the Group adopted active but prudent operation policies to
continue the control over its cost and expenditure. At the same time,
each of the new development projects under negotiation was expected
to contribute positive impact on the financial statements of the Group.

However, the business negotiation was tough and complicated.
The time span was long and hard to control. Besides taking into
consideration the interests of the two parties, it should also take care
of the interests of minority shareholders of not being diluted as a
result of various acquisitions and development of new businesses. For
different reasons, the intended acquisitions of the Group in the past
year were unable to reach any agreement after due diligence.

For our core businesses, the Group had basically siphoned off most
of the non-core businesses after years of business reorganisation.
The Group endeavoured itself to focus on the international energy
exploration and exploitation businesses. Of which, the development
of domestic oilfield exploitation project in Qigihar had achieved
encouraging progress. The Group had successfully drilled the horizontal
wells at the 710 and 718 oil districts in Fulaerji by introducing the
logging while drilling (“LWD") technology developed in the United
States of America, for which the Group's local oilfields had increased
the production volume successfully. Although the horizontal wells
have led to the further increase in its production costs and posed a
certain level of difficulty in drilling, however, on the other hand, it also
demonstrated the promising prospect of the oilfield.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Future Development

Subsequent to the reporting year, the Group appointed Mr. Wang
Bo as the Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Wang has over 10 years of experience in the business development of
international crude oil and natural gas. Mr. Wang had participated in
various international mining and energy projects, including oilfields,
natural gas and gold mining, mergers and acquisitions in Kazakhstan,
Turkmenistan and the United States of America. Furthermore, Mr.
Wang also has extensive experience and extended personal network
in the exploration and exploitation works of domestic oilfields. We
believe, the newly appointed management, will have flourishing
prospects in the future.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the members of the Board, the management and
all our dedicated staff for their invaluable services during the previous
year. | would also like to thank our shareholders and business partners
who have been supportive over the years.

By order of the Board

Poon Sum
Honorary Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W& D

Market Review

During the year under review, the global economy had experienced
fierce challenges and uncertainties again with different reasons mainly
economic turmoil and political instabilities. Although the overall global
economy continued the recovery that began in last fiscal year after the
financial tsunami, the pace of recovery has slowed down.

European debt crisis was still the major concern in the global economy
during the year under review. Greece, Ireland and Portugal needed to
accept bailouts from European Financial Stability Facility in order to
support their financial systems and avoid any default in repayments
of sovereign debts. Meanwhile, many eurozone countries were
implementing necessary debt-reduction programs such as cutting
governments’ spending and raising taxes. As a result of this, eight
eurozone countries such as Greece and Spain had suffered the
economies shrink or recession during the year under review. Sovereign
ratings of some eurozone countries such as Italy, Spain and Belgium
were also downgraded by credit rating agents. The unemployment rate
in the eurozone had reached the record high of 10.9% in March 2012
since 1999. In addition, the possible exit of Greece from the eurozone
continues the uncertainties in eurozone economic recovery. Many
eurozone governments are now re-considering the need of the long-
term growth stimulating programs instead of the austerity programs
only.

In emerging markets, many countries were facing different extents of
inflationary pressures as a result of the fast growth and overwhelming
lending environment during the first half of the fiscal year. In order
to deal with the inflationary pressure, many countries chose to have
stricter lending policies and tighter monetary policies. For example, in
China, the government increased the required reserve ratio up to a
record high of 21.5% in June 2011. However, due to the slowdown
of the growth of economy, in December 2011, China government
lowered the required reserve ratio for the first time since January 2010.
The developing countries now are also facing the probable slowdown
of their economic growth in the coming year.
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For the same period, there were also some significant political changes
that would have impact on the global economy and commodity prices.
The Jasmine Revolution broken out in Tunisia during late 2010 was
the lead of Arab Spring in 2011. Following the revolution in Tunisia,
some Arabic countries such as Egypt, Libya and Syria also broke out
revolutions or protests during 2011. The revolutions in Egypt and Libya
resulted in a change of regime. The long term impact of such changes
in regimes on the global economy remains uncertain at the moment
since those Arabic countries play important different roles in the
global energy market. The exit of Greece from eurozone will depend
on results of second round election in June 2012 that may result in
immediate political and financial impacts on the eurozone and the
global economy.

As a result of the volatile global economic situation, all commodity
prices also fluctuated in different extents. Beginning from the
last fiscal year international crude oil price fluctuated up or down
depending on the changes of the situation in eurozone debt crisis
and the global political and economic environment. Brent crude oil
price dropped below US$100 per barrel in October 2011 and WTI
crude oil also dropped below US$80 per barrel at the same time. After
that, international oil prices raised again because of a combination
of various factors such as the temporary ease of eurozone debt crisis
and slow improvement in some leading economic indicators especially
those in the United States. Brent crude oil price and WTI crude oil
price even reached over US$120 and closed to US$110 per barrel
respectively after the escalation of the Iran’s nuclear issue and the
oil trade sanctions against Iran in February 2012. However, although
the Iran’s issue remained unsolved, recent international crude oil and
other commodity prices declined again because of the expectation of
weaker global economic growth and recovery and thus less industrial
activities and decreasing demand of commodities are foreseen. For
example, recent rising crude oil inventories in the United States
intensified the worry on the pace of economic growth and recovery.
The China Government has revised downward the forecasted 2012
GDP growth from 8% to 7.5%. According to the report published by
CNPC Economics & Technology Research Institute in February 2012,
the oil consumption in China during 2011 was still increasing but at a
slower pace compared to previous years. The report also indicated that
the global economic growth might slow down further in 2012 and the
international oil price might be at a lower level than in 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W& D

Business Review
Overview

During the year under review, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$339,967,000 (2011: HK$282,398,000),
representing an increase of 20.39%. Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$176,864,000 (2011:
HK$305,507,000). The loss was attributable to a number of factors as
follows: (1) recognition of impairment loss on assets including trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and available-for-sale
investments, (2) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
(3) changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments and held-
for-trading investments, (4) recognition of fair value of share-based
payments to eligible Directors and employees of the Group, (5)
property, plant and equipment written off, (6) other gains/losses other
than (1) to (3) above and (7) depreciation, depletion and amortisation.

Excluding the non-cash fair value items in (1) to (6) above totalling
approximately HK$89,349,000 (2011: HK$172,571,000), the Group's
loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 would be approximately
HK$87,515,000 (2011: HK$138,200,000). The above non-cash fair
value items include a recognition of impairment loss on obsolete
assets of paint manufacturing operation totalling approximately
HK$34,507,000.

Tunisia operations

As the Ksar Hadada Permit (“Permit”) entered its 2nd phase of
renewal, a total of 3,360 km? of the original Permit area was
relinquished back to Enterprise Tunisienne D'Activités Pétrolieres
("ETAP”, namely the “Tunisia National Oil Company”) and Le Directeur
General de L'Energie (“DGE"”, namely the “Tunisian Department of
Energy”) as per contractual requirement. The current remaining area in
the Permit is 2,252 km? with 5 identified prospects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Waste management and well site remediation of the Oryx-1 and Sidi
Toui-4 well locations has been successfully finalised by a third party
contractor (namely International Drilling Services), which involved
the disposal of drilling fluid, mud pit back-fill and grounds clean
up. A report highlighting the completion of the waste management
operation has been submitted to the L'Agence Nationale de Protection
de I'Environnement (“ANPE”, namely the Tunisian Agency for the
Protection of the Environment) and DGE.

After the Environmental Assessment Survey study for the 2D seismic
exercise was completed, the Group’s operations engineers have
conducted a seismic scouting and study survey inside and outside of
the Sidi Toui National Park for the feasibility of the upcoming seismic
acquisition in later 2012. An office has been set up in Tunis for the
Group in preparation for taking the role of operator in the Permit and
the forthcoming 100 km of 2D seismic acquisition of 2012 before
drilling thereafter. A successful inventory accountability of the drilling
pipe and miscellaneous equipment in storage in Sfax, Tunisia was
completed by operation department during the months of November
2011 and March 2012.

A subsequent Joint Operating Committee Meeting was held on
10 November 2011 in Tunis to present to ETAP the revised seismic
programme and guidelines for invitation to tender for relevant
companies. Additionally, the Joint Venture Partners hired AFINCO,
a Tunisian chartered accountant company, to begin auditing and
bookkeeping for the current year.

Moreover, the Joint Venture Partners have begun coordinating efforts
for the farm-out strategy to invite potential companies to join. As
a result of said efforts, the technical data room in Rome has been
opened since April 2012. The Tunisia operations team and Independent
Resources (Ksar Hadada) Limited's staffs have hosted various technical
presentations for key potential companies. PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
is currently in preliminary talks with several potential interested
companies whom will contribute both financial and human resources
to the success of the Permit.
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited # 25aERIERZ A IR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEET WM DT
Qiqgihar operations

The Group has a 95% interest, held through an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary Northeast Oil (China) Development Company Limited, of
Fulaerjiqu oilfield project located in Qigihar of Heilongjiang Province,
China.

Following the success of the 2010 drilling programme, the Group
drilled and completed two more horizontal wells (TH4 and TH5) in Fu
718 area in September 2011. TH4, with a total measured depth of 935
meters, encountered 98.31 meters of horizontal net oil pay, with an
average thickness of 5.96 meters. TH5, with a total measured depth
of 900 meters, encountered 121 meters of horizontal pay, with an
average thickness of 6.67 meters. The Group’s in-house technical team
designed these wells while PetroChina Great Wall Drilling Downhole
Operating Company, a subsidiary of China National Petroleum
Company, was the contractor to carry out the actual drilling operation.
These wells were drilled with state-of-the-art US patented Logging
While Drilling (LWD) technology and were completed with down-hole
laser cut slit production liners for maximum oil outflow.

There are now nine horizontal wells (four in Fu 710 area and five in Fu
718 area) in the Fulaerjiqu oilfield. All are performing well after a few
rounds of steam injections (“huff and puff”), resulting in much higher
total oil production than that of last year. Average daily production
for the year under review was more than three times the same
period of last year. In other words, these horizontal wells are now the
major contributor of our current oil revenue. At the same time, since
November 2011, natural gas was adopted as fuel for steam generation
instead of using fuel oil, thus reducing steaming costs by more than
one third, improving operation efficiency and profitability. The theme
for the financial year remains to be maximising production while
minimising operating costs.

On the technical front, the Qigihar operations’ technical team, under
the direction of Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of the
Group, has conducted a down-hole fluid level study starting early 2012
to monitor the reservoir fluid flow behavior in response to steam huff
and puff. With the use of an in-house developed 3D-computer models,
production and maintenance programs were fine-tuned to enhance
production. Remedial measures were also taken regularly on the
horizontal wells to control sand influx that affects well productivity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A comprehensive geological study on the project area will also be
carried out this year, which will help determine the course of further
development of the oilfield. The management is planning to step out
and delineate the area by drilling control wells at a later time.

In Fu710 area, a new waste water treatment plant was constructed and
put into use to accommodate the additional waste water as a result
of increased production. The management is also planning to build
additional oil storage tanks to handle this increase in production.

There were other ongoing improvements in the business and
operational management of the oilfield. The Group now has appointed
a seasoned senior member, Mr. Liu Wei, in charge of coordinating and
liaising with various governmental authorities and departments at the
local level in order to ensure that the Group is complying at all times
with rules, regulations and other government directives.

Commodity trading

During the year under review, the Group has expanded and diversified
the commodity business to include oil products trading in addition to
the ongoing coal trading business.

On 8 March 2011, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement
to acquire an additional 30% interests in SEITRME ZER QT
("SMEH"), BFEZ S becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group and the Group is fully responsible for the operations of the coal
business.

The Group was focusing to stabilise the volume of coal transactions,
resolve financing issues and reduce operating costs. The coal operation
teams are based in a number of strategic locations in China including
Xingyi of Guizhou Province, Baotou and Gants Mod of Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Province. As at the date of 31 March 2012, a total of
65,264 tons of steam coal has been transacted within China and
contributed approximately HK$51,774,000 of gross revenue (2011:
approximately HK$3,196,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR ERE) &R

Since the steam coal prices fluctuated after the end of financial year,
with downside risks, there is a slowdown in coal demand and an
oversupply situation, the Group had decided to slow down our coal
business development, both within China and international. The
management had scaled down the coal operation, reduced manpower
to reduce operating costs, and also to sell existing stock and recover
debts and dues. The management will keep a close watch over coal
prices and market situation before further commitments are made. In
Mongolia and Indonesia, the similar approach is also adopted.

On 29 February 2012, the Group acquired the entire interest of
Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical Limited (“Galali”) at a
cash consideration of RMB28,000,000 (equivalent to HK$34,496,000).
Galali is engaged in the trading of oil products in China. The
management of the business has extensive knowledge in oil products
trading industry and has strong business relationship with a number of
leading petroleum and oil companies in China. The Group will inject
sufficient resources in this segment and believes that this new trading
business will maximise the return of shareholders and balance the
business portfolio with positive cashflow contributing to the Group.

Other businesses

As at 31 March 2012, the Group is interested in a total of 355,571,722
shares in Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited (“Mobile
Telecom”, Stock Code: 8266), representing approximately 30.18% of
its entire issued share capital. In order to diversify its business under
the increasingly competitive environment in development, provision
and sale of mobile internet communication, telecommunications
and related services, and to maximise the return of the shareholders,
the board of directors of Mobile Telecom has identified further
investment opportunities during the reporting year. On 3 June 2011,
Mobile Telecom successfully completed its acquisition of two property
development projects in Yangjiang, Guangdong Province, China.
On 28 September 2011, Mobile Telecom, through one of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, entered into an agreement to acquire 33.3% of a
company engaged in technology development, design, manufacturing
and selling of liquid crystal display modules. On 22 February 2012 and
15 March 2012, Mobile Telecom, through one of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, entered into an agreement and supplemental agreement
respectively to acquire 75% of a company engaged in trading of
electronic parts, including liquid crystal display and touch-screen
pannels.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has an effective 34.4% interest in a vanadium mineral
project in the Xiaowujiang vanadium mining region, Yuging County,
Guizhou Province, China. Management of this business is being
undertaken by the major shareholder of the project company. The
project is in the final stage of exploitation licence application. In
recent years, both the central and local governments of China exercise
stringent control over the mining industry including in particular
the granting of new mining permits. This stringent attitude is good
for upgrading the quality standard of the entire mining industry
throughout the country. Management of the project is now under
the direct guidance of the local governmental authorities to take
positive measures in order to secure the relevant permits. Approval
has now been granted by the Department of Land and Resources of
the Guizhou Province of China and this approval, which is granted at
the provincial level, has been notified to the Department of Land and
Resources of the Zunyi City of Guizhou for further processing.

The construction paints business, which is based in Beijing, recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$23,328,000 (2011: HK$23,049,000),
representing an increase of 1.21%. Recent internal market analysis
indicated that construction paints market will be more competitive and
in considering protection of profit margins, the strategy is to shift to
industrial paint, with a couple of contracts being finalised, positioned
for growth in subsequent years.

On 27 March 2012, the Group has entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with Kazakhstan Global
Songkaer Petroleum Co., Ltd. (the “Target”) in Aktobe, Kazakhstan
in relation to the possible investment by the Group into the Target
such that immediately thereafter the Group will be interested in 65%
of the entired enlarged share capital of the Target as contemplated
under the MOU to evaluate and carry out due diligence activities on
business opportunities in Aktobe province, Kazakhstan. The business
opportunities include the exploitation of crude oil and natural gas,
production of crude oil products, exploration drilling, exploitation of
crude oil and gas field and oilfield construction and installation works
in Kazakhstan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE W& DT
Important events after the year end date

(@  On 25 April 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of a
building for a consideration of HK$7,200,000.

(b) On 24 May 2012, the Company granted 200,000,000 share
options to the Honorary Chairman of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.198 per share.

(€0 On 6 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its
entire 100% equity interests in Huge Power Group Limited for a
consideration of HK$13,800,000.

Business Outlook

Although the economy is still facing the challenges from the European
debt crisis, as a result of the slower growth forecast in coming year,
many governments are considering the need of some long-term
stimulating programs. The voice for the easing programs rather than
the solely austerity measures is getting louder in many countries. For
example, one of the major reasons that led to the election of Greece
government was the debate on the austerity plan inside the nation.
The China government also began some easing policies such as further
lowering the required reserve ratio and approved an around RMB36
billion financial subsidy plan to boost the domestic demand in May
2012. As a result of these programs, the management believes that
the global economy would improve slowly again later in coming years
although it may be still very fragile. According to the recent forecast by
the Organisation of the Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC") and
the International Monetary Fund, the world economic growth for 2012
is still expected to increase by over 3%. In short term, the oil price may
still be under pressure because of the uncertainties in the eurozone
issue, recent unfavorable economic and employment data from the
U.S. and the maintenance of oil supply level from OPEC. However, in
long run, it is believed that the oil price would rise again as demand
for oil would rise in the continuing growth in developing countries,
mainly China and India and the decreasing nature of the world fossil oil
reserve. The Group maintains the view that the long-term prospect of
the oil and energy industry is still very optimistic in long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currently, the main income growth area of the Group in the near term
is the continue development in the Qigihar oilfields with additional
horizontal wells, once a field development plan is completed in June.
Meanwhile, the Group is actively seeking and evaluating new business
opportunities, particularly upstream oil and gas businesses within
China (Jilin and Inner Mongolia provinces) and internationally mainly
on Canadian and USA assets. Subject to ongoing due diligence,
the proposed investment in Kazakhstan Global Songkaer Petroleum
Company Limited would provide an opportunity to enhance our
income generating and growth capacity and a further step for the
Group growing in a global scene in the short term.

Going forward, the Group will continue to look cautiously and
strategically for energy related opportunities worldwide in order to
further diversify our portfolios and strengthen our future prospects.
Moreover, the management will also further optimise our current
operations and believe that the Group is heading in the right direction
to become a reputable international energy-related company. With
the current expertise and experienced management team and the
impressive operational history of the Group, the management is
confident to have a sustainable long-term growth of the Group in
future.

Financial Review
Revenue and operating results

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$339,967,000 (2011: approximately
HK$282,398,000), representing an increase of 20.39% from preceding
year. The Group recorded a loss for the year of approximately
HK$176,864,000 (2011: approximately HK$310,771,000) and loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$176,864,000 (2011: approximately HK$305,507,000), representing
a decrease of 43.09% and 42.11% from preceding year respectively.

Turnover increased by 20.39% from HK$282,398,000 for 2011 to
HK$339,967,000 for 2012. This was primarily due to increase in
revenue of major products including crude oil, chemical products and
commodity trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W& D

The loss for the year of the Group decrease by 43.09% from
approximately HK$310,771,000 for 2011 to HK$176,864,000 for
2012. This was mainly attributable to the improvement of crude
oil business, write-off of two exploratory wells in Tunisia under the
jointly controlled operation in prior year and decrease in share-based
payments expenses recognised in current year.

Working capital

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s current assets were kept
at approximately HK$292,132,000 (2011: approximately
HK$415,157,000) whilst current liabilities were approximately
HK$186,248,000 (2011: approximately HK$131,083,000). The current
ratio, being the proportion of total current assets against current
liabilities, was 1.57 (2011: 3.17). The Directors consider that the
present working capital level is conservatively sufficient to meet the
upcoming operating needs.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong
and in China.

The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$77,505,000 at 31 March 2012 (2011: approximately
HK$165,566,000). The Group’s bank balances and cash were mostly
held in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2012, the Group's total outstanding bank borrowings
were approximately HK$53,826,000 (2011: approximately
HK$68,754,000) and total assets were approximately HK$888,124,000
(2011: approximately HK$1,020,766,000).

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowing by the
total assets, was equal to 6.06% on the reporting date (2011: 6.74%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2012, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group's bank borrowings:

(i) trade receivables to the extend of carrying amount of
HK$29,596,000 (2011: HK$33,705,000) as first legal charges;

(i) 51.00% equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Northeast
Qil (China) Development Company Limited, as a register of all
monies first share charge; and

(iii)  an investment property with a carrying value of HK$25,401,000
(2011: Nil).

Information on Crude Oil Reserve as of 31 March
2012

In preceding year of 2011, the management has appointed APEX
Reservoir Services Inc. (“APEX") as independent professional technical
valuer (the “Technical Valuer”) to evaluate the estimated oil reserve
and impairment value of Qigihar oilfield as of 31 March 2011.

In view of the relatively minor changes during the financial year
under review, the management has decided to perform an internal
tentative assessment of the reserve situation as of 31 March 2012 (the
"Revisions”) for disclosure purpose, by using the same assessment
basis of APEX carried out in 2011.

BEE W& D

BEEHEA

RZB-—F=A=+—0 AEESEMRUT
BENRBAREERZRITEE:

() BRE{EEB 29,596,000t (- & ——
F 1 75133,705,0007T) 2 B 5 W IEE
EAE MR

iy ME2EMBRARRIEAH(PE)EREA
PRAFZ51.00% A ERE—HELZ
ERRELEREML &

(i) BEE{EAE®25,401,000C (=8 ——
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R-ZB-ZF=ZA=+—HWE
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REB——F2 bFE ERED R EMIRATH
sl (L) AR AR ([FRET] ) BB HEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W& D

The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
“PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum assets (the “Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Qilfield, including block Fu 710, Fu
718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted the
calculated reserve. According to the PRMS definition, the oil reserve
should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1"); Probable reserve (“P2")
and Possible reserve (“P3") and the total 1P, 2P (“sum of P1 and P2")
and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar oilfields as of 31
March 2011, are approximately 424,000 tons, 1,369,000 tons and
2,810,000 tons respectively.

B R BT R E T DARBER R A E
IR RIS AM A REIEHIE ([PRMS | ) 1T e
FHERAR AR ENBEBHEEN G H
BE([EE])  BEE710 - T718 M IGEHT723
B -AEEEEBEEMNMTENHE -RE
PRMSEX ' FUREEN B AZERE ([P1])
MERE ([P2])) RATRE ([P3)) MEER
BHAR —_ZE——F=A=+—H81P 2P ([P1
P22 A) X3P ([P1 P2RP3Z M) H##HE
2 Bl #1 5424,0000 - 1,369,000M 22,810,000
g o

Proved Probable Possible Total
reserve reserve reserve  oil reserve
REMHE HE#E WHERFE BAARE
('000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons)  ("000 tons)

(TH) (FHE) (FH) ()

Crude oil reserve JRoh A2

As at 1 April 2010 RZE—-ZTFMA—H 196 1,795 1,572 3,563
Adjustment to previous estimation HEAREEHEMHRIE 230 (850) (131) (751)
Production of the year AEEES ) - - )
As at 31 March 2011 and RZE——%=A=1+—-HEK

1 April 2011 —E——%HmA—H 424 945 1,441 2,810
Technical adjustment AR E 80 (80) - -
Production of the year rFEEES 9 - - (9)

As at 31 March 2012 R=-ZZB—-=—H=ZA=+-H

The findings of the Revisions at 31 March 2012 are:

1. The drilling of two horizontal wells completed in September
2011, resulted in an increase of P1 proved reserve and an equal
reduction of P2 probable reserve of approximately 80,000 tons.

2. Production for the financial year under review, being
approximately 9,000 tons.

The management is pleased to report that the total 1P, total 2P (“sum
of P1 and P2") and total 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of
Qigihar oilfields, at 31 March 2012, are approximately 495,000 tons,
1,360,000 tons and 2,801,000 tons respectively.
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495 865 1,441 2,801

RZE——F=A=+—HNEIERA:

1. BERZZ——FNAEKMAKFEHFE
B SPIBEREENMPBEH#ESS
AL #980,000M8 -

2. FEEFRFESEEL 9,000 -

EREMARE EERBBHMIPARKE 2P
s ([P1RP22H]) R3rPsafEeE ([P1 P21
PIZA]) RZFE—=—F=A=+—H 95k
49495,000MF + 1,360,000 X22,801,0000



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reserve evaluation criteria

Due to limited production history of the Fulaerji, Qigihar, Heilongjiang
Province, the PRC Qilfield, APEX has used volumetric estimate method
to calculate hydrocarbon in place and then recovery efficiency using
analog data from typical viscous oil field recovery using the huff
and puff recovery method. APEX has used the deterministic method
(as opposed to the Probabilistic method) to calculate the reserves
estimates.

Reserve categories

Proved Reserve (“P1") — are those quantities of petroleum, which by
analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with
reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverable, from a given
date forward, from known reservoirs and under defined economic
conditions, operating methods, and government regulations. The term
reasonable certainty is intended to express a high degree of confidence
that the quantities will be recovered. In this P1 calculation, APEX has
used a drainage area of 200m surrounding the development well paths
as “proved” area technically judged as continuous with drilled proved
area and commercially productive. The recovery efficiency applied to
proved reserves is defined with a high degree of certainty supported
by analog from fields with similar reservoir and fluid properties, and
recovery mechanism. In this evaluation, recovery efficiency of 25% was
used for P1 calculation.

Probable Reserve (“P2") — are those additional reserves, which by
analysis of geosciences and engineering data indicated, are less likely
to be recovered than P1 but more certain to be recovered than Possible
Reserve. It is equally likely that actual remaining recoverable quantities
would be greater than or less than the sum of the estimated Proved
plus Probable Reserves (2P). APEX's probable evaluation includes
reservoir areas delineated by net oil sand thickness of more than 4m.
In this evaluation, recovery efficiency of 25% was assumed for P2
calculation.

BEE W& D
HEFER

F o 2B BT 4 2 2 A B R
st A IR - BOTR A7 2 SRR AR TR 3 31 0
T E AR - B AR AR S RS S
T3 FR R USR58 1 B SR 3R - TR AL 3R
FRE 7% GRS BLEA T &) 3 8 i 2t

o

feln

& B 5

EERE(P]) —REAWERTIREND
- BEA R ERHEE e RIS A8 - 35
ERBIRIT REDERBARET (AR
EBHETHERRZZSAMRHE AERE
—AREAAREE LI RKAHEE - N
PIETE b [ R 7 2 51 3 B3 3 #8138 A B 200
KRR TEE B 20T LA E AR EE
REBERERABRLIEEE REFEHER
PR R A R B AR 4 9 70 R E M T DA LB R U
B RO BB 1 A T SR M M 151 2 ek AR RO AR R B
DOAGERE « AT o - PIET E R A25% M R IR

BERE ([P2]) —ERBEHWERTIRENDN
BN ATREERPI REERAIERERD ZZ
ERIMEE - EEFISRRRE RN S/ AT RE
BN E A 8 (2P) 2 7N B AR R » 7 B I A7 O
BEF G SEFADEERORZEER &
AREHET - P2RHE Z SRR E R25% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W& D

Possible Reserve (“P3") —
analysis of geosciences and engineering data suggested, are less likely
to be recoverable than Probable Reserve. The total quantities ultimately
recovered from the project have a low probability to exceed the sum of
Proved plus Probable plus Possible Reserves (3P). In this P3 evaluation,
APEX has included areas of net oil sand thickness between 2m and
4m. In addition to the 25% recovery efficiency factor used, incremental
oil recoverable from an incremental oil recovery factor of 10%,

are those additional reserves, which by

arising from a notional development plan by steam flooding from
P1, P2 and P3 areas is included. This recovery mechanism is deemed
likely workable and economical (recompleting existing horizontal
wells parallel to each other) but substantial technical feasibility and
development planning work is required to firm up and hence included
only in P3 and not in other reserve categories.

The Revisions is based on the result of APEX's reserve report as of 31
March 2011, no formal update is attempted for reserve changes for
the reporting year, the management will have a formal assessment at
the end of next reporting year.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at end of
the reporting year.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk and Interest
Rate Risk

The Group's business transactions are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of interest bearing bank borrowings
of the Group are on floating rate basis. The management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises. The Group also uses
derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate exposures for
hedging purpose only.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had an aggregate of 188 (2011:
183) employees of which about 155 (2011: 158) were located
in mainland China while the rest were based in Hong Kong and
Macau. The employee’s remuneration package includes salary, bonus
and share options. Pursuant to the Group's remuneration policy,
employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and market conditions
and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective
jurisdiction where the employees located.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERRE

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the corporate
governance matters during the year covering the financial year ended
31 March 2012 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules™).

Adoption of Corporate Governance Practices

The Group has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
("Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which came
into effect on 1 January 2005. Pursuant to the amendments to
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules that came into effect on 1 April 2012,
the Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Codes (“New
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the corporate
governance codes of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the Code for the time being in force except for the
deviations as follows:

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Board of Directors

As at 31 March 2012, the Board comprised a total of six Directors, with
three Executive Directors (“EDs"”) and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs
have appropriate professional qualifications in accounting, or related
professional management expertise, which is required by the Listing
Rules. During the CG Period, 5 regular Board meetings were held.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the CG period, the composition of the Board, and the
respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows:

J/J:\\ lkk/l:l-’Fﬁm

REEERHRE EFNERLSUELESE
Hj%lﬁ/ﬂﬁﬂ? B

Director Board Capacity Attendance
B= Exgsn HE =
Mr. Poon Sum ED & Chairman 5/5
ERR A HITEEREE

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED 5/5
=HEREL MITES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 5/5
EER L WITESFRVBER

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 5/5
REB LA WY FRITES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 5/5
BRERIZ L4 BIMIFANTESE

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 5/5
BRIGIER S A BUEMITES

All the 5 regular Board meetings were held to discuss and/or approve
the financial performance/results of the Group, report, discuss and/
or resolve for the ordinary business, change of auditor and operation
matters, and the corporate development and decisions.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has
maintained any financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship with any of the other Directors.

In addition, Mr. Wang Bo was appointed by the Board as Executive
Director and Chairman of the Board on 9 May 2012. At the same
time, Mr. Poon Sum resigned as the Chairman of the Board and was
appointed as Honorary Chairman of the Company.

AARMBOTTHRAEREFEES DL/
FHAEREBMOP BRI EE RE TR
SRBERABES FRAREMREEEE R
NEVERIORE -
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EEBRIESS IR U EZERALNAZEE
e

27

>
=)
=)
c
@
Bl
)
o
e}
a
N
S
]
|1
L]

|

|
1

o
(0]
o
IS)
>
[
o
3
m
>
)
Q
<
T
o
=3
5
«Q
a
=
3
=
(0]
o
+

K

ieEE 2

2
ENA T2 RAEET



7 41

=
in
H:j,
Hﬁ,

= —
2=

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited  25aERIZERZ A IR
Annual Report 2011-12 =& ——

Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and has
adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the New Code which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee includes:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.

o to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group.

J to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors.

o to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

o to consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive about
remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for
other Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
have access to independent professional advice if necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

For the CG Period, the Remuneration Committee held 3 physical
meetings. The composition of the Remuneration Committee and the
respective attendances of the committee members are presented as
follows:

TRERHRE

RERERHR FNZEEERLERITT =R
R -FHEZEENEARKLZEERERBHE
BT

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
ME ZEg5% HE=R
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul Chairman of the committee 3/3
PR &R 12 5 A& E R

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 3/3
REE LA BYUFNITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 3/3
PR A8t B2 5 A B IFERITES

Mr. Poon Sum ED 3/3
BRI WMITES

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chan Kam Ching,
Paul.

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
for the CG Period included:

o review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system;
o consider and approve the grant of share options to Directors and
senior management;

o recommend to the Board the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31
March 2012; and
o consider and approve the remuneration of the Directors and

senior management.

Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
for the CG Period is set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during the CG
Period are inscribed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Equity
or Debt Securities” of the Directors’ Report.
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TEERHRE

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific equity of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the CG Period.

Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011 and
has adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the New Code which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination Committee
was appointed by the Board and consists of three non-executive
directors and one executive director of the Company. The meetings and
proceedings are governed by the provisions contained in the articles of
association of the Company for regulating meetings and proceedings
of the Directors. The role and function of the Nomination Committee
includes:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

o to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive.

For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held 1 physical

meeting for the purpose of reviewing the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee and the respective 1REZZEEWNEKIZEEKREZBHERNR §§

attendances of the committee members are presented as follows: e %g
LE

Member Committee Capacity Attendance %%

24= ZE85% HER ﬁgi

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 171 H‘N g

RS 3=k I

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 111 55

iR BUERITES B

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 11 S

FoR faf B2 5 A BYUFNITES o

Mr. Poon Sum ED 7

ERSE HITESE

The chairman of the Nomination Committee since its establishment has BREZZEER VAR REZECFF—EA

been Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung. REIBEA

Audit Committee EREES

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference EZZE 2 REF TR (A RNBEZFRAR
in accordance with the provisions set out in the New Code which are  GIAJEER]) FTE M KX R MIE TN S EBESR
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The CEREZEENIERELSE:

principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

. to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the e Igﬁﬁﬁﬂl\ EZEMNET EMET

Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the BrRmESgIRH 5% BB SNIEZ B
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms Eﬂiﬁ’]%’r%l&% 1RFR - BRI (R B 5%
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its 1% S5 A B G ok B R a4 A %i‘IEﬂiE’\JFcﬁ% ;

resignation or dismissal;

. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence RE R RRERN RERINEZEER S

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in BURBBIZEETRERAN -ZEGRE
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should 28R T 1E R 1A Bl 5t B AR BRED AT s Az Bt
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and BEREEIEEARREE WBEBRB K
reporting obligations before the audit commences and ensure R BN 7 P2 B T4 - Bl e TR B AR 1%
co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved; Bk
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#&E:

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Committee should report
to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s annual report and
financial statements, interim report and management reports and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them. In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board,
the Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from annual audit;
(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and
(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet with the Company’s auditor; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and management accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company'’s staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

BLONIE A% BB AR M IR AR BRAR S B B
WP RAT-BRUREM T - [IMNS R
Eh) BEEA FERHARFERE—E
B RREERZ THEMEE X
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to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the annual
audit, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss (in the
absence of management where necessary);

to review any material queries raised by the external auditor to
management about accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of controls and management’s response;

to review the Company's statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised by the external auditor;

to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor.

J/J:\‘ ,H‘-/I:l#ﬁm
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For the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held 4 regular meetings
for discussing and/or approving the periodic financial results of
the Group, discussing the auditor's performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget.

RERERHR BEXZEERTTHAERE
AW E AR EEAE WHMNM G E
B A mRBENRE R AEEANRERERR
MR AR REGR R ERBAE D N E
R BTERREREDRH UARETHER
MWIZIIRENBERBEXEERE

The composition of the Audit Committee and the respective HRZEEWAKNKZESEKESEHERER
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows: UNNE

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
4= EZEg5H HE=
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 4/4
PR 5l BR S A ZEEXR

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 4/4
REB LA BUERITES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 4/4
BR 8572 55 A4 BUEMITES

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment has been
Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The analysis of the Auditor’s remuneration for the financial year under
review is presented as follows:

BEZZEGRIANR EREERLIF—ER
PR 16 ER S A -

R &=

REESBFE 2B MuT

Fee amount (HK$'000)

EH(B¥TR)
Audit service 12 ER 7% 2,618
Non-audit services IEZ BRTE 362

34



Corporate Governance Report

Internal Control
Review of Internal Control System

The Board holds the responsibility for maintaining effective systems
of internal control and for the assessment and management of risk.
Accordingly, a mechanism of inspection and supervision is established
to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets are
safeguarded. The Board has authorised the management team to
design, implement and maintain systems of internal control such as
clearly defined job responsibilities of senior management team and
systems relating to investment decision and budgeting.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s systems of internal
controls aim for managing potential risks instead of completely
eliminating all risks. Therefore, internal control can only provide
reasonable assurance for achieving the above objectives in compliance
with basic principles under its inherent limitations. Moreover, whether
internal control is effective or not may also vary with the changes in
the internal or external environment or the operating conditions of
the Group. Accordingly, systems of internal controls can only render
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance for the achievement of the
operating objectives.

With the establishment of an independent internal audit function
in recent years, the financial condition, operational control and
compliance control are examined and reviewed according to the risk-
based audit plan approved by Board. Different audit areas are assigned
according to risk priority. The Internal Audit Department monitors
compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of
the systems of internal controls. It plays an important role in the
Group’s internal governance by performing periodic checking. After
completion of an internal audit, analysis, appraisals, recommendations
related to the activities inspected are delivered to the respective risk
holders. The Internal Audit Department reports to the CEO, Audit
Committee and the Board about the internal audit findings, internal
audit recommendation and the management responses. The Internal
Audit Department will, from time to time, review and follow up the
implementation of internal audit findings and recommendations.

For the CG Period, the Board of Directors was not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the systems of internal controls of the
Group.
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TRERRE

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Functions

The Board of Directors, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the
review.

Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. In preparing the
financial statements for the financial year under review, the Directors
have:

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the independent auditor regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
detail in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 54 to 55.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Kwok Leung
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 June 2012
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The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Activities and Geographic Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the
year by business and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 56.

No interim dividend was paid or declared in respect of the year ended
31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 61 to 62 and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2012 amounted
to approximately HK$589,055,000, representing the amount standing
to the credit of the share premium amount after deduction of
accumulated losses. However, under section 34 of the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Report of the Directors
EEHE

EZENRZEFERGTERBE_T——F
“AZ T -RULEFENRERGSMEHRE-

FTEXEBREBHWEDN

ARAMEREBRREER - ME QR ER
BERN G E W ERERMETS - AEERARFEED
RI|ANT RREG L&D BACETT  WHR
ARA M TS IRRMAES o

AEBAFENER BNF6R KRS KE
%o

AARTEREE-"ZT——F=A=+—HIt
FERNKERPHRE(ZZ——FE) -

EEETESREBE_S——F=A=+—
BIEFEZRPBRE (ZB——F )

it

AFEEANREBRARRNFEESN D BIHL
FOIHEEEQRENGERZZEHRERARLES
B IS SRR T 5E35 o

M BB R R E

REBOYE BERIEEHFBEHANGEY
T 17 -

EEIN

RATKRASBFBEHNEGEE M BRRMT
340

AR Ik fE

AARR-_E——F=ZA=+—HHNAHEHDIK
{1 #) 5 78 #5589,055,0007T * Jh R 15 E R 2
HERTE (KRR EEEZ) - BERERSHS
NELE (BIER]) #3445 EA R RIMBHERAD
AMESCIRR T - B B 2R FRE - Sk
FERRBEEMTNEAREFEERIHNE
% BRITAIE AR BRI 5 E 5 IR F AR -

37

>
=)
=)
c
@
Bl
™
©
e}
a
N
2
]
|1
L]
|
|
1

o
(0]
o
IS)
>
[
o
3
m
>
o
Q
2
T
o
=
5
«Q
a
=
3
=
(0]
o
+
i
@
&
il
3
af
=
N
EN

FlESHL



=

4
=
i
H:j,
Hﬁ,
I
|
H‘H
|
fidy
I
s
5
o~
]
2
&
=
>
C
C
<

R

5

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 5 8ERA%

Report of the Directors
EEHE

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 179 to 180.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the securities of the Company during the year.

Share Options and Warrants
Warrants

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 June 2011, it was
approved to issue 200,000,000 non-listed warrants to Mr. Poon Sum,
the Honorary Chairman of the Company. Each warrant entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one new share at the subscription price
of HK$0.45 (subject to adjustment) at any time during a period of
thirty-six months commencing from the date of issue of the non-listed
warrants.

Share options

Share options are granted to Directors, executives and employees
under a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) approved
by shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting on 21 October
2002.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made by
participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its discretion,
offer employees, Executive and Non-executive Directors, officers,
advisers and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries, the grant
of options to subscribe for shares of the Company. Upon acceptance
of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant. The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The 10% limit was refreshed
by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 May 2012 which enabled the grant of
further options to subscribe up to 412,995,211 shares, representing
10% of the shares in issue as at the said date.
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As at the date of the annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the exercise of all options granted
under the Share Option Scheme was 267,900,000 shares (including
share options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
representing about 6.49% of the issued share capital of the Company,
of which 200,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Poon Sum, the
Executive Director of the Company was approved by shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2012. There is no
special condition or specific performance target to be fulfilled before
such share options can be exercised. Each share option is exercisable at
the subscription price of HK$0.198 at any time during the period from
1 July 2012 to 27 March 2015.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of such
period to be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the grantee. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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S Details of the share option outstanding at 31 March 2012 which have HRZZ——F=A=+—H REFEERLE
o been granted under the scheme are as follows: MARITEEREFBOT
2
‘f{ M‘H Number of Options Price of Company's shares
e BREEE FAARBER
* {LN Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
2 Date of price  Exercisable asat during during during asat For Option For Option
£~ Participants grant per share  Period 1 April 2011 the year the year the year 31 March 2012 granted exercised
B nog--% nog-c#
SR mA-A ZB=t-7
ot 28RE RiLEA BRTEE WAEA AR RERRE  RERTE RERZN AR CREIBRE EEERE
5e HK$ HKS HKS
2 E (NoteT) (Note 2)
cE % ok A%
2 < (Bi3E1) (Mf3£2)
¥
Executive Directors
#Es
Mr. Poon Sum 03/05/2010 1.250  03/05/2010 to £02/05/2011 50,000,000 - - (50,000,000) = - =
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 03/05/2010 1.250  03/05/2010 to £02/05/2011 8,000,000 - - (8,000,000) - - -
BRAI%E 28/03/2012 0.198  01/07/2012 to £27/03/2013 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 0.195 -
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 13/08/2004 0.251 (adjusted)  13/08/2004 to £12/08/2014 100,000 - - - 100,000 - -
EEREE (7%
29/04/2009 0206 29/04/2009 to £28/04/2012 216,000 - - - 216,000 - -
28/03/2012 0198 01/07/2012 to £27/03/2013 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 0.195 -

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFUTES
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul 03/05/2010 1.250  03/05/2010 to £02/05/2011 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - - -
BHREE 28/03/2012 0.198  01/07/2012 to £27/03/2014 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 0.195 -
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 03/052010 1.250  03/05/2010 to £02/05/2011 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - - -
RESEE 28/03/2012 0,198 01/07/2012 to £27/03/2014 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 0.195 -
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung 03/05/2010 1,250 03/05/2010 to £02/05/2011 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - - -
RHBEE 28/03/2012 0.198  01/07/2012 to £27/03/2014 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 0.195 -
Chief Executive
THAR
Mr. Leung Kam Lung, Danny
(resigned on 31/03/2012) 03/05/2010 1.250  03/05/2010 to £02/05/2011 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - - -
(13100320128 1F)
Senior Management
BREBAR
04/05/2010 1,248 04/05/2010 to £03/05/2011 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - - -
28/3/2012 0.198  01/07/2012 to £27/03/2013 - 6,800,000 - - 6,800,000 0.195 -
Employees in aggregate
Ll
04/05/2010 1,248 04/05/2010 to £03/05/2011 130,000,000 - - (130,000,000) - - -
28/03/2012 0.198  28/03/2012 to £27/03/2013 - 42,000,000 - - 42,000,000 0.195 -
209,116,000 67,800,000 - (208,800,000) 68,116,000
Notes: P&
1. The price of the Company's shares disclosed for options granted is the closing price 1. RERHEREMBEENARDARMNER BEE
of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted. BEAR M D B HA AT AR (D MO U T (B o

2. The price of the Company's shares disclosed for options exercised is the weighted 2. METEEREMRBEORA RN ER EEE
average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the PEAR AR ETT (0 B BRI AR B0 AN A O UL TS -
options were exercised.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right during the
period.

Share Award Scheme of the Company

On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which selected employees of the Group, including without limitation
any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent or consultant
(with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise
the contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date.

During the reporting year, no share was purchased for the Share Award
Scheme.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Poon Sum

Mr. Wang Bo (appointed on 9 May 2012)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung

Mr. Poon Wai Kong

Mr. Chan Shu Kin'

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul’

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung'

! Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 86(3) and Article 87(1) of the Company's
Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Bo shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, Mr. Wong Kwok Leung,
Mr. Chan Shu Kin and Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors
EEHE

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Sum, aged 48, is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company at the reporting date and one of the co-founders of the
Group. He is appointed as the Honorary Chairman on 9 May 2012.
Throughout the year, he has been, and still is, primarily responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development, marketing and
formulation of overall corporate policies of the Group. He has over
22 years of experience in the oil, paints and coatings industry and the
trading of chemicals in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Wang Bo, aged 37, is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. He was appointed on 9 May 2012. He has over 10 years’
experience in international oil and gas business development. He was
the chief executive officer of two developed oilfield group, namely
Eagle Imran Mining Limited and Laws King Group Limited, and was
responsible for the business development of a range of comprehensive
projects, including oilfields, natural gas and gold mining in Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region, Jilin Province of the People’s Republic
of China, Kazakhstan, Turkmenistan and the United States of America.
He had participated in the exploration and mining development work
of the oilfield in Jilin in 2002, and had subsequently established tt#72=
B & # AR A (Shi Xin Tai De Investment Consulting Company,
Ltd.) and entered into a co-development agreement in relation to
the FMF122/EHE S (Jilin Qian 122 Oilfield) in 2004. He was
responsible for the operation and was one of the committee members
of the joint management committee of the oilfield.
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Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 54, is an Executive Director. He is
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effective from 1 April
2012 and responsible for the Group's daily operations, administration
and production management of the Group's subsidiary in Dongguan.
He obtained the qualification of LCC — Higher Accounting from London
Chamber of Commerce and diploma of supervisory studies from Hong
Kong Productivity Council. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
the field of finance and accounting for over 16 years and has obtained
extensive knowledge therein. He joined the Group in September 1997.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 41, is an Executive Director. He is a member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Certified Practising Accountant of Australia and Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He also holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting and
Corporate Governance from the City University of Hong Kong, a
Master degree in Practising Accounting from the Monash University,
Australia and a Bachelor degree in Economics from the University of
London, United Kingdom. He has more than 21 years’ experience
in accounting and financial field. He joined the Group as Financial
Controller in September 2005. He was appointed as the Company
Secretary for the Company in September 2006.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified public
accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 34 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting as
well as financial management. He is the past president of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors (the “Society”) and currently
a committee member of the Society. He is also an independent non-
executive director of PYI Corporation Limited which is a listed company
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul, aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is the proprietor
of Paul K.C. Chan & Partners Solicitors & Notaries, and has been
practising laws in Hong Kong for over 28 years. He obtained a Juris
Doctorate degree from the University of Toronto in 1979. He has
been admitted as a barrister and a solicitor in Ontario, Canada and
as a barrister in the Australian Capital Territory, as a solicitor in Hong
Kong and in England and Wales, and as an advocate and solicitor in
Singapore. He became a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in 1995,
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in 1996, a Notary
Public in Hong Kong in 1997, and HKIAC Accredited Mediator in 1999.
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Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30th September 2004. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 10 years of
experience in accounting, finance and investment banking specialising
in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions and corporate
and debt restructuring. He was also an executive director of publicly
listed companies undertaking corporate management, planning and
strategies development functions. Currently, he is an independent
non-executive director of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited, Great
Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited and Mobile Telecom Network
(Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors as regards their independence from the
Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is independence of the Company.
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Senior Management

Professor Albert Kwong, aged 62, is the Vice Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 1 July 2008.
He is a renowned oil scholar and a seasoned senior petroleum engineer
with worldwide hands-on exploration and production experience, both
onshore and offshore, plus sharp cross-border business management
skills of an international standard. He has direct exposure to the
exploration and exploitation of oil and gas in North America (covering
both the United States and Canada), South America, Asia (especially
China), Australia, North Africa and the Middle East.

Professor Kwong earned his Bachelor of Science in Computer Science
from the University of South Carolina in 1974 and Master of Science in
Petroleum Engineering from the University of Texas at Austin in 1977,
also later Master of Science in Engineering Management in Oklahoma,
the United States. He had worked as a research engineer for the
Department of Energy, the United States and later as drilling and
operations engineer for Atlantic Richfield Co. He then worked for Sun
Qil (USA) (“Sun”) in its South China Sea offshore drilling ventures with
CNOOC Limited and numerous projects with China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC") and China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
("Sinopec”) and subsequently as Sun’s chief corporate representative
in China based in Beijing. He was appointed as oil consultant working
for the United Nations and later oil advisor to the State of Kuwait in
the Middle East. He later worked with Triton Energy (USA), GE and
Conocophillips in its global oil ventures.

Mr. Pang Shu Min, Stephen, aged 53, is the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 14 February 2011 and is
a very experienced oil and gas professional. Mr. Pang has over 31 years
of experience in the worldwide oil industry, he obtained his Bachelor
of Science in Computation from the University of Manchester in 1981.
He was an established leader in Shell Exploration Asia Pacific (“Shell”).
He joined Shell since 1982 as Economics and Planning Engineer and
since then his career spanning almost three decades has gone through
well site petroleum engineering, reservoir engineering, integrated gas
supply development, corporate planning, capability and technology
management and human resources management. Before he left Shell,
he worked as general manager for Shell Non Operated Ventures and
joint venture businesses in Asia Pacific. He was the Shell shareholders’
representative to these projects, including Joint Management
Committee member to Xijiang Joint Venture operations and was the
Alternate Director to Sabah Gas Joint Operation Company. He also acts
as a member of Society of Petroleum Engineers (“SPE”) and was the
chairman of the development and operation subcommittee of Malaysia
International Chamber of Commerce and Industry.
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Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 31, is the Assistant Financial Controller of
the Group. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company
in December 2011, she had more than 8 years experience in auditing,
accounting and financial field in international accounting firms and in a
listed company on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho Chi Hung, Alan, aged 59, is Senior Manager of the Investment
Management Department. He joined the Group in February 2009 and
is responsible for all aspects of investment management matters in
relation to the Group's operations in Qigihar oilfield. He has over 11
years of experience in advising independent petroleum firms operating
in PRC. Mr. Ho graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from Indiana
University in 1975 and a Master of Science degree from the University
of Michigan in 1977.

Ms. Liu Yu Qin, aged 44, is the General Manager and Director of
America Archi Colors Group Limited. She joined the Group in April
2007 and is responsible for the sales and marketing of paints products
in Northeast China Market. She has a postgraduate degree from the
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. She has 11 years of experience
in the coating industry in both China and internationally and over 16
years of experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. Cao Quan, aged 40, is General Manager of the Qigihar Northeast
Oil currently. He held a Business Administration degree from South
China University of Technology in 1993 and had worked in numerous
senior management positions in various industries including the
construction of the Guangzhou Subway System. He joined the Group
in 2008 as committee member of joint management committee in the
oilfield area.
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Mr. Yang Jin Feng, aged 41, is currently the Executive Deputy General
Manager of Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical Limited
("GalalLi") of the Group. He has been worked in a telecommunication
company in Shenzhen since his graduation in 1990 and was
subsequently engaged in the electrical appliances business. He
engaged in the gasoline and fuel oil business from 1997 to 2009
in Boluo, Guangdong, during which, through the cooperation with
others, he conducted the sub-contracting operation of Zhuyuan Gas
Station and Longhua Gas Station in Boluo, Guangdong, and acquired
and operated Qingtang Gas Station in Boluo, Guangdong since 1997
before beginning to engage in the lubricating oil business in 2007. He
possesses extensive business experience. He engaged in the fuel oil
trading business in Shenzhen since 2010 until now and incorporated
Galali Investment Development Company Limited (18R &R H
fR A 7)) (being the name of the registered company of Galali acquired
by the Group) in Shenzhen in the same year. He held the positions as
Legal Representative and Chairman in which the company is mainly
engaged in the fuel oil trading business.

Ms. Lau Wai Wing, Vivian, aged 43, is currently the General Manager
of Galali of the Group. She holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Murdoch University in Perth Australia. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked in the financial and management
fields for over 19 years and held various positions such as financial
controller and marketing for a number of reputable groups, which
include Guangnan Holdings Limited ( EF&E AR A7), Guangdong
Petrochemical Company Limited (28 A/tEBBR A7), Hong Kong
Eastern Hill International Limited (& RIERE AR A A), Taishan
Petroleum Sales Company Limited (& 1L HEEBR A A]) and
Guangdong Dongchang Group Company Limited (BEREEEEH
fRA 7)) . She has been engaged in the imports, re-exports, domestic
trading and blending of fuel oil since 2001, and is very familiar with
the domestic fuel market.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities

At 31 March 2012, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, and any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model code

were as follows:

EERNBAREHEZHES

N

= %

/\I

“E-—FZA=t—A REESREEHE
Bl ([ % RAE 01 )) 3520507 B O BRI AT
ﬁ~ﬁmﬁ%£vw BAKD A RBR A E
B ARAEERESTHARRARARKLE
AR A E (3 BB % R EPIEXVED)
FONGEETETS S g

Nature of Number of Equity Total Total % of
Name Capacity Interests Shares held Derivative Interest Issued Shares
EERT
HE L) EEME FENRAEE RAFTEIR aER BOBED T
Directors:
s
Mr. Poon Sum Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 185,770,453 650,000,000 1,146,033,011 27.75%
BREE EREAA {E AR (B5ET)
Founder of a Discretionary Trust ~ Other Interest (Note 2) 310,262,558
2REFEIBA Hinga (fis2)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3) 16,285 4,116,000 4,132,285 0.10%
HBEREE EREAA {A AR (F5E3)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 4) 7,900,000 3,800,000 11,700,000 0.28%
EERLE ERERA BN (Fis4)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 5) 61,500 3,800,000 3,861,500 0.09%
R EE EREAA {8 A2 (BY3ES)
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul  Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 5) 704,000 3,800,000 4,504,000 0.11%
BRIRIZEE EREAA B A (BisEs)
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 5) 234,000 3,800,000 4,034,000 0.10%
REBIEE EREAA {8 A2 (BY3ES)
Notes: B 5 -
1. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests 1. RARRRATETABBEROHNAMEER RRIR

in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27 March
2015 to subscribe for 200,000,000 shares at the exercise price of HK$0.198 per
share, interests in warrants of the Company which conferred rights to subscribe for
250,000,000 shares at an initial subscription price of HK$1.35 per share (subject
to adjustment) exercisable during the period from 21 June 2012 to 20 June 2013
and interests in warrants of the Company which conferred rights to subscribe for
200,000,000 shares at an initial subscription price of HK$0.45 per share (subject to
adjustment) exercisable during the period from 30 June 2011 to 29 June 2014.
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2. These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited. The issued share capital of
Ever Source Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by
a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum,
and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum is deemed to be interested in 310,262,558 shares,
representing approximately 7.51% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2012,
through his shareholding in Ever Source Enterprises Limited.

3. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, 100,000 of which may be exercised during the period from 13 August
2004 to 12 August 2014 at an adjusted exercise price of HK$0.251 per share,
216,000 of which may be exercised during the period from 29 April 2009 to 28 April
2012 at the exercise price of HK$0.2064 per share and 3,800,000 of which may be
exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27 March 2013 at the exercise price
of HK$0.198 per share.

4. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27 March
2013 to subscribe for 3,800,000 shares at the exercise price of HK$0.198 per share.

5. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27 March
2014 to subscribe for 3,800,000 shares at the exercise price of HK$0.198 per share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Report of the Directors
EEHE

2. % %5 %1 B Ever Source Enterprises Limited$ 74 °
Ever Source Enterprises Limited) & 37T AN —
MR EBREZHESHMMK I LR —EH2RET (2
mARERETENRIEKE) BEEFRAQFTime
Concord Limited® = #H50% * I B8 — B R R B R
ZESHAMKIEBE-—EHE2EET (REARER
EENAREBSHEENREKE ) MEEEHR
F)Guidance Investments Limited /A 5 5M8950% ©
A It - 73 7R 56 4 35 B H 0 Ever Source Enterprises
Limited &9 AR A - #E AR /R 74310,262,558% R 13
AR HERR - Z——F=-A=+—-HB®HE%
TP #I7.51% »

3. AR RIRAGT A T ARG K AT AR AR R
BN A AT B AR A R AR R
ZEBREFP 00,0000 TR ZTTNFENA+=
AZE-F—NFEN\AT+-BHRECARITERES
A& #50.251 72T » 216,000/ I R ZE T AE Y
AZ+hBEZZ—-FMmA=-+/\BHBRITE
18 5 % 8 #0.20647T 17 £ 123,800,00019 A A =&
——HELA-RAE-_T-=F=-F-t+-tAHHEZ
TEEERBEE0198TITHE

4. RARBBRAITET ABBERNDHOMEER RN
Y87 2 R R PSR B B L RO AN 2 R R A O M
FZEBRER AR - -——F LA -—HEZT—=
FZA- T AHRETERRITEESEER0.198
TR E3,800,000% A& 15

5. RARRBRALTETARBERONATEERZARIR
TR A B AR RERT B O AR A R B AR A R RS
ZEBREA TN -_E——F+A-BE-_Z—N
F=F —++ AERITE U IRTEETE1£0.198
7T #2 83,800,000 A% 15

B EXHBREEN RZE——F=ZA=+—
B ARREZESREZTHRABHENRARAAK
HEMEREZE (TREREBSHLHAEBKAIZEXY
) B E AR - ABRE IR () S B R R IR IR
BEMBERIFEISD2ERTEARABFENE
AR S AR BIRETRIE B AR A 7 K HE
RATHE RIS E o
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Report of the Directors
EEHE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests FERRIERS
RZE——F=ZA=+—H REEHFRBEK
FI 53361 BF B M E L MATE 8RR (I IEA
ATMEEL T BTHRA L) RARTRH R
B DR A RSN T ¢

As at 31 March 2012, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
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Name of Substantial Number of Equity Total total issued
shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest share capital
HARE
BRITRE
BEHD
TERRBE/ER 5 BRME FENRAEE RATAETA aER BAk
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust ~ Trustee Other Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 7.51%
Corporation Limited (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
("BNP Paribas Jersey”) &#A Hipigsm (51 28k3)
Ground Point Limited Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 7.51%
("Ground Point") Controlled Corporation (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
RRHEEER AEdEE (M 2K3)
Red Tiles Limited Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 7.51%
("Red Tiles") Controlled Corporation (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
RRHEEER AEdEE (M 2K3)
Guidance Investments Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 7.51%
Limited (“Guidance") Controlled Corporation (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
RRHEEER AEdEE (M 2K3)
Time Concord Limited Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 7.51%
("Time Concord") Controlled Corporation (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
R EEER AEfEE (M 2K3)
Ever Source Enterprises  Beneficial Owner Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 7.51%
Limited (“Ever Source") (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
EREEA AR (M1 2%3)
Mr. Poon Sau Tin Beneficial Owner Personal Interest 16,292,453 - 326,555,011 791%
ERARE EREAA (PN -5:
Founder of Other Interest 310,262,558 - -
a Discretionary Trust (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
ZREETMMIA Hit# g (FisE1 2K3)
Notes: B3t
1. All interests of BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited, Ground Point Limited, 1. Ffi A BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited -

Ground Point Limited * Red Tiles Limited » Guidance
Investments Limited ~ Time Concord Limited X Ever
Source Enterprises Limited ) 18 & LA & 7% 55 H 25 £ 69
Hip i R —#tiEm -

Red Tiles Limited, Guidance Investments Limited, Time Concord Limited and Ever
Source Enterprises Limited and the other interest of Mr. Poon Sau Tin are duplicated.
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2. BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares

in the capacity of a trustee of the two discretionary trusts as mentioned in paragraph
3 below through interests of corporations controlled by it as follows:

Name of Controlled Corporation

Name of Controlling Shareholder

Report of the Directors
EEHE

2. BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limitedi% & A
THREZEGEEER AT XERMEMIEDE
ERNZFEAGNDEEREF RO HES

Percentage Control

ZEEEEERE ERRRNWERE ZEREDHL
Ground Point BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Red Tiles BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Guidance Ground Point 100%
Time Concord Red Tiles 100%
Ever Source Guidance 50%
Ever Source Time Concord 50%
3. These shares are held by Ever Source. The issued share capital of Ever Source is 3. %% Mk tn B Ever Sourcef§ /A ° Ever Sourceff] 2 #1T

beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of
which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum, and as to 50% by Guidance, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother
of Mr. Poon Sum. Accordingly, each of Mr. Poon Sum and Mr. Poon Sau Tin will
be deemed to be interested in 310,262,558 shares, which represent approximately
7.51% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2012, because each of them is the
respective founder of the aforesaid two discretionary trusts which indirectly own
50% beneficial interest in Ever Source respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the Directors
of the Company, other than a Director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2012 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were approximately 53% and the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer were approximately 29% of the
Group'’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were approximately 50% and the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 15% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

AR —HRRBREZESEMK I R —B2E
ER(ZEARBERTENREKE ) BEEEN
A& Time Concord# A50% * i F — ] F &8 B &
HEdMA Ik —B2EET (ZREARERE
EMRAREFEESHEENTEKE ) MEEFH AR
Guidancet# B BMI50% It - HRAER LA K
ESH LA D BB Ll BB B Ever Source® 2 4
#50% M MIE R EEENRILA  HEES AR
R AHEH310,262,558 IR s - IHERARARR
—E- =A==+ -BNEBETRNL7.51% ¢

BEXFBEES RAARNERAM KT
—CHZAS+—0 BEBS RS
336I/AFENBEM MRS BEETAL (K
DR FBRID) AR R S AR o
EHRSAR -

BHEEH
ARBBERFNTIREEABAAALE
SAEAEAHH EHHERRTHAM -
ITREFRHER

ER AEERREFHENA SHESERERE

B4 5H B B RI53% - AR B & AR P Fh
EREAREBIHERN29% °

FRAKRBEAAHEBMENAFRERIEAR
S EBERBREAIS0% - A K B R AHERE PG
MERBREAEERRBENIS% -

B REZBMBATARESMATAELS R
REPRARS %A £ Z R B bt 2
EEZIakiE ZoE=a 0L ol
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Report of the Directors
EEHE

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

Disclosures Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the Company makes the following disclosures in relation
to the details of the facility letter, which includes conditions relating to
specific performance of the controlling shareholder of the Company:—

The Group has accepted a facility letter dated 29 February 2012 issued
by a bank in Hong Kong in relation to various working capital facilities
up to the amount of approximately HK$80,769,000. The terms
included corporate guarantees on subsidiaries, an all monies charge
over trade receivables executed by a subsidiary, an all monies first share
charge(s) over 51% of all issued shares of a subsidiary and financial
covenants on the financial statements of the Group. In addition, it
is required the Company depositing a sum of HK$20,000,000 or its
equivalent in other currency as minimum deposit. Should there be any
breach of such conditions, the bank shall have the right to demand
for repayment of all outstanding amounts due by the Group under the
facilities.

As at 8 November 2011, the Group accepted a mortgage overdraft
facility letter issued by another bank in Hong Kong in relation to an
investment property with value of approximately HK$25,558,000. The
mortgage overdraft facility amount is approximately HK$12,250,000,
and the Company also provides corporate guarantee for this facility
amount.

Pension Scheme

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to the
MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised from
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.
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Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiary are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Auditor

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16
July 2010, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was removed as one of the
joint auditors of the Company. Besides, Delotte Touche Tohmatsu was
appointed to act jointly with Lau & Au Yueng C.P.A Limited as the new
joint audltors of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Lau & Au Yeung C.PA. Limited resigned
as the joint auditors of the Company during the reporting year.
Besides, pursuant to a board resolution dated 30 December 2011,
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed by the Board to act as the new
auditor of the Company.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Kwok Leung
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 June 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

_E&
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROASIAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 178, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
March 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

B R R 1B
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 June 2012
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited FR 25 EIRIZA% A R

Consolidated Income Statement

e lER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE_T——F=A=+—HULFE

2012 2011
—E2-—F —E——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BETT BT T
(restated)
(ggE73)
(Note 2(b)(i))
(M EE2(b)(0))
Revenue W &= 5 339,967 282,398
Other income E A 6 5,815 6,121
Other (losses)/gains, net Hio (BE) Mz F58 7 (54,184) 13,460
Purchases, processing and BB IMIRAEBERXZ
related expenses (303,637) (264,232)
Wages, salaries and other benefits T & » ¥ & K H b &7 8 (36,703) (27,679)
Share-based payments LARR 9 245 2 kI8 8 (25,528) (63,884)
Depreciation, depletion and e FEREE
amortisation (22,655) (20,569)
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - B IR
written off 17 (9,637) (122,147)
Other operating expenses Hih e (58,656) (91,343)
Operating loss K BB 9 (165,218) (287,875)
Finance income W s 10 611 765
Finance costs L= DN 10 (1,688) (2,214)
Share of results of associates RN e (8,973) (21,284)
Loss before income tax expenses B ATIS BB X AT ES 18 (175,268) (310,608)
Income tax expenses Frisfif X 11 (1,596) (163)
Loss for the year REANEE (176,864) (310,771)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT EIEARFERNERE:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ R SN 14 (176,864) (305,507)
Non-controlling interests FE 128 1) 1 A - (5,264)
(176,864) (310,771)
Loss per share (HK cents) SRR E1E (B) 15
Basic BN (4.28) (7.89)
Diluted i3 (4.28) (7.89)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

zF

2012 2011 :3

—E——fF —E——F g =l

HK$'000 HK$'000 RS

BT BETT ol

118

Loss for the year RERNEE (176,864) (310,771) #s

________________________ | @

2 H

Other comprehensive income: B2 m e B

Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBEEZ e

translation of foreign operations & H =5 5,764 20,307 uE

Change in fair value of available-for- ~ AJfft H&ERE ~ DH%

sale investments N EZE) (297) (388) £l
5,467 19,919
Total comprehensive loss for the year A% 2 H &5 18 42 %8 (171,397) (290,852)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to: LA~ A & & 15 2 [ 518 4258

Owners of the Company KRNBEER A (171,452) (286,550)
Non-controlling interests FE4E Il 14 e A 55 (4,302)
(171,397) (290,852)
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 25 A& /R 12A%7

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR &

As at 31 March 2012 R=_Z——F=H=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P BET T BT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE REE 17 137,220 145,677
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS A E IR 18 3,180 3,180
Investment properties wEMZE 19 41,815 38,391
Goodwill EES 20 16,457 -
Other intangible assets HE|EpEE 21 239,827 217,743
Interests in associates RN I 23 110,083 91,951
Prepayments, deposits and BAHIE Ze Rk
other receivables H h fE GRIE 24 40,978 85,253
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 25 6,432 23,414
595,992 605,609
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 26 15,161 13,912
Prepaid land lease payments TEAT b HH & FRIE 18 - 110
Trade receivables “ 5 EWEIE 27 70,443 80,810
Prepayments, deposits and ERHRIE - Ee Rk
other receivables H A & Yo R IR 24 124,865 118,069
Held-for-trading investments FHEEERE 28 2,988 35,299
Derivative financial assets TESMEE 29 256 1,391
Tax recoverables AU BB 1R 914 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkREFMEER 30 77,505 165,566
292,132 415,157
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B 5 A 31 41,573 45,495
Accruals and other payables FE 5T 3R I8 K H A JE < 5RIE 32 84,797 43,232
Derivative financial liabilities PTEemaE 29 5,406 15,314
Tax payables FEAT R IR 646 2,513
Bank borrowings IRITEE 33 53,826 24,529
186,248 131,083
Net current assets REEEFE 105,884 284,074
Total assets less current liabilities #EERMABHEE 701,876 889,683
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR AR

R-E——F=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
P 5 BETT BT
Capital and reserves BRARG#E
Share capital N 34 41,299 41,299
Reserves i 654,315 799,302
Equity attributable to owners of KA FHEHE AEEZ
the Company Ex 695,614 840,601
Non-controlling interests FE R MR 2R 2,370 4,384
Total equity e 697,984 844,985
Non-current liabilities FrREBEE
Bank borrowings RITERE 33 - 44,225
Deferred tax liabilities REHIHEAE 37 3,892 473
3,892 44,698
701,876 889,683
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 178 were H56HEZ178EMHB2 AN BHRERCEESS

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June

2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

THEERRES:

Poon Wai Kong

E R
Director

EF

Wong Kwok Leung
HER
Director

EZE

RZB-—ZFRATHRBERKERE WA
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Statement of Financial Position

B REAR LR

As at 31 March 2012

N-_ZE——F=A=+—H

iz 41
X i 2012 2011
T & _ _ .
%ﬁ —E-—F —F——%F
% H‘H Note HK$'000 HK$'000
% ! B 5 BT T BT T
- KT
2
Ew Non-current assets FRBEE
g% Property, plant and equipment Y BE REE 17 3,776 4,879
g’é Interests in subsidiaries KB AR Z e 22 547,738 475,642
g;ﬁt Prepayments, deposits and BRFE ZE Kk
5 g other receivables H i B W IE 24 2,700 39,999
<<
£ 554,214 520,520
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE ZE Rk
other receivables H i & W IE 24 52,691 31,584
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U Bt /B8 A B 2 FRIA 22 45,333 138,009
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEIER 30 32,126 104,399
130,150 273,992
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 2 E A B {5 SR8 32 4,198 2,794
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A A 2 FIA 22 2,915 2,878
Derivative financial liabilities MESHERE 29 - 8,784
7.113 14,456
Net current assets REBEETE 123,037 259,536
Total assets less current liabilities #EERREE & 677,251 780,056
Capital and reserves R R f#
Share capital AR AR 34 41,299 41,299
Reserves G 35 635,952 738,757
Total equity RSB 677,251 780,056

FS6RE178AMB M BHMROBREETEN =
T-_FXRATHAERRETIE X H T
BEERREE:

The financial statements on pages 56 to 178 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2012 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Poon Wai Kong Wong Kwok Leung

E R EEHR
Director Director
EFE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o A HEE 3£ 4 Eh
wh 3 *Eﬁ&ib#&%
For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company 3§> §
KATEE ARG ;515
S T
Share-hased Non- g é
Share Share payment Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling E z
capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests Total N =
REEH aut e
Bx  RGEE  RERE  EtRE  EXRE  RiE8 g | &g } %
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00 3
AETT  A%Tn  A¥Trn  A%Tn A%t B%Tn  A¥Tn EBTn BETn Lq‘?éﬂ
(Ngtg (&) i
(M) ;ﬁé %=
At 1 April 2010 RZF-FFMA-A 3261 1,485,836 9409 (212,47) 13985 (528459 804385 4137 80852 El
Comprehensive income 2N
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (305,507) (305,507) (5,264) (310,771)
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ E{t 2 (H18) /i
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELN
translation of foreign operations EfzR - - - - 19,345 - 19,345 962 20,307
Change in fair value of ARHERE 2
available-forsale investments ATEE = = = (389) - - (388) - (388)
Total other comprehensive (loss)income  Eft 2 (B8) /% - - - (388) 19,345 - 18,957 962 19,919
Total comprehensive (loss)income FELE(H8)/ halkE
for the year - - - (388) 19,345 (305,507) (286,550) (4,302) (290,852)
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Acquisition of a subsidiary - E AR - - - - - - - 2137 2137
Partial disposal of subsidiaries BREERBAR - - - (2,257) - - (2,257) 2,257 =
Additional contribution by It RERINTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 155 155
Recognition of equity-settled B RSN
share-based payments RiAxft 23 - - 63,884 - - - 63,884 - 63,884
Exercise of share options it kiE 69 34,379 (7,280) - - - 27,795 = 27,7195
Exercise of warrants fHERRER 342 31515 = (2,108) - - 29,749 - 29,749
Lapse and forfeiture of share options ~ BREXM LR - - (1,946) - - 1,946 - - -
Placement of new shares = 4,000 216,000 - - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Transaction costs attributable to BRAEGEZRSHA
issue of shares - (16,108) - - - - (16,108) - (16,108)
Transactions costs attributable to BRRERELL
issue of warrants RBME - - - (297) - - (297) - (297)
Lapse of warrants AREE RN - - - @ - 2 - - -
Total transactions with owners BEAANLRHEE 5,038 265,786 54,658 (4,664) - 1,948 322,766 4,549 327,315
At 31 March 2011 W=2-——%=f=1-H 41,299 1,751,622 64,067 (217,699) 33,330 (832,018) 840,601 4384 844,985
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

i A EE 3L 454 F L %
ANy = *Eﬁ&ib#ﬁ
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREARS
Share-based Non-
Share Share payment Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests Total
HRHZ A E32 )3
Bx  RGEE  RERE  EtRE  EXRE  RiE8 g | $:3 &5

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
ARTT  ANTn  ANTn  BNTR BNTr ANTr A¥Tn #RTR ERTR
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(Note (a))
(Mit@)
At 1 April 2011 R=2——£MA-A 41299 1,751,622 64,067 (217,699) 33,330 (832,018) 840,601 4,384 844,985
Comprehensive income 2N
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (176,864) (176,864) - (176,864)
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ E{t 2 (H18) /i
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELN
translation of foreign operations EfzR - - - - 5,709 - 5,709 55 5,764
Change in fair value of ARHERE 2
available-forsale investments ATEE = = = (297) - - (297) - (297)
Total other comprehensive (loss)income  E{t 27 (B8 /&% - - - (297) 5,709 = 5412 55 5,467
Total comprehensive (loss)income FELE(H8)/ halkE
for the year - - - (297) 5709 (176,864) (171,452) 55 (171,397)
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Acquisition of non-controlling B P I
interests (Note (b)) (B3E(o)) - - - (1,067) - - (1,067) (2,069) (3,136)
Recognition of equity-settled BANRARLEE N
share-based payments Bipfiz3E = - 25,528 = = - 25,528 = 25,528
Placement/exercise of warrants RE/TiERRES = 4 2,000 = = = 2,004 = 2,004
Lapse and forfeiture of share options ~ EEREXIRIR M - - (44,698) - - 44,698 = = =
Total transactions with owners BEEAZRAEE - 4 (17,170 (1,067) - 44,698 26,465 (2,069) 24,39
At 31 March 2012 RZE-——%=f=1-H 41,299 1,751,626 46,897 (219,063) 39,039 (964,184) 695,614 2370 697,984
Notes: LI

(a) Other reserves mainly represents the difference of approximately a debit of (a) HihFBEERRARNMNBARREEZSH 2R H (Z

HK$221,862,000 (2011: a debit of HK$220,795,000) between the amounts paid or EX ST EEHRENZIBRR 2 ZH#E) BNk
received from transactions related to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries BB G BT S S s =5
without the loss of control and the non-controlling interests being acquired or )R8 RE 221,862,000 (ZF — —F : fEREK
disposed of. Other reserves also comprise investment valuation reserve, merger 220,795,0007T) © E b & B I B IE R A BERKE A6
reserve and statutory reserve of approximately a debit of HK$685,000 (2011: a debit HERETRE D BIH AEFAE685000T (=ZF
of HK$388,000), HK$3,248,000 (2011: HK$3,248,000) and HK$236,000 (2011: —— & : fF B 388,000 ~ A #3,248,0007T (=F
HK$236,000) respectively. ——4F : #%3,248,0007T ) K& #%236,0007T (=T ——

4 : ##236,0007T) °
(b) On 8 March 2012, the Group acquired additional 30% equity interests in a (b) RZT—ZF=AN\B NEEUWHE—REHEQRET

subsidiary, I T HMESBER AR ("SFES"), resulting in a reduction of non- TERMNBSERAT ([RME S |) ZHIN30%MHE - &
controlling interests. Bk SRR -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEHETMER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash flows from operating REKLETHNHRERE
activities
Loss before income tax expenses R P15 5 2 B ES 18 (175,268) (310,608)
Adjustments for: FE
Finance income A& U a (611) (765)
Finance costs A& KA 1,688 2,214
Share of results of associates FE(R & N A AR 8,973 21,284
Depreciation, depletion and e FERES
amortisation 22,655 20,569
Property, plant and equipment YIE - HE 2R 1 EE
written off 9,637 122,147
Exchange (gains)/losses, net EX (M), EE%EE (7,985) 1,487
Recognition of impairment loss B 5K FRIATER K
on trade receivables BB E B 3,502 945
Recognition of impairment loss MIBN I & R
on prepayments, deposits and HAth FE R IB TR A
other receivables A EE 26,431 6,958
Recognition/(reversal) of ITEMERER, (BE)
impairment loss on EobAEN SE|
investment properties 20,790 (1,163)
Recognition of impairment losson ¥ % HE &
property, plant and equipment RAETER AR EEE 6,787 =
Recognition of impairment loss MEMBER & ERRL
on other intangible assets REEE - 1,733
Recognition of impairment loss on 3t A] 4 HH &3 & R
an available-for-sale investment BB E B 2,522 =
Gain on deemed partial disposal RAEEL D H S = A A8y
of an associate = - (3,364)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREEDN
plant and equipment E51E 2,295 271
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B R R M EIER - 15,350
Gain from changes in fair value of ~ fTE &M T EMNAFE
derivative financial instruments FE) s (11,086) (39,426)
Loss from changes in fair value of FHIEEEREN A TE
held-for-trading investments HEEI8 12,018 4,238
Share-based payments LARR 7 2 1 5k I8 25,528 63,884
Operating cash flows before EEESEHFI 2
movements in working capital KERBRE (52,124) (94,246)
Increase in inventories FEEmM (1,249) (1,231)
Decrease in properties held FHEEEWMF R D
for trading - 7,782
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 W KIA
receivables A () 10,845 (23,854)
Increase in prepayments, TBNHIE ZE Rk
deposits and other receivables H th & U5 R IE I AN (11,449) (63,811)
Decrease/(increase) in held- RIEEERE
for-trading investments (1) 20,293 (6,203)
Decrease in derivative financial MEeRABERDFE
liabilities, net (2,313) (1,490)
Decrease in trade payables H 5 e IR R, (3,922) (959)
Increase in accruals and FEETRIE & B A
other payables JE 1~ SRIEE AN 19,355 4,455
Cash used in operations FEEARKEEBNRS
carried forward (20,564) (179,557)
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 25 A& /R 12A%7

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E2-—F —F——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P BET T BT
Cash used in operations ER 2 ARKEEBHE S

brought forward (20,564) (179,557)
Purchase of tax reserve certificates BB E A ([HRA])

(“TRC") (1,263) (2,907)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BT B TR (4,376) (348)
Net cash used in operating ARKRE T RS FH

activities (26,203) (182,812)
Cash flows from investing RERETEHNEERE

activities
Repayment/(payment) of deposits B8 (R KREEYR,

and receivables for acquisitions of B EZ & E K EKFIE

businesses/assets 8,277 (108,991)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of ~ UEEKI B AR 2B LR

subsidiaries, net of cash and FRE-IBREKRERS R

cash equivalent acquired ReFEEER 38 (1,283) (4,986)
Net cash outflow on disposal of HEMRBARZ

subsidiaries WL FEE - (3,870)
Proceeds received from the o & B8 A R FT U ER &Y

disposal of subsidiaries FT8 I8 - 25,000
Increase in shares/acquisition of B 38 00, W B — R

an associate Hﬁ? =N 23(b) (17,778) (35,557)
Return of investment from/ BERHKE,

(acquisition of) available-for-sale (W) T HERE

investments 25(b) 14,163 (23,802)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE WE N

equipment (28,368) (172,573)
Purchase of investment properties BB E Y% (25,659) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, H&E¥E HE &

plant and equipment RAEPTS A 2,404 265
Decrease in deposits paid for B — I H EEH E B

a jointly controlled operation b - 52,536
Interest received RSN 611 1,573
Net cash used in investing ARBRETBNE S FE

activities (47,633) (270,405)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEHETMER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=-ZT—=

F=ZRA=+—BILFE

2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Cash flows from financing REMETBHZ2HERE
activities
Proceeds from placement of Bic & #7 A% 10 B 15 5/ E
new shares - 220,000
Payment for share issue costs AT A% 2 B TR AN - (16,108)
Proceeds from placement/exercise B2 & /21T RERE
of warrants Fr 5 5k 18 35 2,004 15,490
Payment for warrants issue costs SATRARE B EHITA - (297)
Proceeds from exercise of TR R P15 3R
share options - 27,795
Increase in bank overdrafts HRITH 3G AN 9,600 =
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (24,528) (24,615)
Interest paid B A FLE (1,688) (2,214)
Additional contribution by FE42 |"_HZ¥ mEINEE
non-controlling interests - 155
Net cash (used in)/generated (AR) /REBEITE 2
from financing activities REeFE (14,612) 220,206
Net decrease in cash and RekBREEHEER
cash equivalents WD R (88,448) (233,011)
Cash and cash equivalents REDANEER
at beginning of the year Re%EER 165,566 393,225
Effect of foreign exchange IEERBE 2
rate changes 387 5,352
Cash and cash equivalents RERNEER
at end of the year Re&EEER 30 77,505 165,566
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited FR 25 EIRIZA% A R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

1.

66

General Information

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour
City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the exploration and
sale of crude oil, sale of chemical products, commodity trading,
property investment and provision of painting service.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved by the
Board of Directors on 15 June 2012.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments
and derivative financial assets and liabilities.

—RER

FRERERERQA ([RARF]) AR
MERSTMKXIZBRAR - ERMHE
ERBMERSMARAGE ([BRZM]) E
Mo ARRZEMPER R TR LM
252 Ho 4k 5 Bl B Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &% fLBE4
Y IE G B B R H6E3601 % ©

ARBEEXRBR/IREER - B A A
ZEZREBARRREE M HE(LT
Em BmES MEREREMHRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=-ZT—=

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions

estimates.

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

(i)  Changes in presentation of the consolidated
income statement

In previous years, the Group presented an analysis of
expenses on the face of its income statement using
a classification based on their function within the
Group.

During the year, the Board of Directors has
performed a review of the content and presentation
of the financial statements to ensure compliance
with relevant accounting standards as well as
comparable to those of the other market participants
within the same industry and the business
development and operation of the Group. As a result
of this review, the Board of Directors considered
that it is appropriate to adopt an analysis of
expenses on the face of its income statement using
a classification based on their nature which would
be more relevant to the Group's circumstances and
users of the Group's financial statements.

2.

(a)

(b)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#)

(Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) BENBXREEZEE (@0

disclosures (Continued)

(i)  Changes in presentation of the consolidated (i) HEUmHRZHZEE &)

income statement (Continued)

Bt RBE—T——%F=A
=t—HLEFEZHEEKE

RZEZVNFAEELEL - M
R FIE S A AR
UL Bk 2 25175 R %
— B RAMHERENTALZ
BB R ARERNFEES

Consequently, the presentation of the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March
2011 has been revised and the comparative figures

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 aERIZERZ A IR

have been reclassified in order to conform with the
presentation adopted in these financial statements.
The changes in presentation of the consolidated
income statement did not have any impact of the

68

Group's loss for the year or the calculation of the B AEEBREBRZFAE
Group's loss per share. EEERZE-

(i)  Revision and amendments to existing standards (i) BEXEHEFIEEERZE
and interpretation effective but not relevant to BEAEKRISTTURZE
the Group
HKAS 1 Presentation of financial BAGHENE S, HERRZE)

statements
HKAS 24 (Revised)  Related party disclosures EAGER BHLRE
245 (B3T)
HKAS 27 (Revised) ~ Consolidated and separate R g E] FEREY
financial statements 275 (81877 BBRE
Amendment to Classification of rights issues FitgsrEl HEAE
HKAS 32 %32%2 HES
HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting BesHEd RERB RS
%34%

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7

Business combinations

Financial instruments:

BEMBRSEN  EHAH
F33% ()
EAMBRSEN  SRTAKE

B

Disclosures FT5H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes 4 (ERAH EF B ¥tal
BEARZEE)
-2BE135%
Amendment to Prepayments of a minimum 58 (BB % REEEERZ
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 funding requirement HEREZEE) B5R
-REF1HLZ
BATA
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities &5 (ARBBRE NRATARSH
with equity instruments 2EZEE) EHAR
—RBE19%
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#) gg
(Continued) %%

=3

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EMERRRREZEE (20 %Z;
disclosures (Continued) \:ﬁ

2

(iii) New Standards, amendments to existing (i) B B8 5 £ M H 3 AEE H:N i

Standards and interpretation have been issued B KR EEEA ‘ﬁ‘; xi

but are not effective and have not been early 155TR2E g%

adopted D%E

=

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RELT B
ZERRZ
FEHBER
Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
BEGT LB IR EFTER HBBER 275 —ET——F+H—H
Amendment to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of 1 January 2012
underlying assets
ERGERNF2RZEBTAR BEHE: KOEEEE —E——F%—H—H
Amendment to HKAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
BERGHERFI1GRZEBITER EEREF —E—=%—HA—H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
BB G ERIFE275 18 S W Rk —E—=F—H—H
(ZE——%F)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and 1 January 2013
joint ventures
BB ERIZE285 REERNBIRAEEREZKRE —E—=%—HA—H
(_T**¢>
Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation 1 January 2014
— Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
BRI ERNERFRZETAR eRIA 2 -HHEHEER —ZE-—MFE-H—H
TRAE
Amendment to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2011
— Transfers of financial assets
BB RELERNET R Z TRIA - HE-EESrEE —E——F+A—H
(CHEN
Amendment to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure 1 January 2013
— Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
BB MELERNETRZ TRITE BE-HFEeREER —E—=F—H—H
(CHEN TRARE
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETZEEBERME (#)
(Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBRREBEZ2E (5
disclosures (Continued)

(iij) New Standards, amendments to existing (iii) B AEAFE o K 4 3% A I AR I8
Standards and interpretation have been issued BERWZHER - REERZ
but are not effective and have not been early 155 R 2R (%)

adopted (Continued)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 aERIZERZ A IR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

AT BEIR
ZERRZ
FEHBER
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2015
BB B HREERIFESR SR THE —ET-—hF-H—H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
BB MG ERIE105% iR e B IS ok —E—=%—A—H
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
BBM B MEERE15R Rz —ET—=F—H—H
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
BEM B mEERIFE125 BRERNEMER En —E—=%—HA—H
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
BB WS ERIE135 N EFE —E—=F—H—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping costs in the production 1 January 2013
phase of a surface mine
B (BEBRIMBRE2R BRRTE IS 4 E R ER < RIERB AR —E—=%—H—H
ZEg) —REFE20%
Amendment to HKFRS 7 Disclosures: Mandatory effective date of 1 January 2015
and 9 HKFRS 9 and transitional disclosures
BB BREERETR R WE: BAMBRMERENESRZ —E—-hF—H—H
IR ZAEFT AR 58 i A= R H HA R B 1E R ER
The Group is assessing the impact of these REEFTEZEBRIA - £
amendments, standards and interpretation. The A kBRBZZE - NREBERN
Group will apply these amendments and standards SEAMFENHRERZE
when respective annual periods are effective. BT A R %R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries

()

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where
it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-
facto control may arise from circumstances such
as enhanced minority rights or contractual terms
between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognised in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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ECT——F=-A=+—HIFE

2. ETES:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

2.

72

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=-ZT—=

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.
lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

If this consideration is

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

n‘/T\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ2=-_ZT——F=A=+—HLFE

Ci 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#)

gﬁ (Continued)

&

o |

E“}H (c) Subsidiaries (Continued) () KMEAR @

< B

= ! (i)  Consolidation (Continued) (i) #HEEEwm@

%% (c)  Disposal of subsidiaries (0 HEWELRE

§§ When the Group ceases to have control, any RERER AR hI R

é retained interest in the entity is re-measured REEZ ERRE#ER

- to its fair value at the date when control is REEEHIEEB 2 A
lost, with the change in carrying amount TEEHE  BER
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is HEZHEIRRTER
the initial carrying amount for the purposes B HE % A BRI MR R
of subsequently accounting for the retained UNCIE G%QT&%E&
interest as an associate, joint venture or BEZREBER HA
financial asset. In addition, any amounts FERPIRREE It
previously recognised in other comprehensive AN+ ST AT H Ath 2 E R
income in respect of that entity are accounted nEREZERERZ
for as if the Group had directly disposed of E ] & IR A E
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean EEELERMEE
that amounts previously recognised in other BEZAHRARBA]
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit BERBIRSERTEE 2 E
or loss. WatER 2 R B S

HEBH-
(i)  Separate financial statements (i) BUEH#HZE

74

Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

P M B A B Z #E a5 Th AR AR
RRRMESIHR - A BIFIRE
ZEEREHER -MEARZ
EHERARFIED W R EK
AR B EEARR

EWERHBARZERZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE=-ZT—=

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the interests is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s interests
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Ci 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#)
Efﬁ (Continued)
&
o |
E“}H (d) Associates (Continued) (d) BE&ERF (80
< B
%! The Group determines at each reporting date whether $%I7§’\R Hqﬂ RRAR
g% there is any objective evidence that the interests in T)%,?Q/TE’\ B & TZ% 5 R
Ei’é the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group TE"W:]&IE/EMERE & - RIS &R B R HG
g% calculates the amount of impairment as the difference ERAZ A E & R A BRE(E 2
§§ between the recoverable amount of the associate and ZHFHEBESR XNRERA
é its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to [EEBERARZEI B TEREHE
- ‘share of results of associates’ in the income statement. ok
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream REBREBERNF ZHEZ EFR
transactions between the Group and its associate are T?%Q%Fﬁéimﬂ&l@ﬂéﬂﬁﬁ
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the H ISR MR HEE A JERRE R
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. ERBERRZERRR - f‘??Fﬁ
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction AXIRHEEELEERBEISE
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset GRAREREETAEE - EHNE
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been Rk B AR s BERBEER
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the BBk DA R B AN £R [ BT ER AN 2 1K
policies adopted by the Group. RRFF—He
Dilution gains and losses arising in interests in associates REFENRZ REMEEBERE
are recognised in the income statement. U R R IR ©
(e) Foreign currency translation (e) HMEH]E

76

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Group’s presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB").

() HNERZIEH
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE
FESTBERME (&)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (e) IINEBRE (m)

(i) Transactions and balances (i) XBRAEE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
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the functional currency using the exchange rates BEHAEMERHZRT :%5
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or ERGE LSRN HEE &
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign ZERGRIRFEREXRBRE S
exchange gains and losses resulting from the RN ECEREEREA -
settlement of such transactions and from the B EE 2 IMNE K REE

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary BEWR S RER

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within “finance
income or costs”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement
within “Other (losses)/gains, net”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised

BHEFRARBREREEE
BEIR B Z E W s RBEER
Wik Z [BE WA KA
20 A H b IME W K
BRAR YR (B (8
B) W FE] 25

LASMNES SHE I 47 5 58 7% 7
HjEZi"iﬁffIi{ %2 ﬁfﬁ

EEEZER%% K78 5 R

cost of the security and other changes in the carrying EEzEMEEH 2 HIELS
amount of the security. Translation differences T o B AR SH R AR Z 8 2 [E 3,
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised ZRERRTER MREE

in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial

2 b Eh BI 7 H 2 T
PR o

FEBKMEeREERAE ()

assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value WRATEFELFERER
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or BRIBZIRAR) 2 EHEZRIER
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation NP EREZ —#HRER
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as R FEEEIESHEE (f

equities classified as available-for-sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2.

78

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a)

(b)

(0

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly building,
plant and machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment,
motor vehicles, oil properties (Note 2(g)) and properties
under construction, is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation, other than oil properties, is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Shorter of term of lease and
21 years

Plant and machinery 5-11 years

Others 3 - 11 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(k)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the income statement.

2.

(f)
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2.

80

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(g) Oil properties

()

(i)

Exploration and evaluation

Qil exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the “successful efforts” method
of accounting. Costs are accumulated on a field-
by-field basis. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed as incurred. Costs directly associated with
an exploration well, and exploration and property
leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised until
the determination of reserves is evaluated. If it is
determined that commercial discovery has not been
achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Capitalisation is made within property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets according to the
nature of the expenditure.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration
and evaluation assets are tested for impairment and
transferred to development tangible and intangible
assets. No depreciation and/or amortisation is
charged during the exploration and evaluation
phase.

Development assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation or
completion of infrastructure facilities such as
platforms, pipelines and the drilling of commercially
proven development wells, is capitalised within
property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets according to nature. When development is
completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil
properties or intangible assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

. . e . .. £y - > o
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#) 22
(Continued) F4
(g) Oil properties (Continued) (9) PHEE (#)
TG
(iii)  Oil properties (i) #RH B E MTE
iy =
s o 4 o B
Oil properties are aggregated exploration and RhmEEEZERBYR KRG i
evaluation tangible assets, and development BREEREEEZEME ]
expenditures associated with the production of HEZzERRAX - D%i
proved reserves.
e

(iv) Depreciation/amortisation (i) HE - #y

Oil properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation, depreciation and
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The successful efforts method of accounting
is used for oil properties. Under this method, all
costs for development wells, support equipment
and facilities, and acquired proven mineral interests
in oil properties are capitalised. Proven oil reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil which
geological and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to the recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic
prices and costs as
of the date the estimate is made. Prices include
consideration of changes in existing prices provided

and operating conditions, i.e.,

only by contractual arrangements, but not on

escalations based upon future conditions.

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation of
capitalised costs of oil properties is calculated on
the unit-of-production basis over the total proven
and probable reserves of the relevant area. The unit-
of-production rate for depletion, depreciation and
amortisation of oil properties takes into account
the expenditure incurred to date, together with
projected future development expenditure and the
volume of oil produced in the current year.

BROm B E R A AR H 1% R A
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FHRERBRYIR FmEE
BRREGFOEARR - RIBULTT
% RFREORH - BB R A
RiEARFHEERNE W
BRABERSOME KA
BEFTER - RABHHEER
BB BRI T » B
FEEE B H B4R B A 6
T EM TREEE RS
BHEEAEARRFRELD FmH
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Z B F R R A4 1 5] BE Tt
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2.

82

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(g) Oil properties (Continued)
(v) Impairment — exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for
impairment when reclassified to development
assets, or whenever facts and circumstances indicate
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the exploration and evaluation
assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less
costs to sell and their value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, the exploration and
evaluation assets subject to testing are grouped with
existing cash-generating units of production fields
that are located in the same geographical region.

(vi) Impairment — development assets and oil
properties

Development assets and oil properties are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows.

(h) Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments representing prepaid land
costs are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Prepaid land lease payments are amortised to the income
statement over the term of relevant land leases.

2.

==

(9)

(h)

EEtHERESE @)

FREE (@)
(v) HE-BFERTFEEE

BREFEEETIREN D
BREREERANHEAR
BZFERBAKETRE
B R ER B TR R KA
HEEZREEBRRLAIK
OG5 2 Z 8T UATERR - AT
o] 5 B8 AR B 35 B BN R B
REFHEEZAFEER
EREEMEZREE  ptaf
EREM S - BB Z BR
Ko nf (it & E Ty BB AL B — 3
BeRERARBZIRDE
EBEMBR AR -

(i) BiE-RREERKHEE

EREERRAEENHR
ETEMHARERELMBR
AR T {6 7] B 0 U (3 55 A
BE - REBRREERTE
HBHE AR EE 2 & /R
RN EEBREERNTE
MHEERAEERBEZR
=& - BAHEREN S BE
K JE 2 8 3 7] B3R

SRBETHRA

AN wBEERE

T8 £ 4 AH & SR8 BN FE A £ b K
A DREARL G B BHERE
SR 5B - T T A E R
TH R AR+ 70 B A 83 A
CEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e IR R AR B T

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

0]

()]

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and building, are properties held for long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. Land held under operating leases
are accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as
if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over the shorter of the term of the
lease and 50 years, using the straight-line method.

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates represents the excess of consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.
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2.

84

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

()]

Intangible assets (Continued)

(@

(i)

(iii)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at historical
cost and have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using unit-of-production method. The
units of exploitation rights are reviewed annually in
accordance with the production plans of the Group
and the proved and probable reserves of the crude
oil.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method of ten years over the expected
life of the customer relationship.

2.

=E

()]

EETHERESE @)

Z=Z =R

BEE (@)
(i) HE#

(ii)

(iii)

HEESFETRERY  HE
BEHFHBERBARERR
A e IR RER - (EH AR
Tl - A REE R E S
FRIELLE - FIR@ SR AL
EBEEAFERFEEKRAZ
B & o (ERENERERR
X BERITEED-

BEERF A 2

P W5 2 B BR AT AT R R R S
RAZ5 - BRREZAIE M
FH MR PR AR R 5 86 7
BR-BESHE R A EBRG
HoRREZEMNTFIRAS
BrrEFBREERBE
Roh 2 E TR -

EFHEE

EBAGRMEBZEFH
FRREERZ AT ERR -
EFBEBAEREZAER
FH - WIRARANRRETHEA
AR o B DA B AR+ F R IA
BEBE A E B E 5
Fic



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e R R AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#) §§
(Continued) % %
53
(k) Impairment of non-financial assets (k) FERMEERE %g
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, WHEBERFRTFH 2 EE (Fla0 L%”%
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are tested ) BARH BEEFRRREE " i
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to TAR BEREEMHHBERERRE “‘j
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events BRREENEEERDR SR ﬁ;
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying B EERBBRE REB gf
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is BREEZREEBLETKRE S DH?
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying B EZRBER-AIROISEAEE Ef
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable Z RN FERHE R AN B R (EE W
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs EZREERE - BERENS
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing BEBRBUA#MIREEREZ R
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for BEX(ReELSBMN)EE - FS
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash- BEE (FREE/N) BERE AIE
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill EEREBHAHEES S RER
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible [B] 2 AT Ak °
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
(I) Financial assets (n =®mEE
(i)  Classification (i) o#E
The Group classifies its financial assets as held- rEBEKECREESRAR

for-trading investments, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(@) Held-for-trading investments

%f’ﬁf@“i?&é - B UK
BUARAIHEHERE - DR
FUESREEZ BOTE -
ERERVLHEREREE

B

@) HFEREKRE

Held-for-trading investments are financial RIEEBERARFHEE
assets held for trading. A financial asset is B2 oRMEE- fMKE
classified in this category if acquired principally —HeMEEZEER
for the purpose of selling in the short term. M ARERBRLE - Al
Derivatives are also categorised as financial ZBEESHHEFEL

assets held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

AR o BR IR IR MRS
e BAGTETANS
AREEEZEME
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2.

86

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i

Classification (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group'’s loans and receivables comprise “Trade
receivables” (Note 2(p)), “Deposits and other
receivables” (Notes 2(p)) and “Cash and cash
equivalents” (Note 2(qg)) in the statement of
financial position.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Held-
for-trading investments are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
investments and financial assets held-for-trading
investments are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the held-for-trading investments are presented
in the income statement within
gains, net”
Dividend income from held-for-trading investments is

“other (losses)/
in the period in which they arise.

recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the Group'’s right to received payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale
investments are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale investments calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

(m) Impairment of financial assets

0}

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

2. FTES:

TR E (&)

() SHEE @

(i)

(iii)

BHERE (@)

ENBRRAUHHEREZE
FEHESORER - RERER
BRZ Rt A FEFEAS
AR A -

EAERFBOEFTEZ AT H
HEREZFI BN UK
RBREMAZ —5R D o ATHE
HERE 2 BRERALE B ®
STURER BB 2 R B - A R
RERREMBAZ 5

BT A

EEEARENIT 2 BAIE
HERRAREARE BRFHE

EEFLESRREREER
BEAGN SREEHEARE
B RIEFRERMEAARNE
L

(m) EWEERE

(i)

BEE AT R EE

LR B 5 3RS H R (A R
X—HERMEERTFER
BENRBERETIL-EF
EEREEBRRATHEE
EFERREEE — AR
ZHEEMH([BXREMF]) R
HZEBRREMHE A EGHRZ
HemEEARASREE
MG ARRRERELETE
B AR Z AT BB ER
RE A AR B R
BEER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement. Any subsequent events or
evidence proved that the impaired amount cannot
be recoverable, it was written off and derecognised
from the statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZE=-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2.

90

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(n)

(ii) Assets classified as available-for-sale
investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity investments classified

2. FTEESTHBEME (&)
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as available-for-sale investments, a significant or BHEATEBRZEXIRATK
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security R B AR T 2 & 2R (B /) &
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are B WAt ESRMEERT

impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale investments increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Assets and liabilities are
classified as current if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
derivatives are presented in the income statement within
“other (losses)/gains, net” in the period in which they
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form
an integral part of the Group's cash management and
often fluctuate from being positive to overdrawn. In
the consolidated and company statements of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

(o)

(p)

(a)

FTESTHTHEREERE (@)

#H

FE TR A R A BB FER & T
ZBIE B B o B AR T 8 B N4
BEREE AR FEELTEXRS
B2 R AR S ER AR 2 A &
BRI

ESRWRE ANRE BT
R EL fth B W SR IR

B RRFIARAAEEN AT X
5872 S50 E & 7 dn S b RS
i & (7] 25 P U ER B = 2SR 55 8 Lk
B FENRIE  RE R E A REREIA
BB E-—FH—FARKE (%
EREMBEXBERELEFHNE
MEEER) DI A RBEE &
A - EIEREVEED IR

BHRYGRIAR ANFRE RERE
fib FE UK #) 25 A R P ERER - H
18 7 FA B IR A SOK IR S A AN N BR
BEREE -

RERREEEERR

EZ$ fﬂﬁmbiﬁ’#"fﬂﬁﬁiﬁf—é
ZEHEABEFHEA S RITAM
T RESMBER=EARARNZ
HitEHmnstRE  UREAER
EREEIRAEERCER 2A
BEDR B E N F IEE R 5L 835 2
2B 2 RITEX -EFEERR
AR R A - SRITBETIAR
BRERNZER-

&
BRI S RE R o

HERBBNETHRRBIRAEZH
AR T 5 R PSSR Z R
D (HIBHIA) o

91

>
=)
=)
c
i
Pl
)
°
e}
a
N
2
o
|1
L]
|
|
1

o
(0]
o
IS)
>
@
o
5
m
>
i
Q
<2
T
o
=3
5
«
a
=
3
=
(0]
o
|

|
|1 EH

e

=
Bt

ENAHE: SRR ECH



=

40
o
i
H:j,
Hﬁ,
I
|
H‘H
|
fidy
I
N
5
o~
i2
g
&
=
=3
c
C
<

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 aERIZERZ A IR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

92

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense and
included in finance costs in income statement in the year in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e IR R AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the statement of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

94

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

(w) Retirement benefit costs

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e R R AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#)
(Continued)
(w) Retirement benefit costs (Continued) (w) EARBEFEA (&)

wE
payment obligations once the contributions have been #— N RE o AR T e i i
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit REEERANER -ANHFIRR &
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are IR & 3R Rk AT IR A AR R A K e 2R -
bl
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a REE- -
reduction in the future payments is available.
(x) Share-based payment transactions (x) HUABRBERZRS
(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment () URBGEEXLURGIHZ
transactions x5

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value

of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and
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2.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(x) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

()

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company'’s financial statements.

2.

==

(x)

EEtHEREE @)

DRBEIRZRS (8)

(i)

(i)

URBZEWLRGTFHZ
X5 (#)

EREERSRE 2 ERE
BER FMHEEZRRR
BRAG 1 TR DDA — B E 58 = 7
XN B R ARER &
HIR R P B 1 T 5 B 1R 8
BERZEIM N RET
BRTREEVE L B HATR
HARTS - E bt st R R i1
HRB =R A HHREZH
XmE ARG BHATEE
BEF-NBHMEHR BER
BIEM S E 2 BB R 1 5
EUERERE 2 BREHR
B ATtEL 2 it LEKER
ERARREMAR (WA H
HMELZZE W #EalE
HABEEE -

FERBARTT BB - AR ETT
FTAL - WER 2 P13 SRR R
EAEEEHERZEARR G
ABA (HE) KA 5 8 o

EEHEREURG HFZX
Z

AR A ) AN 5 B X A AY
BERTERATANBER
BB REARAFES
BERBHAFEDZ2ER
H BB AFERE  REB
HR R R A 3 AN T P 8 1 )
MIKE - WARER AR R R
Bk 2 Bz o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=-ZT—=

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed
over to the granter, are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from sale of crude oil, chemical products and
commodity products is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.
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(Continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from a fixed price service contract is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. When the outcome of a service contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that is probable will
be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

(2)

R W (&)

AR & 40 2 A& RS m] FEfh At
AIBEEBRBENZRBETIIRET
BOLHERR U2 EHARNE T
KRTEZBEETHE -WRES
M2 EREORASEME AR
SRR D 2 FTEA S HIRAR
BT IARERR © & KA AN B A
RNHER B -

fHEKRALRETEBRES K
AR TRE B 1R T BN B fE R R
R o

MEWARAERNEZHER &
B R EUGRIA R RER - N
EefEaEREER RS E
R TRZ RERMKITIR Z A5
ARBRERE WHEEGITRF;HE
VHERRMEBA-BEREERR
JE W R IR 2 F) B A BR IR B R
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BEZBRBUN T LARER
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#)
(Continued)

(aa) Leases (aa) HE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term.

B A R K AR L B R (B S 45
HHEAANEE EERKLENR
g RELEBEXNOFE (0

AEEHESTYE BB NHRME-
MAEERY FAXEERNIE
R B E R - R - BRES R Rk Y
HEREAREHNE-RMEHER
HEMBE REEMENATE
ReERHEENFBREMEZHRE
EERL-

BEASHIEREBERMBX
HeHEEEEEEMRM X
18 5H A E A = BB A FROR - B B AR
AR FESMOREERANE RS R
PXH AR ELERRGAEN
BElERAMAE -RIFREHEME
BHYE BERREREENE
RERRHERMEZFREEE
THE -
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Ci 3. Financial Risk Management 3. BiBEkRER
il (a) Financial risk factors (a) HMBEBEEE
I K
|
;%T The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial AEBENEBEESE Y TS ER
En risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest (B IEINEE LB ~ 1) 2= [ B 2 (B AR [
= rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The ) FERRERDECARSES
§§ Group’s overall risk management programme focuses A ERER ANEBNEEERE
g% on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks BET &I R IE © BT 35 ) T BA RA
gg to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's ESE I @b R i NS LT B PR
B financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial MBI E - AEERBITE
- instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The financial SR T ASRAmEGREE TER -
instruments held by the Group at the date of statement of REBRUBMAEX BHBAFE 2
financial position are set out as follows: SRITASHIIMT :
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables ERKkERGIE (B
(including cash and B RREGEEER)
cash equivalents) 313,791 299,751
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEIKRE 2,988 35,299
Derivative financial BIEEBEZTESRMTA
instruments held-for-trading 256 1,391
Available-for-sale investments  AJ {5 E & & 6,432 23,414
323,467 359,855
Financial liabilities THEE
Trade and other payables REHEKAZIN 2B S R
stated at amortised cost HAth &5 R IR 126,370 88,727
Derivative financial REEEZTEEmIA
instruments held-for-trading 5,406 15,314
131,776 104,041

100
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BERERE @

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HBEBEEZE (8
Management monitors and manages the financial risk EREFBSMARSERENA
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment HEBTHEEREEEEAEE
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of e AR - 2SR R ETSER
risks. The risks include market risk (including foreign (BN R - X @ R B
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk k) - EERERRREE SR -’
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these AR ZE R BRESHINAT -
risks are set out below. Management manages and EREEEERERZEER ERF
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures AR R EERE e
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i)  Market risk (i) THEEE
Foreign currency risk management S 2 B R
The Group conducts its treasury functions and REBEETEREEL R
maintains certain cash and cash equivalents and INERFBETRERRES
bank borrowings in foreign currencies, hence BEA RRITEE  AtEE
is exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group SNERBR - AEBIFEBE Y E
manages its foreign currency risk by closely RINEEXNEBAEIRH
monitoring the movements of the foreign currency SNEE BB o ZNER B B AL SN
exchange rates. The Group currently does not KSR ER - AT BIRE B
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, BINERR - MR A ER
management monitors foreign exchange exposure ZRE R ERINE R o
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REEAIINEDENE]EE
currency denominated monetary assets and EXREEaBERPBHARRLEK
monetary liabilities at the date of statement of HEARAREAENAT
financial position are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
gE a1
2012 2011 2012 2011
ZE-Zf —E——% CZB-Zf —ZT——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT
United States Dollars Erx([%xl)

("US$") 52,931 4,220 - 6,530
HK$ A 103,747 301,012 88,186 109,352
Great British Pound HgE([HE])

("GBP") - 3,220 - -
RMB ARE 91,032 46,011

112,284

177,977
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3.

102

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's loss in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the date
of statement of financial position.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive (negative) number below indicates a
decrease (increase) in post-tax loss (2011: a decrease
(increase) in post-tax loss) where US$, HK$ and GBP
strengthen against the relevant functional currency
of the Group entities, that is RMB. For a 5% (2011:
5%) weakening of US$, HK$ and GBP against the
relevant functional currency of the Group entities,
that is RMB, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss.

3.

B ERER (&)

(a)

iRk EE (@)

(i)

TSRk (&)

S IR B 7T

TRETHEASEEESSE
KR 1O B R0 B AR &R
FHMAEEEZSHMRA
SEEE LR E-

BRESMEBERLEEN
SNEGTEEMIER  WREF
RIZERN5% (ZF ——
Fo5% )EEMARE @R
H-THE(B)HEERT 0
E BB REE R ERR
SEERNNEEBARE
X 7 RIRRBiREREE
A (M) (ZT——%F:
BREEERRD (M) ) -
iMZETT » AW & 2545 5 AR AN
SEERNDEEEARE
ERRE5% (ZT——4F:
5% ) AIBR B 1% 5 1R A% H 3R

LEBHERHTE-
2012 2011
—E—-—F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Us$ = 2,647 (115)
HK$ ke 778 9,583
GBP HEE - 161
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 &

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (Note 33).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank
borrowings and derivative financial liabilities.

The Group's cash flow interest risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the
Group’s HK$ denominated borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances, variable-rate bank borrowings and
derivative financial liabilities. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2011: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease for variable-rate bank
borrowings and 10 basis point (2011: 10 basis point)
increase or decrease for bank balances are used
for interest rate sensitivity analysis and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

In order to keep borrowings at fixed rate and to
minimise the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
enters into floating to fixed interest rate swaps to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk exposure
associated with certain amount of borrowings
that carry interests at floating rate totalling
HK$53,826,000 (2011: HK$68,754,000). The Group
does not expose to fair value interest rate risk as all
bank borrowings were at floating rate.

nv-_r\
ECTE——F=-A=+—HIFE

B AR T

3. BRERERE @

(a) HEERREZE &)

(i)

TSRk (&)

FIE R &

AEBEHEEESRITE
B2 AFEF R (KT
33) c AREEIEH B AR
@R R ERTEERITES
REBBEZHESRENERR -

AEEMBESRENERR
TEEFRNREAEKE LB
BIEEERMELENEBR
TRERE ([BBRITRZE
HE]) RS-

LATR 89 8RB 9 1T B AR 3R 3t
RITEESR ER fﬁﬂfﬁE&m
E/i\rﬂ‘é{a B E R BT E
DT TR AR RS B 4 EEH%
MAFEH S T ARNEME
FEADARFEE - FIRGUKE
AMBERZERITEE L
FHe TRASOMEER (ZF——
I SOfREE) RRTTA &
Fr TR 10MEER (= F——

FI0EEH)FE AKRK
EIREH AR 24 I A gL &
ez 7t -

ATHREEEFNEEEX
EEERERE TR X
BB AEBITZEE
#ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂ EBEET
RELSHERBAAAEN
53,826,0007C (= ——% :
7 1#68,754,0007T ) K15 B 4
RN TEFERR - AR
FTERTIEEARZEEE.
NN A AT E S NS R
KRR o
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3.

104

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2011: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group'’s post-tax loss derived
from variable-rate borrowings and interest rate swap
for the year ended 31 March 2012 would increase/
decrease by HK$269,000 (2011: HK$331,000).

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2011: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss derived
from bank balances for the year ended 31 March
2012 would decrease/increase by HK$78,000 (2011:
HK$165,000).

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and unquoted
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared to
index of relevant stock markets and other industry
indicators.

3.

BEERER (&)

(a)

R EE (&)
(i) HEEE (&)

FU 3 B fZ 74T (4%)

fiti R R 4% F+ /T BR501E
A (ZT——F :50@E
) RFTE T 2 RAEREF
T AAEEREE-T
——&E=A=+—RHItEE
REZBEERFEEHY
Br iR B A 0R
#269,000L (=T —— &
7 #331,0007T ) °

M FIR G EF T B10MEE
B(ZE——F10EEH) R
BRI ERERITTE
BAEERHE T ——F=
A=+—BLEEERBRTE
BRI BT 1 B 18 1R 18 0
78,000 (Z T — — &
7 #165,0007T) °

1E1E R

AEBEFEBHELER LMK
AR5 M IE BT R E 5
Y EFERRR - EE LW
PRARE A HORE T IRIEE B
B E R 5 R I LA B
REME R EMITRERL
BI&IEL -
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at
the reporting date. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 10% (2011: 10%)
higher/lower, the Group's post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2012 would decrease/increase by
HK$299,000 (2011: HK$3,530,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the Group’s
investments in unquoted equity securities are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the date of statement of financial position.

Credit risk

At the date of statement of financial position, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors of the Company consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

nv-_r\
ECTE——F=-A=+—HIFE

3. HBERE

B AR T

EIB (#)

(a) HEERREZE &)

(i)

(i)

TSRk (&)

TR

AT B8Rk E 2 i B R IER
s B ER IR ARG R R
HoSEMBRATANER
B EH S THI0% (=8
——F:10%) ' AIRAEBER
ai&—7 :ﬁiiﬂzif—
ALEEEMBRRESRES
AREEENRENDF
(ER-E NP R B b

299,0007C (=& ——4F : &
#3,530,0007T ) °
AR AEERHBRREKA

LA B AR {R] AT 38 Bl 22 08
BERKRFEIF ETRAES
BfE - Bt 825 5D
#r e

= E B 5

PSR R B - & E %
FHARERITREMEZRA
SERIYBRROAEE
RAEERRTYBHEE M
MRARATAE R RN E
BEERTEMES-

RTEEREEERR A%
EeEEERE-—([FAEKE
BEEEEERE FELIEK
H b EEERIEFr - FEARIRENERAE
TEANKEE B EER -
S AR BN RS B A R
B & IR {E 5 8 5 E 7 & AT W
El &5 R EERE NS
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

ii 3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BERERE @

T 4

gﬁ (a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () HBEREMREZE (&

= K

Ji %‘Lw (ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEREE (&)

B

% g The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the mEBESFAIRBAERMNE

§§ counterparties are banks or financial institutions with BERR RESHFHAEES

?g high credit ratings assigned by international credit- HEREEFRREL TS

2 % rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC. EERBIMIRITS © R E

gg ok BB A $R1T o

- The Group has concentration of credit risk as AEEEHEFREERR:
35% (2011: 41%) and 57% (2011: 66%) of the THRNE S EKRGRIBRTEN
total trade receivables was due from the Group's 35% (ZF——F:41% ) &
largest customer and the five largest customers 57% (ZZE——F:66%)%D
respectively within the chemical products segment. BIR B TEmER DB
The Group has assessed the credit worthiness of AEEGAEFPRAKRES -
these customers and all of these customers have AEEENEZETRNGE
good historical repayment records and of low default K mzERFBAHE
rate. In this regard, the Directors considered that the RIFH BN #ER K7
credit risk is low. The Group also has concentration R-Bit EFRAEERR
of geographical risk as over 90% of the Group's WA o ARANE E#190%H)
turnover was generated from the customers from EHEHEHREREARLMN
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). (FEDER HMAEHR

B[R R RR AR
(iii) Liquidity risk (i) mEELEE

106

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants and timely negotiates with the lenders if
any non- compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. At the date of statement of
financial position, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and short-term bank loan facilities of
HK$10,099,000 (2011: HK$18,711,000).

REE R E

REERBDESRERE A%
BERRGFHERERR
RUABNEEMEERHEE
ERRERERBNBTE
MR MREFEERKF
EREERRTEENDH
KGR B ST B R - W
BHEEMERZHNEBER
HHER B - o B B B TR E T HE
75 o

AEEBREBERTBEEARE
EMRBE SRR RIS
MREBH AEEES
AHEANERBASE X
MEBHBRTEREESE
10,099,0007T (=& —— 4 :
75 %18,711,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

. . . ot > S
3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. HKERERE (@) £
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HBEREZE @ %%
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) FBHELEE () ﬁ 5

¥

Iz

Liquidity and interest risk tables RBEERFFmEX &

M

11 K

The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANAEENIEITES Ei

_ N b H

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BB ENRTELREER - B2

liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on ZE IR AN B A A E oK i

e

the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are at floating rates, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the weighted average interest rates
by reference to the HIBOR of the Group's variable-
rate borrowings at the date of statement of financial
position.

In addition, the following table details the
Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments, except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments, since
the settlement of which would be satisfied by the
issue of new ordinary shares and does not involve
any cash outflows. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
outflows on derivative instruments (except for the
issued warrants classified as derivative financial
instruments) that settle on a net basis. When the
amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrated by the weighted average
interest rate by reference to HIBOR of the Group's
variable-rate borrowings and the terms stipulated
in the contract of derivative financial instruments
existing at the end of the reporting period. The
liquidity analysis for the Group's derivative financial
instruments (except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments) are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities
are essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of derivatives.

NHRWRF A REBAE
MARITRREREE - Hfth
FUTESREBENIBET
LA TE B (B8 A IR R - 32
REFMNEREAEOHR SR
E-MNERER/ZHNE
ARMRSENHLSERY
MR E B R AR B B ME
E0EBRITRZERS - LA
R R R G o

UESh TRFINAEE A ELT
EeRIE(DERITESRH
TENSHITRREZRIN
TYERMEEE A A BITH T
BREA BTN RIEARS
WD) ERBE & DT - &K
TR AR EEEENDT
ETARMBREHRESAH
FR(DERITEERTAMN
EBITRREBRIN T HE

fis FE A< B9 2 2B FIEETE - RIART
KRENSREN2ERBEH
BEREAEETZEREENSE
BIRTEZEFR SN MEFH
FRATER TR R - PA K
TELMITASKMATRLY
BRETE -HRNERERRE
WEHAHTRITETAD
ReneRkEtaARERER.
HASENITESRTIA (5
BRAITESHMIANE #1T
RARIEEBRIN) TREME ST T
REBESLZIE R MRS
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fi 4 . . . R Pt e
f‘gﬁ 3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. UIBERER (&)
! (a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HEERREZEH#H)
2 14
BH |
T (iii)  Liquidity risk (continued) (i) FHELEB &)
2|
£
= Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) B E R RFIEREGRZ (&)
?%‘} Weighted Total
E g average Within Over undiscounted Carrying
5 < interest rate Tyear 1-2years  2-5years 5years cash flows amount
& s AFRRS
F= RER 12 2-5% SENLE REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL BT  ABTT  A%TR  A%TR  BETR

As at 31 March 2012 R-B-=f

=ZR=+-H
Trade payables B SRR 41,573 - - - 41,573 41,573
Accruals and FEETIE B REA
other payables e3R8 84,797 - - - 84,797 84,797
Bank borrowings (Note (@) ~ #R{THEE
GEIEY 2.76 35,071 20,241 - - 55,312 53,826
Derivative - net settlement  $T4 TA— 2%
(Note (b)) &5 (MED)
Interest rate swaps Gipset i 2,708 1,377 1,413 - 5,498 5,308
Foreign currency INERBAN
forward contracts 57 43 - - 100 98

As at 31 March 2011 RZB-——-F

=B=+-H
Trade payables Z 5 HIE 45,495 = = = 45,495 45,495
Accruals and FEEtIE A REAM
other payables B 43,232 - - - 43232 43232
Bank borrowings (Note (@)~ #RfTHEE
(M) 2.20 25,068 45,200 - - 70,268 68,754
Derivative - net settlement ~ #7T4£ T & —/F%
(Note (b)) EE (HEb)
Interest rate swaps ki 8 480 480 1,020 - 1,980 1,975
Foreign currency INBREBEH
forward contracts 2,628 2,110 129 - 4,867 4,555
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e RS ERAR MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE
3. MBEBERE ®

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Notes:

(@) For the Group's variable-rate interest borrowings, the
weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings at the end of each reporting period
is used for undiscounted cash flow analysis.

(b) The undiscounted cash flow of derivative financial
instruments was determined assuming all variables used in
the fair value calculation at the end of each reporting period
remained the same until maturity.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the date of statement of financial position.

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank borrowings (Note 33), net of cash
and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

(a)

(b)

iRk EE (@)
Giii) HEHELERE (&)
RBEE RFFERK (&)
@  BAEEHTAEEME K
FRASRES T HRARE

BERBREAKENZEME
BHMETHERBRFIRG;HE -

) EESASRIANAFER
SREN DERREREN
EREATHMA B
ATEIOFAZREHTE -

EREFAETEEREET
BIAZEE BRFBHE
ZEBEENFBHARRNEK A
EEZMANEREZHEER
Brma s -

EXEHE

AEEEEEERNUERAEENA
ZEBRERMAFETALE I
R ERELEEEBESERTA
e P S FNEIEIERANE SE: kS
REEEBEFEREFIE-

AEENEAGERRBRERFHR
BIRERITHEE (K33 - MR
ERASEFERE ) RARFREAA
EhEmER (B2 2 BTRARME
) -

109

>
=)
=)
c
i
Pl
o
°
e}
a
N
2
]
|1
]

|

|
1

o
(0]
o
IS)
>
4
o
5
m
>
e
Q
2
T
<}
=
=
«Q
a
=
3
=
(0]
o
|
-
K
E
&
Bl
3
af
=
>
el

FlESHL



=

40
o
i
H:j,
Hﬁ,
I
|
M‘H
|
fidy
I
N
5
o~
i2
g
&
E]
c
C
<

R

%)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 55 gEIRIA%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

3.

110

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Capital management (Continued)

(c)

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated by bank borrowings divided by the
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March
2012 was 6.06% (2011: 6.74%).

Fair value of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

3. BIERERE @)

(b)

(c)

BEARAEHE (@)

BE=ENEHTA RN EARE 1F
REHARBNN-R EXEEBES
RARBSERAFRZER 1R
BEENER AREKEBIKMN
BB BN BT - A BB DA K B
THEFIBRRAEES FTHE
BREANRE-

AEBREAESBL R ZEE (B
BITEERUNBEENE ) EEE
Ko REBR - ZE——F=F=+—
HzEEBEBLER606% (=T
——F:674%) °

EMIANAFE

TREGHEEDTRAFEINRLZ
SRITE - PRKZRNZEHEMNT :

. HRAEEXBEERRTS
ZHE(CRERARE) (F—
&) -

. BB —MRETRIE ZRE N
BELABZABERE A
%A AEE (AER)kHE
B (AVRBER) 28K (5
=) e

. BERBBELFREANEE
TS8R 2 W ABUR (BIFER
BREHAZIR) (B=F)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

. . . =t L jj> sl
Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. MBERERE @ 53
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) () £WMIAEMNAFEH §§
The following table presents the Group's assets and TREFNRPBARN K B BARF ﬁg
liabilities that are measured at their fair values at the date BifE2AEBrEERBE- “’ﬁ” 5

of statement of financial position. e

B

e

2012 2011 i

cE-cF 3% 41

of af

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total ?

-4 | 24 At E £=k =R At =l

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTR  E®Tn  E®TRn  E®TR BRTr BRTr  BRTr  AETx

Available-for-sale IHHEERE
investments - 3,17 - 3,17 - 3414 - 3414

Financial assets at FVTPL R AFE:T ABHMN

SREE
Held-for-trading investments  $5{EE B Ry & 2,988 - - 2,988 35,299 - - 35,299
Derivative financial assets T4 & BEE - 256 - 256 - 994 397 1,391
2,988 256 - 3,44 35,299 994 397 36,690
Financial liabilities at FVTPL A FEt ABEH
tREE
Derivative financial liabilities T4 £ B & & - 5,406 - 5,406 - 1,975 4,555 6,530
Warrants R - - - - - - 8,784 8,784
- 5,406 - 5,406 = 1975 13339 15,314
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in both RAEFERN F—REE_HK2
years. i I o o o

111



=

40
i
i
H:j,
hﬁ,
\‘ |
M‘H
|

(202
I
N
i2
g
&
E]
c
C
<

fR7

%)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 25 EJR2A%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

3.

112

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments during the year:

BEERER (&)
()0 &SRMIENAFE @

TRENFRNE=ZRTAZEH:

2012 2011

=E-=F —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

At beginning of the year REF]) (12,942) (67,767)

(Settlement)/de-recognition (&8) BUEHER (2,150) 16,515
Change in fair value RiBR RN AT EEE

recognised in profit or loss 14,994 38,310

Transfer to level 2 EREE N 98 =

At end of the year NGRS - (12,942)

The above change in fair value is included in “other
(losses)/gains, net” and reported as “gain from changes
in fair value of derivative financial instruments” in the
consolidated income statement.

A ERFEZB TG A TEAM (B
18) W FE] RRGRARER
ERRTEEMTAZAFEE
Bl -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimation of oil reserves

Oil reserves are key elements in the Group's investment
decision-making process. They are also an important
element in determining the amount of amortisation of the
oil exploitation rights included in other intangible assets
and depreciation of oil properties included in property,
plant and equipment, and for testing for impairment.
Changes in proved and probable oil reserves, will affect
unit-of-production amortisation, depreciation and
depletion recorded in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the oil exploitation rights and oil properties
related to oil production activities.

A reduction in proved and probable reserves or an
increase in future development expenditure will increase
amortisation charges, depreciation and depletion and
increase net loss. Proved and probable reserve and future
development expenditure estimates are subject to revision,
either upward or downward, based on new information,
such as from development drilling and production
activities or from changes in economic factors, including
product prices, contract terms or development plans. In
general, changes in the technical maturity of oil reserves
resulting from new information becoming available from
development and production activities have tended to be
the most significant cause of annual revisions.

4.

B S ET bt R H B

AEEEREBEELLRMEMCER (B
REMBRATHERRAEZERREFZ
) A E L AR R -

AEBERARBEARRZ G RBRE Al
EEZ G REBEEESRIEEHE
BRERER - AEEXRREZHR TR
MHREEANHEERABZREEFLE
RBREZ AT RBREDLNT

(a) HBHMFEZMEF

AmEEZ AR EARBZIRAR
REFEHER TETL MR
# (GrAR MR EE ) #55 M o
BE (FFAME BFER&EH)FTE
NEETRENRAZEZRE K
AR ARFEEZE (L B E
RARBGA MR ot 80 m A&
R B AR 2 A h B R AE R EROR A
ExBuESEN ERER-

PREA I LIS {20 D o R 2R B B
SRS G INEESH R X - 97 B IR
AR SEINE IR SR - R RS i 8
FOR MR 3 B s fh et AR IR FT B Y
e A E3k[E ™MERT - flan - 2B
BERNEEEDARELERE

ZBILZHEN BREMER &

R R S B 35 At B % - AR BB R - 59
AN B B R B R S| R Bl
EXRRAOMFEEFERENRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

114

(a)

(b)

Estimation of oil reserves (Continued)

As at 1 April 2011, management has revised the Group's
proved and probable reserve estimates with reference to
the latest production results and exploration technigues
resulting in a reduction in loss for the year ended 31 March
2012 amounting to approximately HK$8,603,000.

Impairment of oil exploitation rights included
in other intangible assets and oil properties
included in property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation rights and
oil properties are assessed for impairment when facts
and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts of
them may exceed their recoverable amounts. The Group's
determination as to whether they are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the assets. The
Group relied on experts to assess the geological prospects
for the discovery of oil in the oil field and estimated the
value of oil to be produced in the future at a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. For
drilling costs and other exploration and evaluation assets,
the Group determined whether the related well costs are
expensed if it is determined that such economic viability
is not attained after performing further feasibility studies
that is usually completed within one year of completion of
drilling.

Judgement is required by the Directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

4.

BASRE R fhET R M ()

(a)

(b)

BHRE 2G5 (®)

—T——FNA—H BEEER
SEBRTEERR LB EREMY
NEB 2 HFA KRB EEGEE
R BREHEE—T——F=A
=+—HIEFEZEERDLEE
8,603,0007T °

W

AHFARE (FFARMELE
BE)RFEHEE (FFAME K
B R & E)BE

i =5 1 B 3R 32 2% B 0 e P B I B
B E 2 BRTEE A] BB H AT B iR
SR AEAmRARERHEE
ZEREEETRER (4 - REEE
RTE QM RE R ORI B ER TR
ERZMHFAEEZTRESHE AL
EFEERFEERAERGHEZ
HWHE RS WIREE 2 T I K E
REREE 2 AMEEAERE-
ERERKARE MR RFEE
B AN SR BR TE B AR B A AR 5
ER MG RN ETRE —FR
TERCEIR RO — Z R AT MR FURAD
HREDBRKE R -

BEEReRSBRAMFMANEZRE
REFERAFEHAEH ERETER
RABETEZSHSRERA
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE
4. BARESTHETTRHAE 30

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. The assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition, and requires the use
of judgments and estimates. Management reassesses the
provision at each statement of financial position date.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Management uses its judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments
not quoted in an active market. For derivative financial
instruments such as interest rate swaps and currency
swaps, assumptions are based on quoted market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instrument based on
inputs supported by observable market prices or rates.

(c)

(d)

BEZRWRE ANRE S
R H At fE WK IR

AEEZEEBRELHE S EUK
B2 AT e 2 B EE R E 5 R
IR BRI R E MR YGK
BZRERE-FEDREAEP
REMEBEBAZERRERE AT
U - IEZR (0 R A R (b5 - B
Een&FHitig BB AR
o

TTEESRMIANATE

ERERNEB TS LW ERED
SRTEEBBEANGEETERS
TR AE - SAOTAES B T A (20AIR
EHREBERH)ME  BRIIRE
FrsmEEL YA RTANS
HEBANBEMBRER A
ZEABBELFE-
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and 4. BRESIHATTRAE @

Judgements (Continued)

(e) Recognition of share-based payments (e) BAEUBRGAERZMAR
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The Group’s employees have participated in various share-
based incentive schemes of the Company. Management
of the Group have used the Binomial Model to determine
the total value of the options granted, which is based on
fair value and various attributes of the underlying shares
of the Company. Significant estimates and assumptions
are required to be made in determining the parameters
for applying the Binomial Model, including estimates
and assumptions regarding the risk-free rate of return,
expected dividend yield and volatility of the underlying
shares and the expected life of the share options. In
addition, the Group is required to estimate the expected
percentage of grantees that will remain in employment
with the Group or, where applicable, if the performance
conditions for vesting will be met at the end of the vesting
period. The Group only recognises an expenses for those
options expected to vest over the vesting period during
which the grantees become unconditionally entitled to
theses share-based awards. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material effect on the
determination of the fair value of the options and the
amount of such share-based awards expected to become
vested, which may in turn significantly impact the
determination of the share-based payments.

AEEZEEE2EARRRZZHE
PAR i A it 2 SRR 8 - Rk [
ZEREEER - BARAEEMN
RhBEhgzeE wWHRgEAR
AZHEREEZ A FERZEBNL
Er-RETAR-BEARNz2
205 AIEHERGR RER 21
WRERRDHE HEEEZR
HARR B R R0 A % B PR 4 2 TR AT
FHZ AT R RER - s AREA
EEEDEERAEER (2ER)
7% 57 88 HR SR A 0 2 55 8 SR R 1 A
ERAZEHABS L - RNEEER
EFEANEREGREZAZFARND
RERZERRBENEMLERR
Bz EERBEERF -2
at e iR % S B vl At 1 e E R R 2
RPEREMEBZAEARND A
ERzRBSRELEARXE &
R] BEAE T 4 B E DA AR A0 A L 2 A
REEERTZE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE=-ZT—=

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired through business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations, which requires the Group to
record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair
values on the date of acquisition. Significant judgement is
used to estimate the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired, including estimating future cash flows from the
acquired business, determining appropriate discount rates
and other assumptions.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong and other jurisdictions. Judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes in each of
these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income
tax assets and taxation charges in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

e RS ERAR MR

FZA=+—RLFE

4. BERRSEHEETRHE (@)

(f)

(9)

FIB WA G A U T 3 B E
ERBBZAFE

AEBEEBURBEEERBTAHA
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EMREREMER-

BV 5 2 3 3 P 1§ Bt

REBEAEGMTHE  FEREMENE
HERZMEN AEENEESZ
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HzEFHERBBERAB RN
Mg FHEEETE
1 5 B TE B 2 AT 1S A SR AT

PS4 ©

FRETERZERBEBRZER
EAEREEENEEERR/ER
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

& 5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WaERkHSEEH

i
The Board of Directors of the Company has been regarded as RAAREESWRIEEECERRSE ([£
the Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM"). The Group's BREERKE]) AEEBZEEDEE
operating segments, based on information reported to the RRFEEERRERERDE KRR
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance mmREECER BRALED BN T :

assessment, are as follows:

Annual Report 2011-12 —F——&— —FFFRE

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 55 gERA%

. Manufacture and sale of paints, blended solvents and o BUE RIHE MR RS A B KB E
plastic colorants (“chemical products”, formerly known as B (MMt TEM]  AifEA DRR-
“paints, blended solvents and plastic colorants”); BREBBIRBREZER])

o Provision of painting service (“service contract”); o REBRRE ([REE4])

o Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“crude oil”); o PR EE R ([FA])

e Trading of commodity products (“commodity trading”); . BEEEmER([BmES]) K&
and

. Lease and trading of investment properties (“property . HEREBEREME([MWER
investment”). &)

Service contract and property investment do not meet the RIS & 4 R E B AREDN BB B R

quantitative thresholds required by HKFRS 8 “Operating HEBESYE [ E DM strl 2| AT

segments” for reportable segment, their financial information is BEZEHEER  WEPABERTTA
included in “others” and the corresponding comparatives have [Hfh | 54 MEELEBREFEEET-

been restated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment loss/profit
represents the loss made or profit earned by each segment
without allocation of incomes or expenses which are not
recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group's operating
performance, including finance income, central administration
costs, directors’ emoluments, share of results of associates,
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments and
derivative financial instruments and finance costs.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than interests in associates, available-
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments, derivative
financial assets, tax recoverables, cash and cash equivalents and
other corporate assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group's liability is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.

With effect from the year ended 31 March 2012, the CODM also
reviews the earnings/loss before net finance income and costs,
income tax expenses, depreciation, depletion and amortisation,
unallocated other income less expenses and non-controlling
interests (“EBITDA” or “LBITDA") of the Group. Accordingly,
EBITDA or LBITDA is also presented.

5.

Wi R oBER (@)

REDBE A BREAEE 2 @5t BE

HR - DEEERCRFIES S BELES
EEFEFHEARAER 2 EERBE
Mz WA (BERE RS P RT
BER EFHe SEMERRZEE
HIEFEERERTEGRIAZ N FEE
FUARBERAR) ZBERT ARG 2ER
ok BRER 2 4 A

DREHEEIRRITHER E

RERDBERBAMRSBESEERM
EEERNEERED R (REE
Az AHEERE KEEEK
B -TESREE JREHE Re KB
SEEBRANEMBATEERIN)

D/ S

ITREERRERMOBEENETER
DELRRBEF - TRLEERRELETE
HEHNAEEZ8ELN EUtLEZ7]
BHEH-

BEE-Z——-—F=A=+—HLEFE
B EERERRENEHNASE 2R
BEWARKAFE FEHAZ &
FEREHE RoBREtKRARAZ R
SEIERRE R AT A A, B8 ([EBITDA | 3¢
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

=

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5.
(Continued)

fR 7

%)

(a) Segment revenue and results () PEREREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AREZAZHRREEDEED 2
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results by reportable and operating segments.

Was REESFTOT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-2--EFZA=t+-ALEE

Chemical Crude Commodity Segment
products oil trading Others total Eliminations Consolidated
LIER [ BRES Hit AEAH e &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment revenue 2ERE
External sales HIMHE 240,277 40,686 56,481 2,523 339,967 - 339,967
Inter-segment sales SBERHE 5,026 - - - 5,026 (5,026) -
Total Ch 245,303 40,686 56,481 2,523 344,993 (5.026) 339,967
Segment (LBITDA)/EBITDA 5 3(LBITDA)/EBITDA (97,492) 2,717 (8,836) (8,703) (112,314) - (112,314)
Segment depreciation, PRINE HEREH
depletion and amortisation (6,466) (15,464) (329) (396) (22,655) - (22,655)
Segment results DELE (103,958)  (12,747) (9,165) (9,099)  (134,969) - (134,969)
Unallocated other income RAMEMBA 11,086
Unallocated expenses AABAX (41,335)
Finance income & 611
Finance costs BERK (1,688)
Share of results of associates ~ AEEFE N RIEE (8,973)
Loss before income tax expenses B A5 7 2 A1 5 18 (175,268)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE-—ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. W&ERH7EEFR (&) gg
(Continued) §§
-

8¢

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) ZEWRERFEE (R = Z
N2

13

For the year ended 31 March 2011 %‘H 5

HE-T-—FZASt-BLFE we

Chemical Crude  Commodity Segment “‘ ﬁj

products ol trading Others total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated ﬁ i%

tIEm RE AmE5 it HEAR 35 54 g;

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 of

BETT  BBTT  E%Tx A%t BT BETr BETx
(restated) (restated)
(5&5)  (&E75)

A=

Segment revenue FERE

External sales HINEE 239,728 6,595 3,196 32,879 282,398 - 282,398

Inter-segment sales AEFHEE 11,622 = = = 11,622 (11,622) =
Total At 251,350 6,595 3,19 32,879 294,020 (11,622) 282,398
Segment (LBITDA)/EBITDA 5 %(LBITDA)/EBITDA (78,267) (173,742) (1,088) 1,157 (251,940) - (251,940)
Segment depreciation, AENE REREH

depletion and amortisation (7,480) (11,799) - (1,290) (20,569) - (20,569)
Segment results SREY (85,747)  (185,541) (1,088) (133)  (272,509) - (272509
Unallocated other income FAMEMBA 42,840
Unallocated expenses RABAR (58,206)
Finance income BE Was 765
Finance costs BERA (2.214)
Share of results of associates ~ D{EEEE N A ¥ & (21,284)
Loss before income tax expenses [ ET/5 1 F % AT B (310,608)
Revenue from one customer (2011: two customers) in MEIERMNS RKE—BEF (=
relation to chemical products amounted to approximately T——F WEEP)IZWRAHNE
HK$98,288,000 (2011: HK$101,746,000), which #598,288,0007T (=& ——F : B
individually represents more than 10% of the Group’s 101,746,0007T ) & B 1h A& B Y 25
total. MERRER10% ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

NG|

ij: 5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WaERoEER |
gﬁ (Continued)
el (b) Segment assets (b) 7EEE
it
Eo The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by REEZAEMELEDEEDZE
gé reportable operating segment: ESNAT:
=
§§ 2012 2011
55 —g-=f == &
& HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Segment assets THEE
Chemical products {ETES 129,629 198,864
Crude ol [ 351,192 404,953
Commaodity trading HmE 5 93,388 24,319
Others H A 79,241 63,746
Total segment assets DEEEELE 653,450 691,882
Unallocated ADHEE 234,674 328,884
Total assets MEE 888,124 1,020,766
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

123

Revenue and Segment Information 5. WaER7EER #|) §§
(Continued) %” ?ﬂ
52
=5
(c) Other segment information (0 HttaEER g g
We
For the year ended 31 March 2012 i 2
BE-®--F=A=t+-ALEE i
Chemical Crude  Commodity e
products oil trading Others Total il *1;
LIER R HmES Hits CE -4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 :ﬁﬁ
BETT BETR BETR BETR BETR 8
Amount included in the measure &t A7 B EE DB
of segment results or BENEZEE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current REFRYEE
assets 464 25,990 31,144 25,719 83,317
Property, plant and ME  BE REEME
equipment written off (135) (9,502) - - (9,637)
Recognition of impairment AL ERERR
loss on available-for-sale REEE
investments - - - (297) (297)
Recognition of impairment RUE-WE K
loss on property, RERACRERE
plant and equipment (6,787) - - - (6,787)
Recognition of impairment RREBMERR L
loss on investment REEE
properties (20,790) - - - (20,790)
Recognition of impairment HE S EIERR
loss on trade receivables AEEE (2,751) (751) - - (3,502)
Recognition of impairment REMRE BER
loss on prepayments, Hitn K TR
deposits and BRZBEER
other receivables (4,500) (1,806) (4,132) (15,993) (26,431)
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HEME FE K
plant and equipment RECER (2,295) - - - (2,295)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

NG|

z%jE: 5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WaERoEER |

gﬁ (Continued)

1)

3 i . . RN e

gl (c) Other segment information (Continued) (0 EHttnEER #0

iy

21l

Eo For the year ended 31 March 2011

gz BE-R-—F=A=t-ALFE

2 H Chemical Crude  Commodity

g 3 products oil trading Others Total
c& tIESR R BRE S Hith &t
é h HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g BETT  BETr  A%Tr AT BETn

(restated) (restated)
(Lm&5) (LLE5)

Amount included in the measure AN BEEHHEEE

of segment results or HEZEE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current REFRYEE

assets 7,509 165,015 - 49 172,573
Property, plant and M BE REEME

equipment written off (5,215) (116,932) - - (122,147)
Recognition of impairment loss 5t £t &/ 8 E#e R

on other intangible assets REEE - = (1,733) = (1,733)
Reversal of impairment loss X E¥E&E 2

on investment properties REEE = = = 1,163 1,163
Recognition of impairment HESRMFERERZ

loss on trade receivables REEE (945) = = = (945)
Recognition of impairment REMTE ZER

loss on prepayments, H ot R IK TR

deposits and BRZBEER

other receivables (2,071) (4,120) - (767) (6,958)
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HEME FE K

plant and equipment B3 E @271) = = = (271)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information 5. WHERDEEFR (&)
(Continued)

(d) Geographical information (d) HEZEHR
The Group's operations are located in the PRC, Hong REBZEBURTPE FERE
Kong and others. The Group’s revenue from external fth 30 18 o 7N &2 (] 2 B AR & 3 [ &l
customers is based on the location of their operations ZHRBINREP 2 W RIEE B E
and information about its non-current assets is based on IS D 2 FERBEE 2 E R
geographical location of the assets that are detailed below: FRALANT -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIREF Wz FRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C& —E——%F —E-C—f& —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

PRC H 276,315 158,558 431,307 400,917
Hong Kong &5 63,652 123,840 123,707 165,435
Others HAh - - 40,978 39,257
339,967 282,398 595,992 605,609
Other Income 6. HMUA
2012 2011
—E-=F —FT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Rental income from leasing of REEEWME BER
property, plant and equipment B i N 4,765 4,399
Dividend income from REFEEEREZ
held-for-trading investments & B A 246 808
Others EAh 804 914
5,815 6,121
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

Zi 7. Other (Losses)/Gains, Net 7. Hftb(EB), WS EE
T &
i
o | 2012 2011
EM}H —E—-—F —T——fF
3 %ﬂ Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Eo Bt 5 BET T BT
iRt Exchange gains/(losses), net  [E X Yzs (518 ) B 5 7,985 (1,487)
géf Recognition of impairment ME FREBKRIBER 2
g <§( loss on trade receivables NEREY R 27(d) (3,502) (945)
B Recognition of impairment BIERNRIE e K
- loss on prepayments, H e WK IB RE R
deposits and NEREYEi=!
other receivables 24(e) (26,431) (6,958)
(Recognition)/reversal of MIEEWE (BR)
impairment loss on BBz REESE
investment properties 19 (20,790) 1,163
Recognition of impairment ¥ % BE &
loss on property, REBEERZBEEBE
plant and equipment 17 (6,787) -
Recognition of impairment loss St B fib 2 & E#ER 2
on other intangible assets NEREYEi=! 21 - (1,733)

Recognition of impairment A EERE®ER
loss on an available-for-sale  JB({E E18

investment 25 (2,522) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 11 & B A 7 2 E18 - (15,350)
Gain on deemed partial RIEE D HE—H

disposal of an associate /NIl - 3,364
Loss on disposal of property, H&E¥E  K&E &

plant and equipment B2 EE (2,295) (271)
Gain from changes in fair PTEEMIAZATE

value of derivative financial ~ &)U as

instruments 11,086 39,426
Loss from changes in fair HIEEEREZ A TE

value of held-for-trading S EE

investments (12,018) (4,238)
Others HAh 1,090 489

(54,184) 13,460
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

. . 7 = N P >
Staff Costs (Including Directors' Emoluments) 8. EINAN (BEZES#M<E) 53
2012 2011 o2
—2-——F —F——F o
HK$'000 HK$'000 l 3
BT T BETT ’ﬁ 5
iy
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe LEREMER 36,336 27,234 i =
Contributions to defined contribution & 84 TR (R 5 2 A9 £ 3% il
retirement plan 367 445 fﬁ 5
36,703 27,679 5
Share-based payments LARR 3 2 1~ 2 7KIR 25,528 63,884
Total staff costs 8 TR AR 62,231 91,563
Operating Loss 9. RE/E
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Items charged in arriving at the RERKCEBERNRZ
operating loss include: IHE B
Auditor's remuneration 1% ERT B
Audit services FZIRTE 2,618 2,560
Non-audit services FEEZIRTE 362 966
Operating lease expenses MERERY 7,735 6,443
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &

11.

E_F—#=A=t-ALEE

= —=
10. Finance Income and Costs 10. BLE e K& AR
2012 2011
—F-——fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest expenses on bank loans and AR AFRNEHREEZ
overdrafts wholly repayable within RITERRBELZZ
5 years FER X (1,688) (2,214)
Interest income on: AT&EZ A EWA :
- bank deposits —RITTFER 522 679
— available-for-sale investments — A HERE 89 86
611 765
Finance costs, net A& K AR EE (1,077) (1,449)
Income Tax Expenses 1. FEHMAX
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
PRC Corporate Income Tax: RS
Current year KEE 36 160
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 1,559 =
Deferred tax (Note 37) BIERIA (M7E37) 1 3
1,596 163

128

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group
did not have any assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year

(20711: Nil).

B PO 7R 55 B A F U0 SR AE BB EE AR (AT B
ARBURF - B BB BB RSB LB

(ZF——%F:&)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

Up to 31 March 2012, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD"”) has issued protective profits tax assessments
of approximately HK$17,881,000 (2011: HK$16,618,000)
in aggregate for years ended 31 March 1997 to 2005 (i.e.
assessment years 1996/97 to 2004/05) against certain
subsidiaries of the Company. In prior years, the Group has
paid and recognised Hong Kong profits tax amounting to
approximately HK$6,332,000, and lodged objections with the
IRD against the protective assessments. Pending the outcome of
the objections, the IRD agreed to completely hold over the tax
in disputes of HK$11,549,000 (2011: HK$10,286,000) on the
condition that the TRC in equivalent amounts were purchased
for respective assessment years 1996/97 to 2004/05. These
TRCs were accounted for as prepayments, deposits and other
receivables under current assets in Note 24.

On 30 March 2012, the IRD further issued protective profits tax
assessments of approximately HK$4,197,000 for the year ended
31 March 2006 (i.e. assessment year 2005/06). Subsequent to
year ended 31 March 2012, on 18 April 2012, the Group lodged
an objection with the IRD against this protective assessment, and
on 9 May 2012, the IRD agreed to hold over the tax in dispute
unconditionally.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, 50% of the profits of
the relevant subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong derived
for the years ended 31 March 1997 to 2001 should not be
chargeable to Hong Kong profits tax whereas the remaining
subsidiaries in dispute did not carry on any business nor
derive any profit in Hong Kong and thus, not chargeable to
Hong Kong profits tax from the year ended 31 March 2002
onwards. Moreover, Mr. Poon Sum, the Honorary Chairman
of the Company, has committed to indemnify the potential
exposure prior to the listing of the Company in 2003. Having
taken the advice from the Group's tax representative, the Board
of Directors believes that no Hong Kong profits tax should be
payable by the Group for these years or for any other years, and
accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax is required.
The Board of Directors are also considering various approaches
in the best interest of the Group to resolve the dispute with the
IRD.

11.

FiE%i5 % ()

E-T——_H€=ZfF=+—8 FERER
([BEBER])REE—NNEFE=T
THE=A=+—HLFE (A—ANK
SNEEZTTNM/TRREREE) A
AR RETHE AR A £ L RE M F
BRI 4978%17,881,0000T (& ——
F:%%16,618,0000T) - N BAEFE -
AEEBEINREREAFEH LB
6,332,0007T * W BEARFE 1 RF &L ) B A B
BRERY BEREZER BB
BRI BB # AT F AP 11,549,0007T
(=ZZ——F:7%%10,286,0007T) ' MfE7A
RE—NANN/ NEEZZTZTN/ZTHRF
MEERESB2EDF ZEREUFR
MiE24m e EE TIMERMNRIE  Re Rk
H b FE IR IE

MR-B——F=F=+H EERERE
—SREE_ZTTRF=-A=+—HILF
E(B=2ZH T REHREE) FHRE
MR BF R 478 H4,197,0007T - RELE
—E-——_HF=ZA=+—HIEFEER K=
T——FHA+NR AEERZREE
AHAEERERRERE -R=2—=
FRANR BAENBEREREEGGEHK
Rz ke

EEERE REBEMAK L2 B B
REAREBE—NANEFE=ZZTZT—F=
A=+—RBILFEELZHHMZ50%MREH
BHMBERBFER ME-TT=_F=A
=t+—HUR - BRTFREPZHBERRNL
N EBFRR AL - INVEE £ E [
ﬂil%ﬂmﬁﬁééﬂ SR o Lo AR

NEEBERERLECERBERARARN
—EE=F WAt BERBRIREEER
B BEENHRAEERBRARZER
BIEE AEEBEARZEFERTME
b FE X NEBFER  WBAEELES
FEHBE - EZSNEERSERE
EEREMNBZ 2 E URREFBRE
BzE&-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 &

11.

130

B R 2R Y

4= —=

E_Z—_F=A=t+—HILFE

Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

In accordance with relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations, the PRC Corporate Income Tax rate applicable to the
Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC is principally 25%

(2011: 25%).

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax expenses differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate

11.

FRE®iF < ()

RIBARE T BT ETOED KER & F

RASERFBEKTZHER

EMB
25% ) ©

FREEEA25% (

BRAARKEZBRMEHMX

AlZHHE

—E——F:

B 1R 2 iR

SRAAKEMER 2 HBRR R HmE

in the PRC applicable to the Group as follows: EZBmME ZRNT:
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT PR T
Loss before income tax expenses KR P15 Hi X BB 18 (175,268) (310,608)
Tax at domestic income tax rate of AR PTG LA E25%
25% (2011: 25%) (ZF——%:25%)
STERBIA (43,817) (77,652)
Tax effect of share of losses of FE(REE R RS BN B &
associates 2,243 5,321
Effect of different tax rates of T E At BlARE (R AR = /Y
subsidiaries operating in other gz PNGIEORNERTES2
jurisdictions (104) 415
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAT IR G = RE
differences not recognised B & 9,811 32,513
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible &) F %t Bl & #3722 7] 18
temporary differences previously EREENNBEE
not recognised (248) (291)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 f& 32754 1B E5 18 #) %Rﬁ%%%ﬁ 23,253 24,002
Tax effect of income not taxable AR A B 75 2 2
for tax purpose (43,164) (40,409)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] #1743 7 B9 i 7 57 &
for tax purpose 48,885 54,778
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREDTR 1,559 =
Others HAth 3,178 1,486
Income tax expenses Fr8fiF 2 1,596 163

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year (2011: Nil).

RAFE - SEEGEE M2 KARD 2
B E (2T ——F:F)-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

12. Directors’ Emoluments 12. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of six (2011: six) ENSERTFARE(ZE——F  R"R)E
directors were as follows: EXENMET

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-E--"H=R=+-HLEE

Salaries,
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allowances  Retirement ﬁ
Director's and benefits scheme Share-based @
fees in kind contributions payments Total "
e 2ER Rk DY)
Ezne BNAE FEMY  XAZNE Ch

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  B¥TR  B¥TR BMTR  A¥Tn

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Poon Sum ERLE - 4,824 12 22,294 27,130
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung HER KA - 462 12 173 647
Mr. Poon Wai Kong EERITE - 1,176 12 173 1,361
- 6,462 36 22,640 29,138
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Shu Kin TR i8] B2 0 A 240 - - 233 473
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul BREgRR LA 240 - - 233 473
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REE KL 240 - - 233 473
720 - - 699 1,419
Total At 720 6,462 36 23,339 30,557
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S RS R AR MY

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

12.

132

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) 12. EEME (@
For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——F=A=1-HLFE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Director's  and benefits scheme  Share-based
fees inkind  contributions payments Total
e EER RIK DARR AR
EE2ika Skl AEIfE XNZHE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Poon Sum BREAE = 7,464 12 25,727 33,203
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung HER &L - 898 12 - 910
Mr. Poon Wai Kong EBERLE - 960 12 2,409 3,381
- 9,322 36 28,136 37,494
Independent Non-executive BIUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Shu Kin B B2 S A 240 - - 1,084 1,324
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul BRRTR L& 240 - - 1,084 1,324
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REE & 240 - - 1,084 1,324
720 - - 3,252 3,972
Total A&t 720 9,322 36 31,388 41,466

None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments
payable by the Group in both years.

RREFER - RNQEE S EREER
AEBEERN M-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

. ; >
13. Senior Management’s Emoluments 13. SREEEME 52
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEEHFHBEEMABATES EHEM 32
Group, two (2011: two) were directors of the Company whose H(ZE——F WMB)BEARRES %ZI
emoluments are included in Note 12. The emoluments of the BENHEHRHFI2 EH=R(=F ‘N‘él
remaining three (2011: three) individuals were as follows: ——F:=FH)ATHMEeWT: “ﬁg
&
!
2012 2011 ‘ﬂ‘?‘;
—E-C—F —ET——F gi
HK$'000 HK$'000 e
BET T BT T T‘
Rell}
Salaries and other emoluments Fre MEMMe 4,125 3,143
Share-based payments LARR 7 2 1+ 2 338 411 9,054
Contributions to defined contribution & 28t ZGR K5t 21 #9 3%
retirement plan 36 27
4,572 12,224
Their emoluments were within the following bands: RENMES R FTUATHE:

Number of individuals

AH
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 7TE
75 #1,500,0007T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001
7 #2,500,0007T 1 2
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 757,000,001 2
87,500,000 T - 1
3 3
During the current and prior years, no emoluments were paid RAFERBEFE  NEEIWE R ER
by the Group to any of the directors or the senior management EESSREEEMNEIMEE  fEA&M
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AREESAIMARNEBHEEIES
compensation for loss of office. BERAE(E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

14. Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of  14.

the Company

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately HK$130,337,000 (2011:
HK$693,692,000).

15. Loss Per Share 15.

Basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company is
calculated by dividing loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the year.

RRBEEAEBEFERE

KABHEBANEBEFEEBRINRARRZ
B iRk A RRIE - AEA 130,337,000
JT (ZZF——1% : #%693,692,0007T ) °

BRER
AR TG AR FREA AT RES

RAFEBABERNFERERAFANE 3
TTRAD 2 A I Bt &

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Loss for the year attributable to RRAFHEAEIEAFEERE
owners of the Company (HK$'000)  (7&# F7z) (176,864) (305,507)
Weighted average number of ordinary © 377 & @ A% 2 i 152
shares in issue (shares in thousands)  ( FA%) 4,129,952 3,871,640
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FREAREE OBI) (4.28) (7.89)

The share options and warrants outstanding at the date of
statement of financial position have no dilutive effect on basic
loss per share.

16. Dividend 16.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend during the year (2011: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. 1% -BERRZ®E g;
Group Company § =
r5E ALH e
Furniture, I, §
oil Plant and Motor Construction fixture and "\‘) é
properties machinery vehicles Others in progress Total equipment ~>‘H =
KA | &
RuEE HEEAE RE At HEIR aif REHERRE H‘“ i
(Note (a)) Nz
(HizE(a)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETTL BETT RETT BRI BRI BRI BETT

Cost: BAME:
At 1 April 2010 KZZ-Z5MA-H 33,153 50,434 8,966 10,050 29418 132,021 999
Additions RE 6,471 - 3,527 4,997 157,578 172,573 4,563
Disposals hrf - (2,460) (266) (1,366) - (4,092) -
Disposals of subsidiaries & HE A A = = = ) = © =
Written off (Note (b)) sE (i) - (7,558) (603) (2,076) (116,932) (127,169) -
Transfers E-Ed 40,498 - = - (40,498) - -
Exchange realignment ERAE 2,548 470 152 49 691 3,910 =
At 31 March 2011 K=Z-—-%=f=1-A 82,670 40,886 11,776 11,645 30,257 177,234 5,562
Additions RE - 2,567 835 705 24,261 28,368 11
Disposals e - (13,736) = (87) - (13,823)
Written off (Note (b)) s (P zE (b)) - - - (3,387) (9,502) (12,889) -
Transfers BE 38,871 - - > (38,871) = =
Exchange realignment B A% 3,580 214 153 57 659 4,663 -
At 31 March 2012 R=F-=%=f=1-A 125,121 29,931 12,764 8,933 6,804 183,553 5,573
Accumulated depreciation 3T ERHfE:
and impairment:
At 1 April 2010 K=Z-Z5MA-H 3,260 14,860 5,430 8,570 - 32,120 26
Depreciation for the year ~ AEEHE 140 5,044 1,115 1314 = 7613 437
Disposals irk3 - (2,002) (257) (1,297) - (3,556) -
Disposals of subsidiaries I &MBA A - - - 3) = 3) =
Written off (Note (b)) isA (Bt EE(b) - (2,719) (391) (1,912) = (5,022) =
Exchange realignment EEel 140 202 38 25 - 405 -
At 31 March 2011 R-Z——%=Zf=+-H 3,540 15,385 5,935 6,697 - 31,557 683
Depreciation for the year ~ AFEIHE 13,202 3212 1,828 1,647 = 19,889 1,114
Disposals & - (9,114) - (10) - (9,124) -
Written off (Note (b)) HsH (i) - - - (3,252) - (3252) -
Recognition of impairment  H:25i E 18
loss (Notes (c) and 7) (HEFORT) - 6,787 = = = 6,787 -
Exchange realignment AL 279 114 47 36 - 476 -
At 31 March 2012 R=ZE-—%=A=1-A 17,021 16,384 7,810 5,118 - 46,333 1,797
Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2012 R=ZE-=%=f=1-8H 108,100 13,547 4,954 3,815 6,804 137,220 3,776
At 31 March 2011 R=E-—%=f=1-8 79,130 25,501 5,841 4,948 30,257 145,677 4,879
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

136

Notes:

(a)

(9

(d)

(e)

The amount comprises buildings and furniture, fixture and equipment with
net carrying value of HK$380,000 (2011: HK$389,000) and HK$3,435,000
(2011: HK$4,559,000) respectively.

The amount mainly represents the write-off of oil wells with net carrying
value of HK$9,502,000 (2011: HK$114,561,000) that are plugged and
abandoned. The Board of Directors concluded these wells no longer have
economic value and therefore derecognised the same amount in the income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2012.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$6,787,000 in respect of certain plant and machinery leased to an
independent third party with reference to the fair value appraised by an
independent professional valuer.

Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental
rehabilitation since its establishment. There is, however, no assurance
that stringent environmental policies and/or standard on environmental
rehabilitation will not be implemented by the relevant authorities in the PRC
in the future which require the Group to undertake environmental measures.
The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected by any
environment liabilities, which may be imposed under such new environment
policies and/or standards.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of HK$389,000 to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. No property, plant and equipment was under pledge as at 31 March
2012.

17. W% BERRRE (@)

B :

(b)

()

(d)

R

ZeEeEEDRES R AE380,0007T (=

—4F : % #6389,0007T ) & 7 #3,435,0007C
T ——4F : #%4,559,0007T ) K F A KR
CREERE

R

o~

%% #E 2 e s R E A %9,502,0007T
(ZZT——F : %%114,561,00070) B HEE K
BENRA -BERERR RSHATHASR
EEE At TERBE-_T——=7
E+—HIEFENRSERAERZLE-

R-ZT——F=A=+—0 EL2EBIEERE
B GEEs AFE AEBRBTBIE=H
2% TR R i 23 W R R (B 5 18 75 156,787,000
7TEG

ER AR BRI T A m R - A REEE
FXIL A BRI R BRI REEEMERFX
Rl BERETEEBERRARTEERR
RERFIRE R SIRFEEEE UBAE
B R SRBUR S 16 - IR B A AT REBOR
RAER] BLEEMEMIRR A EB AT AE
B e B TSR AERR N R o

R-ZB——F=A=+—8 AEEEERRE
FERB¥389,000THIIBT  MEGR T A%
E—RBTEE-R-_E——F=A=+—
B-BEYE BERRED TER -
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. >z
18. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 18. FAfT L EERIEA 53
Group 32
HEE =3
2012 2011 LA{;
—E-—fF -4 E!
HK$’000 HK$'000 3
BT T BT T W
Cost: RAE : Dﬁg
At beginning and end of the year REMRER 4,893 4,893 L
Accumulated amortisation: ZotEes:
At beginning of the year REH] 1,603 1,493
Amortisation for the year GR35 110 110
At end of the year RER 1,713 1,603
Carrying value: FRIEE :
At end of the year RER 3,180 3,290
Less: Amount shown under BBV EETR T IR
current assets - (110)
Amount shown under EMENE EIE T RIE
non-current assets 3,180 3,180
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represents leasehold REBNTERN LB EFIBBL N EEIN
land outside Hong Kong under medium-term leases. SM[E AR BT E MRS i o
As at 31 March 2011, the Group's prepaid land lease payments R_E—F=ZA=+—H8 A&E£EBUR®
in the PRC with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,996,000 PRI TERN A E5KIE - BREBE R
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. #£1,996,0007C B EEA - LG TASE
No prepaid land lease payment was under pledge as at 31 March ERRITEE - R-_T——F=RA=+—
2012. B #BEBEM LA ERES FIEF o
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19. Investment Properties

138

19. REYE

Group
TEH
2012 2011
—B—=fF —E——f
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost: RAE :
At beginning of the year REA) 53,980 53,980
Additions NE 25,659 -
At end of the year RER 79,639 53,980
Accumulated depreciation and 2t ERAE:
impairment:
At beginning of the year REA) 15,589 15,565
Depreciation for the year REEHE 1,445 1,187
Recognition/(reversal) of impairment ~ #33, (&1 ) BB B
loss (Notes (a) and 7) (Pt sE@) &%7) 20,790 (1,163)
At end of the year RER 37,824 15,589
Carrying value: BRIEIME :
At end of the year RER 41,815 38,391

Notes:

The Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$20,790,000 in respect
of investment properties held outside Hong Kong with reference to the
fair value of the Group's investment properties of HK$44,859,000 (2011:
HK$43,101,000) as at 31 March 2012. The fair value has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation was determined with reference to recent market prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions.

Wik :

AEEMDBEAEMBENER T ——F=
A=+—B 2R FEH%44,859,000T (=&
—— 4 ##43,101,0007T ) RN E 7B AN
[ 1% A B9 1R & %) 5 #7 (B 65 18 75 620,790,000
T RTEDREE LB EGEMELNEE
i 3 K o (8 75 2 & 48 R 40 B AR 0 2
R RETISERMEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

0 5 Sz . jj> (-'F
19. Investment Properties (Continued) 19. REY = (#) g
2
Notes: (Continued) I ENE D) § %
Be
(b) The Group's investment properties at their net carrying value are analysed as (b) AEE AR REHEHENIREYES LT : E 5
follows: ’\"él
We
Group } %
AER By =
| B
2012 2011 |l ‘;—i
—g-=% % gigs
HK$"000 HK$'000 o E
BT T T N
In Hong Kong under medium-term leases ~ R&EBUFHAERHE 25,415 14 Ef
Outside Hong Kong under REB AN E AT AR ERH
medium-term leases 16,400 38,377
41,815 38,391
() At the date of statement of financial position, the Group's investment (© RUMBRREZ B ZEENREBNEEY
properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate net carrying value of ¥ BREFEMAERBH25401,000T (=2
HK$25,401,000 (2011: Nil) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted ——FE)BEER URERTAEENR
to the Group. T8
20. Goodwill 20. A&
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Cost: MAME :
At beginning of the year REA) 20,947 20,947
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38)  WtBE —fEHI @2 7] (FI7E38) 16,457 =
At end of the year RER 37,404 20,947
Accumulated impairment: 25HRE
At beginning and end of the year RETNRER 20,947 20,947
Carrying value: BRIEIE :
At end of the year RER 16,457 =
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units AEREBKE DR EREEZEHA
("CGUs") identified according to operating segment. At the date ReEEBAL ([ E%Eiﬁul ) o RBF TS
of statement of financial position, goodwill are allocated to the MAKRBE BESEEEmMmOE-

commodity segment.
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The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by Board of
Directors covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

ReEABENMTIRESEDREEHAE
BFtEREEE AEBNREBEEFSMH
HAERZSFHREMMBEE  BBAERES
BRI EEREE - BRF NS
EREBTIAT XA b5 R R HEH -

AR EEAEENEERROT

follows:
2012
—E—_F
Growth rate BRE No more than 8.00%
1 HEi88.00%
Inflation rate BIRE 3.78%
Discount rate PrIRE 18.68%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment.

The weighted average growth rates are used consistent with the
forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the operating
segment.

ZEBRCARDTREDBREANZ
REeEESM-

P ER A 2 hne P19 48 &= R 17T 23R &5 A
IR — Bl TR A TR R B A1 M
REREGE SRR ARBRAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

0 > 7
Other Intangible Assets 21. HMER 3¢
5%
Group 3 %1
A%E 2%
Lo
Oil exploitation Customer =
licences relationship Others Total LQ@
s a =i
BHBRRRE EFBE st At | &
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 e
BB BT BEFR BETR e
(Note) ﬁi
CiE3) u%ﬁ;j
Cost: BAE:
At 1 April 2010 RZE—-ZTENA—-H 231,003 15,190 - 246,193
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y —RMB AR - - 1,733 1,733
Exchange realignment XA 10,066 - - 10,066
At 31 March 2011 —T——F=R=+—H 241,069 15,190 1,733 257,992
Acquisition of a subsidiary ﬂﬁlﬁ% b B2 A (Fi38)
(Note 38) - 15,221 - 15,221
Exchange realignment I 5 50 % 8,959 - - 8,959
At 31 March 2012 R=ZZE-—#=A=+—A 250,028 30,411 1,733 282,172
Amortisation and impairment: &R
At 1 April 2010 R=FT—-ZFFNA—H 11,218 15,190 - 26,408
Amortisation for the year KEEHH 11,659 - - 11,659
Recognition of impairment loss ~ HERREEE (H:7)
(Note 7) - - 1,733 1,733
Exchange realignment R AR 449 - - 449
At 31 March 2011 —T——%=fA=1+—H 23,326 15,190 1,733 40,249
Amortisation for the year Kiﬁ%iﬁ 1,211 = - 1,211
Exchange realignment B 5 50 B 885 - - 885
At 31 March 2012 RZT——$=A=+—A 25,422 15,190 1,733 42,345
Carrying value: BREE:
At 31 March 2012 RZZE-——#=A=+—A 224,606 15,221 - 239,827
At 31 March 2011 RZZE——F=A=+—H 217,743 - - 217,743
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21.

142

Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

Note:

Oil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation in the location of
Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027 and 2028 respectively.

At the date of statement of financial position, the Board of Directors assessed the
recoverability of these oil exploitation licences and concluded no impairment loss was
required. The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

21.

HihE\EEE (&)
B & -

A B ER R FRAE A o B AR BRI A P (Bl R R o A0 HE A -
BORR B _LERF_N\FER

RUBRAR B EFGLTERFAHRRERZ
AU B E 1S AR - BRI IRE R - ARG E
EREENEEMROT

2012 2011

—E——fF T ——5F

Oil price per barrel (US$) SRHaE (ET) 99.32 85.45
Inflation rate AR 3.78% 3.00%
Discount rate = 15.17% 10.00%

At 31 March 2012, if the estimated oil price applied decreased to US$98.41 per
barrel, with all other variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or
otherwise no additional impairment charge will be required.

At 31 March 2012, if the estimated inflation rate applied increased to 4.1%, with all
other variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or otherwise no
additional impairment charge will be required.

At 31 March 2012, if the discount rate applied increased to 16.0%, with all other
variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or otherwise no
additional impairment charge will be required.

—E2——F=A=+—R HWAKAZEFRETR
F198.4155 7T (A A MBBRFAE) - A A H
ERAT AT 8 A R (B 2 % B 2R DA E At 75 AR B SN E ST

i
EY

EE

RoB——F=A=+—R - WARA2ZEERESE
F4.1% (FARBERRETE) - AFRBRYTE
L5 B 7 S BRSO BLELE

R-F-—F=A=t+—0 WARBZAREHE
16.0% (AR RBRITTR) - AIEHBIRST TR
B S B A K475 A SR i -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=-ZT—=
22. RHEA

22. Interests in and Amounts Due from/to
Subsidiaries

e RS ERAR MY T

F=A=+—HILFE
AR RER FE

B /B8 2 B) 2 FRIE

Company
¥ NN
2012 2011
—E-—F —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T R T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRG  HRAANE 3,254 3,254
Contrbutions to subsidiaries (Note (a)) KB AR EREE
(MsE(@)) 873,956 801,860
Equity share-based payment in KB A Bz B AN 4 & AR 7
subsidiaries (Note (b)) Stz E (b)) 7,247 7,247
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE ()
(Note (c)) (336,719) (336,719)
544,484 472,388
547,738 475,642
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Wiz B B8 2 B R B (M9 RE(d))
(Note (d)) 426,333 644,009
Less: Provision for impairment R EREE (MR &)
(Notes (c) and (e)) (381,000) (506,000)
45,333 138,009
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (d)) FEfTHIEB A T8 (HIEd)) (2,915) (2,878)
42,418 135,131

Notes:

(b)

The contributions to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and considered
as capital in nature.

In accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, share-based payment
transactions in which an entity receives services from its employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the entity are accounted for as
equity-settled transactions (Note 2(x)(ii)). The Company has recognised
the grant of equity instruments to subsidiaries’ employees amounting to
HK$7,247,000 (2011: HK$7,247,000) as contributions to its subsidiaries.

Provision for impairment on contributions to and amounts due from
subsidiaries was as a result of the impairment of assets made by the
subsidiaries in prior years.

i :

(b)

(©

1e) B 2 A O B T R % B R R
RBEAMLE-

BRI E S BB IR S ERIF25% [A R 45K
B ERBDAEEREEAERZRATA
REZABRD XA RER G IERESLEER
SN (BFEE2(x)(ii) ) - AR RERERRKHTE AR
ZRERHE ST AB7,247,000T (ZF——
4 1 7¥67,247,0007T ) Z AR T ELVE R A KL TR
RA)ZEE -

T A B2 E A R e AR TR A R SR 2R E

BEDERHBARRBEFEFER 2 EER
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

Iz 4o . N
E 22. Interests in and Amounts Due from/to 22. RIBARIZERREW P&
B e ) = N\ = Eh =
Ey Subsidiaries (Continued) 1B B 2 B) -2 FRIE ()
&
3
ek Notes: (Continued) Bits - (a0
|
Em (d)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and (d) M FE A B R RSO R SRR S B IR
En repayable on demand. ERER -
éé The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries are FEM,/ AT B B A RIROB 2 BREE TR T 518
= § denominated in the following currencies: HEEHE
=i
55
5 <§( 2012 2011
< —B-=F =P==14
B HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
HK$ poticd 32,282 104,206
us$ e 843 28,930
RMB AR# 9,293 1,995
42,418 135,131
(e) Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows: (e) WEBEEESMNT

2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year REL) 506,000 506,000
Recognition of impairment loss HRAEEE 75,000 =
Written off (Note) sE (P RE) (200,000) -
At end of the year RER 381,000 506,000
Note: Lk
During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to waive the FN ARREFTEHAREER—HHRER
amount due from a subsidiary of HK$200,000,000. BB % #200,000,0007T ©
(f) Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company at the date of statement of (f) AARRMBMR AT BB B R RFHEERR
financial position are set out as in Note 43. i ER
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZEZ=-ZF—

wr e R R AR B

TE=ZA=+—RLFE

. . T = o= s
Interests in Associates 23. REE QRN
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of investments in associates REEE R R 2R EKANE
- Unlisted (Note (a)) —3E b (FfE(a)) 75,592 75,592
— Listed (Note (b)) — k7 (KaEb)) 56,699 38,921
Share of post-acquisition AR R 2 EEE
comprehensive losses (31,535) (22,562)
Contributions to an unlisted associate [A]—f& 3F_ LMl & AR HE
(Note 24(c)) (BIEE24(c)) 9,327 -
110,083 91,951
Fair value of listed investment EMRENAFE (i)
(Note (c)) 80,004 55,555
Notes: P 3 +
(a) The Group held 43.00% equity interests in Lee Shing Mining Co., Ltd (“Lee (a) AEEBRFEFKBEBEAERAR ([FIKEE]) 2
Shing Mining”), which directly holds 100% equity interests in Guizhou 43.00%M % MAIKBEARARNEEREE
Rongfa Mining Company Limited ( & /N & % & % F R A 7)) (“Guizhou MERBBEAR AR ([EMBRTEE]) (HiE
Rongfa Mining”), which possesses an exclusive exploration right of vanadium AREEMNENSEOBRYERE) 2 28K
mining in Guizhou Province, the PRC. 7 o
(b) On 4 April 2011, the Company has given the undertaking in favour of (b) R-Z——FMANE  RAAREREEHTZE
Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited (“Mobile Telecom”) and the MBI EMEE (ZR)ERAR (DRBEM])
underwriter under the underwriting agreement to procure the subscription KB S5 1 ARG - DAR (£ 3R f8177,785,86 1A%
of 177,785,861 Mobile Telecom Offer Share (“MT Offer Shares”). The MBEBRBERND (MBHERBERNH]) -
amount involved in the subscription of MT Offer Shares was approximately URBESRADEMREROGEL T
HK$17,778,000, at subscription price of HK$0.1 per MT Offer Share, which RETHERZERNIRNEENRBE
was included in the cost of investments in a listed associate. 17,778,0007T * S &t A L HE & A B 2R E KA
2B
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group's interest in Mobile HE-ZT——F=A=+—-RHLFERN F&H
Telecom shares subsequent to the completion of MT Offer Shares has been RIRE B BB R AE TR R B BN B B AR D
increased from 177,785,861 to 355,571,722 after Mobile Telecom’s offer of %B#177,785,86 1 RIEMER =T ——F <A
new shares issued in June 2011, representing 30.18% (2011: 30.23%). MENE AR 2 E B FITHIRER355,571,722
B% - 1430.18% (= ZF——%:30.23%) °
(0 The fair value of the Group's interest in the listed associate is determined (c) REBHRREBE AEER EWHE QRN

with reference to the bid price on the Stock Exchange as at the date of
statement of financial position.

AR FETI2E BB AR EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

o ] - . Ak 2% N\ S| B BE 3L (=

E 23. Interests in Associates (Continued) 23. REE QRN ERS (&)

ox

B Notes: (Continued) P 3T« (#)

e

@ [

B | (d) Particulars of the Group's associates as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 are set (d) RZB——FR-"ZFT——F=ZA=+—H'&

T out as follows: EEBEAAOHERIIMT

21l

g

= o Name of Place of Proportion of voting power

2 g associate incorporation held indirectly Principal activities

S5 BEADEH R AL ST 30 3 CESERS L2 EBRE

?C‘% 2012 2011

53 —®-—f  —T—%

s E

2 <

% Lee Shing Mining Hong Kong 43.00% 43.00% Investment holding of an exclusive exploration

o right of vanadium mining in Guizhou Province,

the PRC

M B 2 B FREEMNENCBNBRDFREZIRELER
Mobile Telecom Cayman Islands 30.18% 31.23% Development, provision and sale of mobile and

internet communication, telecommunications
and other related services in Hong Kong and
other Asia Pacific countries

mBE FEMS REBRAMEARBERME REKHEERD
B A8maN - Bl R AE R AR
(e) The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates is (e) AEEBERNANPBEERBEHINNT

set out below:

Group

rER
2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Total assets BAEE 354,053 241,218
Total liabilities BEE (73,783) (28,640)
Net assets BEFE 280,270 212,578
Revenue & 31,602 24,425
Loss for the year AEEEE (34,094) (73,151)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

. . >
24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 24. FA{YFIE - 7] & R HMEKFIE 53
Group Company ‘% 2
A%E AR7 =3
Lo
2012 2011 2012 2011 -
—%--f -T % Z%-=Ff -FT—F "s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 we
BT T BT L BT T AT T N
wE
i
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WEYIZ - BFE K& E 2 @ =
plant and equipment (Note (a)) BRI (i EE@)) 40,978 38,278 - = qu
Deposits and receivables in respect of ~ WiE /& ET 4 N UKL kel
acquisitions/disposals (Note (b)) I (FEEE(b)) 50,627 81,937 50,627 67,767
Advances to suppliers [r] 44 FE 72 A 3K 50,925 37,288 - =
Amount due from an associate (Note (c) & It — R Bt & A B 78
(PRE(C)) - 8,123 - =
Prepaid TRC (Note 11) BAER A (K1) 11,549 10,286 - =
Other receivables (Note (d)) B e WsRR (BT RE(d)) 32,064 51,121 4,764 3,816
186,143 227,033 55,391 71,583
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (e)) Ji : JaU1E B¢ (HfzE(e)) (20,300) (23,711) - =
165,843 203,322 55,391 71,583
Less: amount shown under wIERMEEEET
non-current assets FrEIR &% (40,978) (85,253) (2,700) (39,999)
Amount shown under current assets ~ REIEEIE T
o Re R 124,865 118,069 52,691 31,584
Notes: PR & -

(a)

On 8 December 2010, the Group entered into a purchase agreement to
acquire certain oil drilling equipment from an independent third party
(“Vendor A") at a purchase price of RMB65,406,000 (approximately
HK$77,656,000) for leasing to another independent third party operating
in the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “Lessee”). The purchase price is to be
settled in four installments. At 31 March 2012, three installments totalling
RMB32,706,000 or approximately HK$38,278,000 (2011: RMB32,706,000
or approximately HK$38,278,000) had been settled and transaction costs of
HK$2,700,000 (2011: Nil) was incurred. The last installment is payable within
two years after the receipt of the oil drilling equipment by the Lessee.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 8 December 2010 entered between
the Group and the Lessee, the oil drilling equipment will be leased to the
Lessee at approximately US$684,000 (approximately HK$5,339,000) per
month, 10 months a year, for 5 years. At as 31 March 2012, the transaction
was not completed as certain oil drilling equipment was pending delivery
by Vendor A. Accordingly, the amounts paid and related transaction costs
incurred were classified as prepayments under non-current assets. The last
installment is disclosed as a capital commitment in Note 39.

RZZ—ZF+_AN\B REETZKER
# LAIR UK EE (B A R %65,406,0007T (#4974 &
77,656,0007T) B — & B E=H ([BHAL)
g S TR MEBREHEAEE FRBERLE
ANBELE2S—2BUE=H ([EHEAL) -
U&ﬂ%f"ﬂﬂ MEER - R ——F=A=+—

= HIA H AR %32,706,0007T 8k 49 5
38,278,0007t ( =T ——4 : AR#32,706,000
TLE ) 7%38,278,00070 ) BEN  WEAER S
P75 #2,700,0007C (ZF——F : &) - 18
—H AR AR KR AR ERREHEEREN
XfFe

BEAEERABMARFT-—ZFE+=-ANH
AV HAERE AREBRIERR —F+E
A %5 A #7684,0003% 7T (#97&%5,339,0007T)
HEFEBEA BBHAF-R-T——F=A
=+—B BREHARERNE T AHREBRS
B MZR S AT - Bt - B 508 R FTE
EZERARIRATNRIERBEER T 2B
A o ik — HIRER I R3O B A E ARE -
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24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables
(Continued)

148

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The amounts mainly comprise the following:

(@)

(i)

Pursuant to a letter of intent (the “LOI") dated 12 May 2010 relating
to an acquisition of 52.00% participating interests in an oil and
gas exploration and exploitation project in Modamuji Sagin Hailaer
Basin (the “Modamuji Project”), the Group paid an amount of
RMB35,000,000 (approximately HK$39,998,000) as an initial deposit
(the “Deposit”) to an independent third party (“Vendor B”), who
holds 100.00% participating interests in the Modamuji Project. The
amount is refundable if no sale and purchase agreement is entered
into by the Group and Vendor B within 90 days from the date of
the LOI. Given the size of the Modamuji Project, the Group needed
additional time for furnishing the technical review/valuation of the
Modamuiji Project. The expiry date of the LOI was extended to 31
December 2011.

Upon the expiry of the LOI on 31 December 2011, no agreement
was reached between the Group and Vendor B. On 5 January
2012, both parties agreed to enter into a deed of termination,
pursuant to which, both parties agreed that the LOI was ceased and
terminated and all obligations and responsibilities of both parties
were released save for the obligation on the part of Vendor B to
return the Deposit (without interest) to the Group. Moreover, the
Group agreed to bear an amount of RMB5,000,000 (approximately
HK$6,163,000) (Note (e)) to cover the pre-operating expenses paid
or incurred by Vendor B for the Modamuji Project whereas Vendor
B agreed to refund RMB3,000,000 (approximately HK$3,559,000)
within 14 days from the date of the deed of termination and the
remaining RMB27,000,000 (approximately HK$30,276,000) will be
settled by 30 September 2012. Accordingly, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of approximately HK$6,163,000 in the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 March 2012. As at
31 March 2012, RMB3,000,000 (approximately HK$3,559,000)
had been received by the Group and the outstanding amount of
RMB27,000,000 (approximately HK$30,276,000) was classified as a
receivable under current assets. Pursuant to an agreement dated 1
June 2012, Vendor B will transfer its 60.00% participating interests
in the Modamuji Project to the Group if it is default in repaying the
outstanding amount by 30 September 2012.

In connection with the acquisition of the Modamuji Project on
12 August 2010, the Group entered into a loan agreement with
a key management of Vendor B (the “Borrower”) to advance an
amount of RMB25,000,000 (approximately HK$27,769,000) to the
Borrower, which shall be applied solely for the purpose of financing
the 3D seismic data collection, drilling and exploration work of the
Modamuji Project for a period of 6 months from the drawn down
date. The loan bore interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate
("HIBOR"). On 28 June 2011, the repayment date of the loan
was extended to 2 July 2012. At the request of the Borrower, the
repayment date of the loan was extended to 31 December 2012.
Up to 31 March 2012, the Group has received an amount of
RMB6,249,000 (approximately HK$7,418,000) from the Borrower
as a partial settlement of the loan. The outstanding amount of
RMB18,751,000 (approximately HK$20,351,000) was classified as a
receivable under current assets.

NIRRT E R EMERRIE

(%)

i

BT - ()

(b) ZECRTIBRRETIRE:

(i)

(i)

RIEBSHA-_T—ZFRA+_HRA
A B B B Modamuiji Sagin Hailaer
BasinZ AM R K AR MR KFAKER
([EEAREFIEA ) 228 ##2352.00%
ZEAE([BEAE]) AEEEAS
YE=ZH([BHB] BHEAEEARS
THH 2100.00%2 Eix) X HREA
R #35,000,0007T ( #)7% #39,998,000
TEREETR ([3]£]) - WAKE
HEHBAFIVEME B L08R
WET AR EE B AZe@EA T
RE-EREEATHA ZRE %
BTN EEITREART BB 2 5l
BE /fHE-BEREERBHECHE
—ZT——F+=ZA=+—H-

BERER-_ZT——F+-A=+—HE
1% 0 AN 6% B SR B A I AR R o
R-Z——F—AAA EHRBI
RIERE Bt EHREEAEELE
R&IE - RS 2 A EKREEER
BEBEHB-HAEERERS (T
FR)FAEERIN UEIN REER
B A YE S % A R %5,000,0007T (4974
#£6,163,0007T) (FiiE(e)) AT E 7
BRtRiEALTIE R AT 85 BLz AT HA
BEMAY BRI BEABRAEARER
1E B EIE148 3R B A R #3,000,000
7T (#4974 #3,559,0007C) R RBH A
R #27,000,0007T (#)7% #30,276,000
TR -_E——FhLA=+TH&M-
At AEERBE-_T—=—F=A
=+ —BIEFERNRGE WS R R
EE1E#75%6,163,0007T - A= —=
FE=A=1+—A ARARBKIARE
3,000,0007T (47 7% #3,559,0007T) &
M A EE SR AR27,000,0007T (4]
75 #£30,276,0007T) ESIE R B K E R
TzREBFE - RIEASHAE-T——F
ANA—Bz—HhthE WEABR-F
——HENA=THATHREERERR
B BB AAREEEEENEEAR
HIHE 260.00%2 B o

BRZT—2FN\A+—RlEREEAR
THEEME AEEEREHBZ L
FTEEBRAB ([BRADTLEZR
- AE AR A R #25,000,0007T
(#7%%27,769,0007T) * Z#HEEH
EAREAREIER 2 =@t EBHRA - B
REMERIEREES  GBGRE B
i ABAEA ZEREEBBRITR
ERB([BEERTAEFLETE-
R-Z2——FXA-+N\B ZEZE
HEHEEHE_T——F+tA=AH-
ERRAZERT ZEFERBHE
EHE—_T——_F+=-A=+—8-
HE_ZT-——F=A=+—H0 X5H
B W EIfE 3R A R 5RA R #66,249,0007T
(#)7%#£7,418,0007T) fE B ER 23
BER - REESTARY18,751,000
7T (#)7%#20,351,0007T ) B 7l {E 7 &)
BEE R EKGRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

. . =} >z
24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 24. TAFUE - 7] & R HMEWIE 52
.
(Continued) (#) EE
S2
Notes: (Continued) B eE : (80 e
- T
Lo
(b) (Continued) () €2 \’\\)E
¥
(i) As at 31 March 2012, the Board of Directors has performed (iii) RZF——%=A=+—R EF¢ } El
an impairment assessment on the remaining balances totaling B ¥ KA £ #14,170,0007T (Hi#E i g
HK$14,170,000 (Note (e)) and concluded to write off the entire (e ))iﬁﬁﬂfﬁ-ﬁ?j 15 H 4 o LA 85 “‘ ﬁ
amount during the year ended 31 March 2012. BE-T——F=A=+—HBILFERN w=
. 4
22 RIE o
52
(@) As at 31 March 2011, the amount due from an associate was unsecured, (c) RZT——F=ZA=+—H El—HEHHBH=ZA DH%
interest-free and repayable on demand. Pursuant to a board resolution Al Z AR BB - 68 RIRE SRR - RIEHE l‘
of the associate dated 31 March 2012, the Board of Directors of the ERAEHR-T——F=A=1+—BZzESF :
associate resolved to re-designate the entire amount as capital contribution. ERER BERRNESTRAFE2NEHE
Accordingly, the Group reclassified the entire amount to interests in FHREREE Bt AEER-_FT——F=A
associates under non-current assets as at 31 March 2012. =+ HREHNeRETERAIRDHEER
TRZREBE R R 2 -
(d) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year. (d) REERBEER RERAR-—FRNEE-
(e) Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows: (e) MER ST
Group
AER
2012 2011
—E-CfF —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At beginning of the year REL) 23,711 16,300
Recognition of impairment loss (Note 7) RO EREE (HF7) 26,431 6,958
Written off (30,355) -
Exchange realignment I 5 38 8 513 453
At end of the year RER 20,300 23,711
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group recognised an impairment BE_T——=A=+—BILFE AKER
loss totalling HK$26,431,000 (2011: HK$6,958,000) in respect of the FPE AL FE RS 2 B R % 3,469,0000T (ZF ——
advances to suppliers amounting to HK$3,469,000 (2011: Nil), deposits and FoE) B HEEEZ RS REKKIES
receivables in respect of acquisitions/disposals amounting to HK$20,333,000 #20,333,0007T (Bt &2 (b)(i) R (iii)) (= —2
(Notes (b)(i) and (iii)) (2011: HK$1,944,000) and other receivables amounting ##51,944,0007T ) K £ fth & W FIE 2,629,000
to HK$2,629,000 (2011: HK$5,014,000) after assessing the recoverability of JT (ZZF——4 : B #5,014,0007T ) 2 A Ye B {4 1%

these balances. iz FEHERRER RS £45%26,431,0007T
(=ZZ——%:%%6,958,0007T) °

(f) The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other receivables are () T FRIE 5] € R H b FEUGRIE T 1R T 51 B ¥
denominated in the following currencies: #HE:
Group Company
AER AR
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—CfF T —E-—C-F T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT
HK$ B 18,321 17,345 4,765 3,816
us$ e 79,398 61,796 - -
RMB AR 68,124 124,181 50,626 67,767
165,843 203,322 55,391 71,583
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Zi 25. Available-For-Sale Investments 25. AIEERE
a Group
hrki M
&l
| 2012 2011
Ea —E—-—F —F——
£5 HK$'000 HK$'000
o BT AT
E E Unlisted debt security: K ETEBRESE:
£ — Senior Notes with fixed interest of ~ —J&4F &7 E FIR10.5FE 5 5 K
10.5% per annum and RZE—ME 5| B EY
maturity date in 2014, BEER BRATE
at fair value (Note (a)) (FHizEG@)) 3,117 3,414
Unlisted equity security: i N
— Equity investment, at cost (Note (b)) ~ —REZAREZE » LKA
(FF=E(b)) 5,837 20,000
— Less: Provision for impairment — R ERE (M &7)
(Notes (c) and 7) (2,522) -
3,315 20,000
6,432 23,414

150

Notes:

(]

The amount represents the Group’s subscription of RMB3,200,000
(equivalent to HK$3,802,000) 10.50% Senior Notes due 2014 issued by
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. It is measured at fair value will
reference to the valuation provided by a financial institution, and a fair
value loss of HK$297,000 (2011: HK$388,000) has been charged to other
comprehensive expense and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve at end of the year.

The unlisted equity investment represents the Group’s long-term investment
in the 15.00% equity interests in Man Xin Limited (“Man Xin"), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and the major asset of
which is a piece of land situated in Hong Kong. It is measured at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Board of Directors is
of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

During the year, Man Xin returned part of the equity to its shareholders of
which the Group is entitled to and received HK$14,163,000.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the
unlisted equity investment and determined that an amount to the extent
of HK$2,522,000 may not be recoverable, resulting in the recognition of
impairment loss of the same amount.

(b)

()

ZEeEEALERB —HEBIALEHHA
RIEITSEAARES,200,0007T (FREREE
3,802,0007T) ~ FFE/510.50F K H —F—0
FR OB AR - L2 %E — S RBEBRAN
BEE ZEARBRVRATENE MATE
E51878#5297,0007T ( =T ——4F : #1#388,000
TO)BERERNBREREEF W E B
AN R

RETBRAREEAEENREARAAF (R
#) (—HREBERES ([EBELHE])
HEMRINARRERAER —RUNEEN
T 3) 5 15.00% M A # a5 MY & IR A o bR
A A S A R R AR A RUR B R
2 ARARENAFAEMHEEETREZ A
ERXRRARFEREAEE-

FRN - mBOMERFRRSHER  HERAE
E=H kB WA 14,163,0007T ©

RZT—ZF=A=+—8 FAEEFERE
TR A% & 2 AT U [B] < %8 3 1 E AT AR A A Uk E
75 #62,522,0007T + (A 1M 8 Bk R A A © 58 2 A
EEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

. [=3 > o

26. Inventories 26. BFE =2

Group 32

E3d 2z

2012 2011 Lﬁé

—E-=F —F——F E!

HK$’000 HK$'000 3

BT T BT W&

Consumables FEM 3,641 2,519 B

Raw materials R# 6,325 5,408 L
Work in progress E8m - 996
Finished goods BIRK G 5,195 4,989
15,161 13,912

27.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense amounted to
HK$285,258,000 (2011: HK$262,702,000).

Trade Receivables

The balance includes trade and bills receivables as follows:

R AR M ER A AE1285,258,000
T (ZZ——4 : F#262,702,0007T) °

27. EZEWFE

HE (BRESERYGARERER) N

Trade receivables

Less: Provision for impairment

(Note (d))

Bills receivables (Note (e))

g 5 e IA
B ORE R (FTRE(d))

FEdZ iz (MiiE(e))

T
Group
FEME
2012 2011
—E-—& —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
72,432 85,445
(6,866) (7,344)
65,566 78,101
4,877 2,709
70,443 80,810
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. . = £ -
27. Trade Receivables (Continued) 27. BEFRBWFIE (&)
Notes: Pt & :
(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit (@) REMNEFAHEL AEBESERANDEET

BERAFEEEEFPZFEERREEF R
FEERE INFREBEEEM LR ERE-
BER I8 H IR SR B 2 RS R R P AR (EE

assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer and considers adequate allowance has
been made at the end of the year. Balances which are neither past due nor

impaired are all with good historical repayment records and good credit MEMRFEEER
quality.
(b) Trade and bills receivables are due within 30 to 90 days (2011: 30 to 90 days) (b) BORBFBERERERAERRBEEALRE

AEFEEATR (ZF——F:=FHEAT
B)AEIH -

from the date of invoicing or billing.
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() Aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date net of impairment is () B 5B IE (MBRRE) BIR %R B H 2 Rk
as follows: AT
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Less than 1 month TR—1{EA 45,779 36,965
1 month to 3 months —EAZE=M@EA 6,087 27,401
More than 3 months but less than 1 year BB =fAAEFTZE—F 13,145 11,952
Over 1 year BiR—F 555 1,783
65,566 78,101
(d) Movement in the provision for impairment during the year is as follows: (d) FA-REBREEESHNT
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-C=F =F——*F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year REH 7.344 6,132
Recognition of impairment loss (Note 7) ERBERRE (HE7) 3,502 945
Written off T 88 (4,231) =
Exchange realignment EECE 251 267
At end of the year RER 6,866 7,344
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

27. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

0}

Aging analysis of bills receivables net of impairment is as follows:

27.

g 5 EWFEIE (#)
[EREE )

(e) FEMR IR (FNBRRE) Z BRECAMTANT

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Less than 1 month TR—1{EA 3,274 2,617
1 month to 3 months —EAZE=MEA 371 92
More than 3 months but less than 1 year BB =fAAEFTE—F 1,232 -
4,877 2,709

Aging analysis of trade receivables based on due date which are past due but

f) BEEEYERENE S EEERERSHA

not impaired is as follows: HRRER DT T

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—B-——F —B——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Less than 1 month TR—EA 3,209 11,491
1 month to 3 months —EAZ=M@A 2,869 3,842
More than 3 months but less than 1 year BB =AAETE—F 9,398 6,081
Over 1 year A —F - 12
15,476 21,426

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$15,476,000 (2011: HK$21,426,000),
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for any impairment as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEBE S REBABERDIERERERBE
15,476,0007C ( =T — —4F : jE¥£21,426,000
7o) Bk HA R 45 2R A B i B A JE U BR X - i
AEEVEREELEMRERE BREE
BRI MEALE  BFIERE RATUE - A
SEWERZFERT A EAERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

iz 41 . . {=v] o] =
f‘gﬁ 27. Trade Receivables (Continued) 27. EZEINRIE (@)
o
& k\&\ Notes: (Continued) PR &E « ()
oS |
= K
B | (9) The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the following (9 BHRWREZREED AT ESE:
Z &Lw currencies:
21l
% X Group
£ REE
TN
S 52
- 2012 2011
52 = = —=
£ T —z-—f —E——4F
= 2 HK$'000 HK$'000
g% BEF T BT T
o
g
HK$ ki 29,596 44,637
RMB AR 40,847 36,173
70,443 80,810
(h) At the date of statement of financial position, the Group’s trade receivables (h) RUMBRREEY AEBRARERBE
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$29,596,000 (2011: HK$33,705,000) 29,596,0007T (=% — — 4 : B #33,705,000
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group ) 2B RRFIEC RN DURERTAE
(Note 33(c)(i)). B 2 BITEE (33030 °
H + 0= &
28. Held-For-Trading Investments 28. FHEEERE
Group
REE
2012 2011
—EB-_F —_F—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Equity securities held-for-trading: FIEEBERARE 5 -
— listed in Hong Kong —RBEE LT 2,988 35,061
— listed outside Hong Kong —RBEBAINMEE ET - 238
2,988 35,299
Notes: B & -
(a) The held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value at the date of (a) RUBHRARBE FEEEREDNRATE
statement of financial position. The fair values of listed equity securities are PR - EMRAEF D FE T2 BRIk
determined with reference to the bid prices on the relevant stock exchanges R EBEMES RS E A BT EE -

at the date of statement of financial position.

(b) The carrying amount of held-for-trading investments is mainly denominated (b) FEEBERENREBEDEEAEEE
in HK$.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

29. Derivative Financial Instruments

29. TTAEERIE

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—EB-CF —E——F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =k BE Bf&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Derivative financial instruments held
for trading:
Interest rate swaps (Note (a))
Foreign currency forward contracts
(Note (b))
Warrants

FERBEITAESRTA:

FIEHS ()
SNEEIA L)
(B )
RREE

256 5,308 994 1,975
- 98 397 4,555
- - - 8,784

256 5,406 1,391 15,314

Company
NN
2012 2011
—g-=% 2%
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE &8f& BE Bf&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETT BETT BETT

Derivative financial instruments

HEREMESRIA:

held for trading:

Warrants R E - - - 8,784
The derivative financial instruments (except for the warrants) are PTEemMIT A (RREZRIN DFEE
held for trading purposes. The fair values of interest rate swaps EERRNFL T Z‘_A?ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ\\MLBﬁA
and foreign currency forward contracts at the end of the year AR AT EHHEFHFRITREE ERR
are provided by the counterparty banks, while the fair value EFH N TER BB (hERMEAZ&HD
of warrants is determined by an independent valuer using the EEBRAEE-

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

29. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(9

Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap
contracts at 31 March 2012 were HK$85,000,000 (2011: HK$90,000,000).

At 31 March 2012, the fixed interest rates vary from 0.07% to 2.70% (2011:
0.50 % to 5.00%), and the main floating rate is HIBOR. Loss recognised on
the change in fair value of the interest rate swap contracts during the year is
HK$3,909,000 (2011: gain of HK$1,242,000).

Foreign currency forward contracts
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward currency forward

contracts at 31 March 2012 were HK$37,440,000 (2011: HK$130,450,000).

Gain recognised on the change in fair value of the foreign currency forward
contracts during the year is HK$6,211,000 (2011: gain of HK$976,000).

The carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments are denominated in
Us$.

30. Cash and Cash Equivalents

156

29. PTAEER T A (8)

B :

(b)

M=z 4

MN-ZE——&=fA=+—BHRTENXESR
AR % = AR 5 R 85,000,000 (ZF
—— 4 : ##%90,000,0007T ) °

R-ZT——-F=A=+—H BT L EE0.07%
%£2.70% (ZZF——4%:0.50%%5.00% ) 24
2E) MEZZHFRRBERTAERFS R
FARFERM|EON AT ELZSHERNEE
AAE¥3,909,0007T (—ZZ——F: m ABYK
1,242,0007T) ©

INEEREE R
R-ZE——F=ZA=+—BRERTEIIERS
AR B EAR LT RER37,440,000T (=2
——% : #%130,450,0007T) °
RENINERBE DR FEZEERHU
% /B8 6,211,000 (ZF ——F: B

976,0007T) ©

PTHESRMT A ZREEIAETAE

30. ReRkREEHER

Group Company
rEH AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F —E-—F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT BET T BETIT
Cash at banks and on hand BAFERARFERE 77,505 158,332 32,126 103,899
Short-term bank deposits KHRITER - 7,234 - 500
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEHR 77,505 165,566 32,126

104,399




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

. . s —~
30. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 30. HRERBEFEER (5

Notes: P 3 «

(a) As at 31 March 2011, cash and cash equivalents comprised short-term bank (a) R-F——F=A=+—H ReERRLFE
deposits carrying interest at prevailing deposit rates which range from 0.01% 15 B BERBRITFEAERNE0.01%ZE1.10%:T 8
to 1.10% per annum. KR HRITIF K ©

(b) The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is denominated in the (b) BERBRSSEEBNKREED LTI &%t
following currencies: &:

Group Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-C-fF —F——%F —E-CfF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$ ok 54,908 145,616 32,126 104,399
us$ e 1,243 2,327 - =
RMB AR% 21,354 17,623 - -
77,505 165,566 32,126 104,399
31. Trade Payables 31. EZEMNRIE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Trade payables 2 5 EN IR 12,725 15,320
Bills payables FE & 28,848 30,175
41,573 45,495
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

. = =k o~
31. Trade Payables (Continued) 31. EFENRIE (@)
Notes: P & +
(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills payables presented based (a) AT RE S ENFBRELSRERYBRRE
on the invoice date and date of the bills at the date of statement of financial FHRERARRERAREIZRRSN -
position.

Aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: ESREMNRE R ET
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Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E-=fF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—@EA 1,540 8,938
1 month to 3 months —EAAZ=MA 458 1,248
More than 3 months but less than 1 year BB =fAAETE—F 10,649 4,365
Over 1 year HBim—F 78 769
12,725 15,320

Aging analysis of bills payables is as follows: ENERZERRDTOT :

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—1{EA 9,617 13,561
1 month to 3 months —EAZE=M@EA 19,231 16,614
28,848 30,175

(b) The carrying amount of trade payables is

denominated in the following

(b)

BHRNREZRRETIA T EEE:

currencies:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HK$ B 28,926 30,274
RMB AR¥ 12,647 15,221
41,573 45,495
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE=E—T——F=A=+—HIEFE

x >3

32. Accruals and Other Payables 32. fEETIEE REMENAFOE 53

Group Company % 2

A%E O =3

Lo

2012 2011 2012 2011 -

- -—T——% —B--—&F -—ZT——£& “ﬁg

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 e

BT BETR  BETR BETx B

L

i

Consideration payable (Note 38) FERHRAE (PHEE38) 27,164 = - = 2E

Receipt in advance B RIE 6,616 236 - = DH%

Construction cost payables AREEE DN 11,939 7,100 - = 5
Other payables Hofth JE T FRIE 39,078 35,896 4,198 2,794

84,797 43,232 4,198 2,794

Note: B 3 +
The carrying amount of accruals and other payables is denominated in the following FEEHIE B R HE M B SRIE M AREE T A R3S ¥ EHE
currencies:
Group Company
AEE KA
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-=fF —2——F —B-CF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$ ke 5,122 12,442 4,198 2,794
RMB AR 79,675 30,790 - -

84,797 43,232 4,198 2,794
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

33.

160

Bank Borrowings

33. R1TIEE

Mz

/

Group
TEH
2012 2011
—EB—-ZF —_F—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Bank loans, secured (Notes (a), BEBIBITER (M5E@)
(b) and (0)) (b)X2(c)) 44,226 68,754
Bank overdrafts, secured (Note (c)) BEMBITES (HFEQ) 9,600 =
53,826 68,754
Carrying amount repayable: EERMEE
Within 1 year —F R 53,826 24,529
More than 1 year but not —FRE-BETNEBME
more than 2 years - 24,528
More than 2 years but not MERE BB BRE
more than 5 years - 19,697
53,826 68,754
Less: Amount shown under current & : BN B EIE T AR EY
liabilities RIE (53,826) (24,529)
Amount shown under non-current JEMB A RIE T TR IR
liabilities - 44,225

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Bank loans contain a repayment on demand clause which enables the bank
to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire balance was classified
under current liabilities as at 31 March 2012. As at 31 March 2011, the
Group had obtained a waiver letter from the bank to confirm that it would
not demand early repayment of the bank loans and therefore, the balance to
the extend of HK$44,225,000 was classified under non-current liabilities.

At the date of statement of financial position, the amounts include only
variable-rate bank loans of HK$44,226,000 (2011: HK$68,754,000) at
contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain basis points per annum. The
effective interest rate for the year is 2.76% (2011: 2.20%). The borrowings
are repayable by instalments or in a lump sum payment upon maturity in
accordance with the terms set out in the respective banking facility letters.

i 5 -

(b)

RITERBERITAIDEITEZIRERERIK
F-AK R—ZT—=—F=A=+—0 2%
HERIARBDEB- RN _T——F=A=+—
H AKEE BRTESHRE R HERRITH
TEERREEERITENR Bt @TABE
44,225,0007T 2 #E AT AIER B B F -

REBRRERBE ZFREEBTZSR
TEEA%44,226,0000C (ZF——F : %
68,754,0007) ' IR B BRITRES SNEFE
AREEHFISHE - BRFFNEA2.76% (=
T——F:220%)  BIFGERD BHEELRE
B —2BXHNEEDBIETIREABRRT
EEEMSH-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e IR R AR B T

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

= g j;t»f-\t P
33. Bank Borrowings (Continued) 33. RITHEE (@) g
ez

o o

Notes: (Continued) Bt E - (8) % o

23

NG

(c) As the date of statement of financial position, the Group pledged the (© RUBHRARBE AEBMEEATIEE 1 %;
following assets to secure the Group's bank borrowings: RASERITEENER: S E

(15

(i) trade receivables to the extent of HK$29,596,000 (2011: (i) B #29,596,0007T (=T ——4F: % “’f”g
HK$33,705,000) (Note 27(b)) as first legal charges; #£33,705,0007T) (HiE27(b)) B E 5 HL1 g

BB RS —RERT I B

Eizl

wE
(ii) 51.00% equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Northeast Oil (i) REEMEARRIL AR (FE)ERE it
(China) Development Company Limited, as a register of all monies B AT 251.00%8 A fFR— g#
first share charge; HERCHERE ARSI o g
(iii) an investment property with a carrying value of HK$25,401,000 (iii) AR A /75 %25,401,00070 (ZF—— El
(2011: Nil); and FEmIZREME: R
As at 31 March 2011, the Group pledged prepaid land lease payments with RZE-——F=ZA=+—H FAEESZERRK
total carrying value of HK$1,996,000 to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. E B R 7E%1,996,0007T 2 B i EFIEIER
FEBRITEENER-
(d) The carrying amount of bank borrowings is denominated in HK$. (d) RITERMREET B EHE
34. Share Capital 34, B
Number of shares Share capital
BROEE [
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB--f —T——% CZB-ZF "%
Note 000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E TR F A& BETT BET T
Ordinary shares of GREES0.017TH
HK$0.01 each Tk
Authorised: ERE :
At beginning and RENREFL
end of the year 8,000,000 8,000,000 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At beginning of the year REA) 4,129,947 3,626,071 41,299 36,260
Exercise of share options ﬁ E‘Eﬁ%%% (@) - 69,700 - 697
Exercise of warrants R AR (b) 5 34,176 - 342
Placement of new shares E%%ﬁﬂx (© - 400,000 - 4,000
At end of the year RERK 4,129,952 4,129,947 41,299 41,299
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TERFEABRBBIREIRAKRS
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share WEERARFTNEZ LZAER—FEN
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally REE -FIAEEBERENARAINFIERE
with regard to the Company’s residual assets. EZHREER-
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34. Share Capital (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company allotted and issued
69,700,000 shares of HK$0.01 each for cash at the exercise price ranging
from HK$0.300 to HK$0.475 as a result of the exercise of share options.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no warrants have been exercised
(2011: 30,500,000 at HK$0.45), and 5,000 (2011: 3,676,000) shares of
bonus warrants granted in the previous year were exercised at the exercise
price at HK$0.48 (2011: HK$0.48) per warrant. These shares ranked pari
passu with other shares in issue in all aspect.

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place
shares comprising up to 400,000,000 existing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.55 per placing share, representing a discount of approximately
15.38% to the closing date on 18 October 2010. Accordingly, the Company
has increased its issued share capital by nominal value of HK$4,000,000 and

34. BBA (&)

B :

(a)

(b)

()

RBE-T——F=A=+—HLFE &Q
AIELT BRI AR 2N T %0.300T 2
#50.4757T 2 17 1% (B2 2 & 3 1769,700,000/% &
% T 1745 #60.01 7T Z BR 4D ©

Fﬁﬁ*fffifﬂ*Jr BIEEFE - I &
RAEHEE (=ZT ——4F :30,500,0001 * 2B
04573)33%7@ R 5 H 895,000 (=
i——% 3,676,000 ) AL AR EFE RS
HRIREEEH0.487T (ZF——4F : B10.48
TT) ZATE BT -2 ERORE T AELHE
BITRMDZA RS AL

R-ZZ—TF+ATNAB ARAEHEEBERE
AVEREHH BURERERNERERES
fR17 A0S TMEEE (R-_T—Z2F+ A
T NBEHRTETEN15.38%) BEKS
400,000,00088 3R B B 15 - B It - "R B E 5 Bl
16 H B BT IR AN IR BR T A 1 hnj# #54,000,0007T

raised capital of HK$220,000,000 respectively. K3 &4 £#%220,000,0007T °
35. Reserves {548
Company
b NG|
Share based
Share payment Warrant  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
DR 3 X AREE
ROBE WRERE 1] 2 EE “g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BETT BETT BB
At 1 April 2010 RZZE-TFMA—H 1,485,836 9,409 2,407 (385,188) 1,112,464
Loss for the year i WEE - = = (693,692) (693,692)
Recognition of equity-settled RABRALEE AR
share-based payments EZ 2 %8 - 63,884 = = 63,884
Exercise of share options ﬁ FRERE 34,379 (7,280) = = 27,099
Exercise of warrants Tl RRAERE 31,515 - (2,108) - 29,407
Lapse and forfeiture of share options ﬂ%ﬂﬂ%?&x&&aﬂﬁl - (1,946) = 1,946 =
Placement of new shares =S ) 216,000 = = = 216,000
Transaction costs attributable to ~ E7TRIDEE 2 X FHA
issue of shares (16,108) - - - (16,108)
Transactions costs attributable to ﬁ‘ﬁ RREZEGZ
issue of warrants R B - - (297) - (297)
Lapse of warrants MR R - = @) 2 =
At 31 March 2011 —T——%=fA=1+—H 1,751,622 64,067 - (1,076,932) 738,757
Loss for the year ¢ NEE - = = (130,337) (130,337)
Recognition of equity-settled BRARALEE AR R
share-based payments X2 A - 25,528 - - 25,528
Placement/exercise of warrants BE /1TERRER 4 2,000 = = 2,004
Lapse and forfeiture of BRI R A RIR I
share options - (44,698) - 44,698 -
At 31 March 2012 ——#=f=1+—H 1,751,626 46,897 - (1,162,571) 635,952
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=-ZT—=

36. Share-Based Payments 36.

The Company has a share option scheme for eligible directors
and employees of the Group and issued warrants to the
Honorary Chairman of the Company.

Under the share option scheme approved and adopted by the
shareholders on 21 October 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”),
the directors of the Company may, at their discretion, invite full-
time employees including executive directors to take up options
without vesting period to subscribe for shares in the Company
representing up to a maximum of 10% of the shares issue from
time to time (excluding shares issued on exercise of options
under the share option scheme).

Details of the Company’s share options granted under the share
option scheme and warrants outstanding and their movements
during the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2012

wr e IR R AR B T

F=A=1+—RHILFE
AR 17 2 S B9 TR IB

AARE—ERHETAEEAERESER
EEZ BB AR MAREEEE LR
BITRIAERS -

RER-_ZZ_F+A-+—HARRH
&&%%E’J%Hﬂféﬁiﬂ (MEkrEstEll) -

AAEETRBEAF2RES (258
ﬂ%i)?ﬁ%%ﬁT Em%%ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂi% LARRER
HERKZEMKEETRMNI0% (T
TR AR 3R TR B R 21T R
B0 ) B A R BARAD ©

RER AR R R ARATE B E (RIE
E%Hﬁ’fEEJril?%?)&mHﬁEﬁZ?l LI

BE-_Z-—_—_H=A=1+—HLEE

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 201 the year the year the year the year 2012
B
R -E-Cf
-F--fF R R R I =B
REAH T fik® mA-H FRRE ERTR FRAR FREW Zt-B
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR Tk TR TR TR Tk
Share options
BRE
Executive Directors 13 August 2004 13 August 2004 to HK$0.251 100 - - - - 100
12 August 2014
HES “EERENATZA “REMENATZAE  AEOSIT
“2-mENATZA
29 April 2009 29 April 2009 to HK$0.206 216 - - - - 216
28 April 2012
“ERAFMACTAR ZEEASMACTARE  AK0206T
“Z-CEMAZTAR
3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 58,000 - - (58,000) - -
2 May 2011
i S S “E-TERAZAE 12507
S i
28 March 2012 1July 2012 to HK$0.198 - 7,600 - - - 7,600
27 March 2013
ZF-Z5=B-fNB  ZF-ZftA-BE 75019870
ZZ-Z#=A-+tH

163

>
=)
=)
c
i
Pl
o
°
e}
a
N
2
o
|1
A

|

|
1

o
(0]
o
IS)
>
4
o
5
m
>
e
Q
<
T
<}
=
5
«Q
a
=
3
=
(0]
o
|
oy
&
ol
TS
af
=

FlESHS

=



=

40
i
i
H:j,
Hﬁ,
\‘\
M‘H
|
fidy
I
o
i
g
&
E]
C
C
<

%)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 25 EREA%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

36. Share-Based Payments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2012

36. AR ATHIE

I8 (45

BE-Z-——-F=ZA=Z+—-HLFE

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2011 the year the year the year the year 2012
s
R —B-Cf
-2--f S )i 1 # =R
RHAH figid i mE-H ERi ERE FAXR FRRR =t-8
‘000 '000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
i i i i i i
Independent 3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 10,800 - - (10,800) - -
Non-executive 2 May 2011
Directors
BUkangEs “2-TFRA=H “T-TFRfzHE 12507
“2——%1A-H
28 March 2012 1July 2012 to HK$0.198 - 11,400 - - - 11,400
27 March 2014
Z2-ZfZf-tN\B Z3-Zftf-RZ 71019870
“Z-ME=A-1+tA
Chief Executive 3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 5,000 - - (5,000) - -
2 May 2011
TR “2-TFRA=H “T-TFRf=HE 12507
“2——%1A-H
Senior management 4 May 2010 4 May 2010 to HK$1.248 5,000 - - (5,000) - -
3 May 2011
SREBAR “2-ZERAMA “E2-ZERfAMAZE 124870
—Z-——%RA=R
28 March 2012 1July 2012 to HK$0.198 - 6,800 - - - 6,800
27 March 2013
ZT-Z5=f-f\B ZF-Z5tA-HE 75%0.198TC
ZZ-Z#=A-+tH
Employees 4 May 2010 4 May 2010 to HK$1.248 130,000 - - (130,000) - -
3 May 2011
&8 “2-ZERAMA “E2-ZERfAMAZE 124870
—Z-——%RA=A
28 March 2012 28 March 2012 to HK$0.198 - 42,000 - - - 42,000
27 March 2013
ZE-CH=A-fNE ZE-Zf=At/\HE  EK0I%8T
ZZ-Z#=A-+tH
209,116 67,800 - (208,800) - 68,116
Wattants . TTTmmommmmmommmmm o mTmmm ommmmmommmen
AREE
Honorary Chairman 21 June 2010 21 June 2010 to HK$1.35 250,000 - - - - 250,000
20 June 2013
RBIR “2-RERA-t-B ZE-FERACT-BE OB
“Z-=£xA-1H
3 June 2011 3 June 2011 to HK$0.45 - 200,000 - - - 200,000
2 June 2014
“Z-——5xA=H —T-—-%5A=H% 0457
ZZ-mERAZR
250,000 200,000 - - - 450,000
459,116 267,800 - (208,800) - 518,116
Weighted average exercise price 1303 0.386 - 1.249 - 0.851
mETHIRE
Exercisable at the date of statement of financial position - - - - — m

RABRRE BB
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36. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 36. LA X AFHIFRIE (@) =2
33
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE_Z——F=A=1+—HLFE §§
Asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at ~ S
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March Wg
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2010 the year the year the year the year 2011 } %
3 oy =
B e s
3% S S R S =R Bl
RtiBH AT 1fE mA—H ERRI ERTTR EREH ERRI S @ B
000 000 000 000 000 000 ol
Th Th Tk Th Th Th ?
|
Share options
BRE
Directors 13 August 2004 13 August 2004 to HK$0.251 100 - - - - 100
12 August 2014
g% “EEMENATZA “SEMENATZAE  AEOSIT
“2-mENATZA
29 April 2009 29 April 2009 to HK$0.206 216 = = = = 216
28 April 2012
ZRRAFMAZTAR ZEEAFMAZTABE 02067
ZZ-EMAZTAR
3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 = 68,800 = = - 68,800
2 May 2011
“E-2%5RA=H “T-TFRAZHE 12507
“2——%£7f-A
Chief Executive 3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 = 5,000 = = = 5,000
2 May 2011
TR “2-ZERAZH “3-TF1AZH% B 1.2507
“2—%1A-H
Employees 13 May 2009 13 May 2009 to HK$0.300 15,000 - (15,000) - - -
12 May 2010
&8 “EENFRATEA “STAFRATZAE  AB0300T
“2-TERATZA
24 July 2009 24 July 2009 to HK$0.475 5,000 = (5,000) = = =
23 July 2010
ZRRAFLAZTHAE  ZERAFLACZTMBE BRI
ZE-TFHA-T=H
14 August 2009 14 August 2009 to HK$0.472 21,000 = (7,400) (13,600) - -
13 August 2010
“EENEN\RTHA “EEAFN\RTHEE B4
“2-ZE\A+=H
31 August 2009 31 August 2009 to HK$0.412 42,300 = (42,300) - - -
30 August 2010
ERAENAZT-H ZERAFNAZT-HE B4R
—2-2F)\A=1H
4 May 2010 4 May 2010 to HK$1.248 = 138,000 = = (3,000) 135,000
3 May 2011
“2-3F1AMA “Z-250AMAZ 12487
—Z——£Rf=H
83,616 211,800 (69,700) (13,600) (3,000) 209,116
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2 4 . NN * =
‘Ei 36. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 36. LA ZATHITRIR ()
e 4
B
e For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE-_Z——F=A=+—HILtFE
b
& lE‘<~ Asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
E I Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
g o Date of grant Exercisable period price 2010 the year the year the year the year 2011
ez R
iR~ iy 3%
58 3% s S R S =A
£s RitiBH AT &8 mA—H ERRI ENTE EREH ERRI S
§ § ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000
3 Th Th T T Th Th
Warrants
ARER
Honorary Chairman 21 June 2010 21 June 2010 to HK$1.35 - 250,000 - - - 250,000
20 June 2013
REIE ZE-ZERACT-H ZE-BERACT-HE BBIST
—2-=FxA-TH
83,616 461,800 (69,700) (13,600) (3,000) 459,116
Weighted average exercise price 0410 1304 0399 0472 1.248 1.303
METHIRE
Exercisable at the date of statement of financial position 459,116
REBRRRBRTTE
The weighted average closing share price at the date of exercise RoZB——FR RTEERESB&M
for the share options during 2011 was HK$0.8207. No share TR G5 YT B AP #50.8207 Lo A=
options were exercised during 2012. T——FRN BEEIEREETE
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FZA=+—RLFE

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous one
year.

The Binominal Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the warrants. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the warrants are based on the independent
professional valuer’s best estimate. The values of warrant vary
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised net aggregate share-based payment
expense of HK$25,528,000 (2011: HK$63,884,000) in relation
to the share options granted to directors and employees of the
Group and warrants issued to the Honorary Chairman of the
Company.

36. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 36. BAMRD SZATHYFRIE (8)
The fair values of warrants and options granted during the year RERRE 2 REEE RBREL A TE
were calculated using the Binominal model. The inputs into the DEA—EAEEEERGFE - ZEA 2
models were as follows: AENT :
3 June 28 March 28 March 28 March
2011 2012 2012 2012
Grant date —B——F —B-——F —B-——F —E--F
R AH AA=R =A=Z+NR =A=+NR =RA=tNRH
Grantee Honorary Independent Senior Employees
Chairman Non-executive management
Directors
ERA KEXR By SREHAE 3=
FRTES
Share price at grant date HK$0.365 HK$0.196 HK$0.196 HK$0.196
REEBE 2 RE #0365  BE0.196m  #HK0.1967T  B0.1967T
Exercise price HK$0.450 HK$0.198 HK$0.198 HK$0.198
1T6efE w0450 B#0.198T #0198 B0.1987T
Expected volatility 60% 63% 63% 63%
FEHKIE 60% 63% 63% 63%
Risk-free rate 0.729% 0.212% 0.150% 0.150%
p e 0.729% 0.212% 0.150% 0.150%
Expected dividend yield Nil Nil Nil Nil
FERBE & & & &

HEREDRBEARARRERBE —F2
JEE 2% R B E

R ERAE ARG REEE 2
RVFE-FERREIZHRFEMRAZ
'''''' %{&ﬁ:“)}&ﬁiiﬁr%ﬁéﬁﬁﬂTZFFiE
FHEH - REEEZEETARTETE
BREZEEMmMAEHTRZGE

AEERREBURTFTALEEERES
MERERETTARALETFE LR
BEFOARMINOAZ FES A
7 #25,528,000c (ZFE——F: B
63,884,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—ZT——F=A=+—HIFE
37. Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax

depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

37.

EERIBEE

RE MR INERTIIEST & RSB H W
T

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
At beginning of the year R F ) 473 470

Charged to income statement AU R MBR (FHEE11)

(Note 11) 1 3
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) U8 —RIMI B2 A (FIzE38) 3,418 =
At end of the year REL 3,892 473

At the date of statement of financial position, the Group has
deductible temporary differences, including assets impairment
and written off, and unused tax losses of HK$229,327,000
(2011: HK$$191,075,000) and HK$342,584,000 (2011:
HK$334,198,000) respectively. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The deferred tax liabilities is expected to be recovered after more
than 12 months.

The unrecognised tax losses amounting to HK$310,517,000
(2011: HK$289,810,000) can be carried forward indefinitely
and the remaining HK$32,067,000 (2011: HK$44,388,000) will
expire before 2017 (2011: 2016).
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REBMRAEBE AEBNAT N E
KER(BREEERBELRME) RHR
B AR IAEE S 5 /B %229,327,000
7T (ZT——F:%%191,075,0007T) &
75 342,584,000 (=& — —F : B
334,198,0007T) © B3 74 1 3R 82 B) A AT 4084
B 2 R LUK 8K FE AR B & A 80 AT AR T
N BAUTEREBZEINRERNER
TR IR TR I B EE o B AR I m F 2R
BEETER I T IEE B ERIEL
MEEE-

RIETIR A BRANEE T ZEA%RK
[E] o

R SR B TE B 18 5 16310,517,0007T (=
T —— £ : 5 #289,810,0007T ) A ££ R &
ih 45 8% - 82 T 2 7 #32,067,0000T (= F
——4F : #5#544,388,0007T ) A —E—+
E(ZE——F: T E)pBH-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

38. Acquisition

On 14 March 2012, the Group acquired 100% equity interests
in Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical Limited /&3 T4
KA AMBEIARAR (“Galali”) for a cash consideration of
RMB28,000,000 (approximately to HK$34,496,000). The principal
activities of Galali are the trading of fuel oil and chemical
products in the PRC. Details of the acquisition are as follows:

38. WiE

R-ZE——F=A+WMA AEBEKE
AN TR FEF AR TERA R ([18 3
M) 100%H AR RERBEAAR
#:28,000,0007T ( 4975 #34,496,0007T) °
B 2 EEZEB AN T B ERE R
ITERES WEFEZFBEET:

HK$'000
BET T
Cash paid BB 7,332
Consideration payable (Note 32) FERRE (FH3E32) 27,164
Consideration satisfied in cash IR & EH 2 RE 34,496
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets FriiE 2 Al BBl EERFREAEZ
acquired and liabilities assumed: EER R
Other intangible assets Hiv | & = 15,221
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JB{ 218 ~ & & M E i [fE Uz B 212
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBELEFBEIEER 6,049
Tax payables FET IR (25)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) REFEAE (FE37) (3,418)
Total identifiable net assets AR B EFEARE 18,039
Goodwill (Note 20) & (f4320) 16,457
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WESFTEE &£ 2 B & 5 58 -
Cash consideration paid ENEERE (7,332)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEEsTReRREEFEHER 6,049
(1,283)

Goodwill is attributable to the acquired workforces, the
profitability and the synergies expected to arise from the
acquired business generated from trading of fuel oil and
chemical products in Mainland China.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 29 February
2012, the former owner of Galali is required to reimburse
the Group the shortfall if Galali is unable to achieve a profit
before income tax expenses of RMB6,000,000 (approximately
HK$7,392,000) for each of the years ending 31 March 2013,
2014 and 2015. The potential undiscounted amount of all future
reimbursements that the Group could receive from the former
owner of Galali under this arrangement ranges from nil to
RMB 18,000,000 (approximately HK$22,176,000).

R TS 57 R X TR HA R AR B P 3 44 3B 0
CETEREZELEZMBBEER 2 RIRE
BE) S BNGEN KR o

BIEBBHA—T——F=-_A=+NAZ
BEEWE WREARERBEE=T—=
F - —ENER_ETE—RAF=A=+—
BIEFESFRSRATER A AR A

R #6,000,0007T (#7%%7,392,0007T)
AR R 2 s A AZBRASBEMZD
B RIE - IR IR FZ & HE - AN & [ AT AR HE A
Z AR AMELZ BB R R(E N RIE 28
EARTRESEN FZE ARK18,000,000
7T (497%22,176,0007T ) °
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38. Acquisition (Continued) 38. UEE ()

R

%)

The Board of Directors considered that Galali is probable to
achieve a profit before income tax expenses of approximately
RMB6,000,000 for each of the years and accordingly, no
reimbursement receivable from the former owner of Galali was

EEERA BEANAUERZEFES
FRBRISHRAIIEFNOARE
6,000,000t At R=ZT—=F=A
THAER-—E——F=ZA=1+—BHE

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 55 gEIRA%

recognised on 14 March 2012 and 31 March 2012. HREBIBRKF Z AT B A 2 B R
15 o
39. Capital Commitments 39. BEARNAIE
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Contracted but not provided for BERMEREE:
— property, plant and equipment —ME BWEKIZE
(Note 24(a)) (Fi3F24(@a)) 39,378 38,825
— construction in progress —fERIR - 2,233
39,378 41,058
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETL:
— acquisition of 52% participating — R EARFIEBS2%
interest of Project Modamuii S Mg - 172,158
— acquisition of a company engaged ~ — Y — R = ARG
in oil technology consultancy B FA AR 7 B A A
service - 41,380
- 213,538

The Company did not have any capital commitments as at 31

March 2012 (2011: Nil).

170

RZBE-—ZF=A=+—RH RRAAWE

FHEEMERAE (ZT——F %) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e R R AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HE—-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

40. Operating Leases

The Group and the Company as lessee

At the date of statement of financial position, the Group and

40. KEHE
AEERAATELSEAA

R E R %@ AEBERARBRE

the Company had future minimum lease payments under non- DRI EE A & W AT B R R EREE &
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: LU
Group Company
rEH A
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —E——fF —E-—C-fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
Within one year —FRQ 7,979 7,825 4,521 4,521
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ REEAF
(BREEEMF) 2,350 8,723 753 5.274
Over five years A hF 21,697 21,031 - -
32,026

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
and the Company for certain of its office properties. Leases are
negotiated in a range from 1 year to 50 years. No arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group as lessor
Properties and machinery rental income earned during the year

was HK$4,765,000 (2011: HK$4,399,000).

At the date of statement of financial position, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:

37,579 5,274 9,795

REMENFIEARBRARRRESE T
MAZEYERNNES HERNF—F
ERTFHEER - MERBHESMNRE
R R 2Bk -

AEEFEREHEA
FAMMBMAYER KBS WAR
B #4,765,000L (—ZFE——F:B%

4,399,0007T) ©

RGN E R 8 AEE D T5IER
ARG HEESEBLETL

2012 2011

=F-=F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Within one year —FR 1,909 851
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ W& & F 2,919 2,939
Over five years AR T - 358
4,828 4,148
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

Ci 41. Related Party Transactions — Compensation  41. BEBAL RS -FTEETEA

By of Key Management Personnel 3R A

&

o |

ek All members of key management personnel are the directors and FEXZEBABRARANESERER

Zﬂw other members of key management of the Company. Details of EEERNEMKE - HEHMHFES I

£ their remuneration are disclosed in Notes 12 and 13 respectively. BT 2 R B a1 380 5R -

35 2012 2011

3 —2-=F —F——F

22 HK$'000 HK$'000

g= BT T BH T T
Short-term employee benefits EHIE R F 11,307 13,185
Post-employment benefits BEE 12 12 7 72 63
Share-based payments VAR 9 2 1 B 3018 23,750 40,442

35,129 53,690

The remuneration of the directors and key executives is EERFETBRAENHM THBEFME
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the BeZREARRERTHBERET -

performance of individuals and market trends.

42. Events after the Date of Statement Financial 42. Bf#&ifRik BHIRE1E

Position

Saved as disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated financial BiRE IS MK A B H IR EE N K

statements, the Group had the following significant events after SERMBMRARBAREGEATEKRSE

the date of statement of financial position, details of which are B BRAEFBET:

as follows:

(@ On 25 April 2012, the Group entered into a sale and (@ MZZE—-—FWOA=-+HAB A%
purchase agreement with an independent third party to EHE—EBYE=HIL—HEE
dispose of a building for a consideration of HK$7,200,000. ek DUE R BB HE7,200,0007T H &

—EEF-

(b)  On 24 May 2012, the Company granted 200,000,000 (b) RZZE—Z-FRAZ+TWMH AQH
share options to the Honorary Chairman of the Company T AR 72 5B E 200,000,000
at the exercise price of HK$0.198 per share. MHEEIRIE - TR B RERE0.198

ﬁo

(¢ On 6 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and (0 MRZE—ZFARB FEEHE—
purchase agreement with an independent third party to BEALE=FEIN—HEERBHZEIA
dispose of its entire 100% equity interests in Huge Power &R BB % 13,800,000 & H R
Group Limited (“Huge Power”) and together with its Huge Power Group Limited ([Huge
wholly-owned subsidiary, Wing Shing Chemical Company Power |) & B 2 &Kt & 2 7] - kK
Limited (“Wing Shing Chemical”) for a consideration of {ETERAR ([KE(ETI]) 225
HK$13,800,000. 100% A 4 ©
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries 43. B A TG
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 March 2012 RZBE—ZFRZFE-——F=ZA=+—
and 2011 are set out as follows: H ARAKMEARFEHIIOT :
Place/
country of Nominal value of Proportion of
incorporation issued share nominal value of
or registration/  capital/registered issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR IHEM ERTREEMH AQRFBERITRE/
WEARER Lewd BR RAEE HEMRAEENE 2L TEXH
2012 2011
—E--F —2——F
Subsidiaries directly held by
the Company:
ARREREENMBAR:
China Oil Resources BVI 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Group Limited US$1 each
FAEREBARAA EBRAHS 100/ B R EE REZR
(0l 4%
Wing Shing Group Limited BVI 52,000 shares of US$1 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
each
KKEBARRE RBRUHE 52,000k B E A REZR
1ETHRR
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company:
AAREESANHEAR:
America Archi Colors Group BVI 500,000 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holdings
Limited US$1 each and contract service
in the PRC
EEGHEER (£E) RERRES 500,0000% &R E E R B EREER K
BRRAE B0k <0 B HRY
Beijing Arch Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 51.00% 51.00% Provision of painting
Company Limited' service, sale and
distribution of
painting products
and contract service
in the PRC
IRGEREEMEERAR  FE AR #3,000,0007T R B R 2 R AR -
HERDHEHER
A RIRTE
China Oil Resources Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Company Limited
FRERERA A BB REREE REZBR
BEITRRR
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incorporation
or registration/

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

43. B A BFHE (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIREM BRITREZR AQRFMBERITRE,
il NGRS Kew® Bx REAEE EfBRAEENES L TEEH
2012 2011
—E--F —2——F
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
ANAEBERENHELR: (8)
Creative Sense Industrial Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Limited HK$1 each
BIEEEXERAR BB 10,000/ B R EE REER
BE1ITERR
WY B Sm B TR PRC RMB12,500,000 100.00% 100.00%  Oil exploitation and
BRARR exploration service
in the PRC
I\ B 30 B PR 7S FE AE#12,500,0007T PR B S A R BR K
BRARR R RT
Easyrich Group Holdings Hong Kong 100 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holdings
Limited HK$1 each
EIREEZERAER A BB 100l SR EE REZR
BB R
Grand Fund International Hong Kong 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Limited HK$1 each
FEEBR AR DA BE 100k B REE REZR
BEITRRR
Goal Green Limited BVI 1,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
US$1 each
BRERAR RBELES 1,000/ Z R EE REER
1ETHK
Grand Rich Human Resources Hong Kong 500,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Limited HK$1 each
REANEBRAERRE £ 500,000/ & B E E REZR
BEITRRR
Go Wealthy Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
MEREBRAF 9 REREE REZR

BT R D
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0 T . == > > 7
43. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 43. BN RS (@) 22
Place/ g 2

country of Nominal value of Proportion of %ﬁ

incorporation issued share nominal value of S

or registration/  capital/registered issued share capital/registered L # =

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities [ g
HMATRER, BROREHH ARARBERTRE,/ i &

HE 2% sEny /A% BAEE ERRAEENE L TEEH B

2012 2011 pif

—g--f -T——f 2

IfF i

Subsidiaries indirectly held by Ef

the Company: (Continued)
RAREEEENHBAR: (&)

Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
US$1 each
BRERRE RERAHS 100/ & IR B REZR
B0k <0
Hai Yue Chemicals Company Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Limited HK$1 each
BELIRHERAT e 1,000,000% & R E{E REEK
BB R
Honour Bright Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Limited
KEREBERAA EBRIHE 1R EREE REEK
1ETTE R
Jin Long Group Limited BVI 100 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holdings
US$1 each
RESEERAR ERRAHE 100/ B R EE REZR
1ETHK
Merry Boom Investment Hong Kong 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Limited HK$1 each
RERERRRE £ 100l B R EE REZR
BEITRRR
Northeast Oil (China) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
Development Company Limited HK$1 each
RicAm (hE)ER e 10,0000 B MR E (A REZR
BRAR BEITHRR
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered
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43. B QRS (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMRIREM BRITREZM APRFMBERITRE,
il NGRS L BxR REAEE EMBRAEENES L TEER
2012 2011
—E-—F ===t
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
ANAEBERENHELR: ()
PetroAsian Energy Exploration Hong Kong 100 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holdings
Development Limited HK$1 each
H R R AR R & N0 100 B R EE REER
BRAR B THR R
PetroAsian Energy Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
HK$1 each
REARERA A £ 10,0000 & ik E (& REEK
BE1ITE RN
PetroAsian Energy (Australia) BVI 1,000 shares of - 75.50% Investment holdings
Limited* US$1 each
R AIR ORN) AR DA EBRIHE 1,0008 R EE REZR
1ETHRH
PetroAsian Energy USA 75,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
(North America) US$1 each
Corporation
PetroAsian Energy EE 75,0000 &R EE REER
(North America) 1E TR A
Corporation
PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) BVI 1,000 shares of 92.00% 92.00% Exploitation and sale of
Limited US$1 each crude oil in Tunisia
FanaiR (REAR) EBRIHE 1,000/ B R EE PR BT 38 Bk K
ARAR 1ETHI IR A $HE R
PetroAsian Energy Group BVI 1,000 shares of 59.00% 59.00% Investment holdings
Limited US$1 each
RoEREEARAA KBRZHS 1,000/% & i {2 REZR

[E:liaii
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 43. B A BFFIE (@) gg
Place/ E =
country of Nominal value of Proportion of 8¢
incorporation issued share nominal value of S
or registration/  capital/registered issued share capital/registered |1 g

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities % g
EMRLREM ERTRAER ARARBERTRE/ i &
HEAREE mEns% HX BAEE HRAEENE A TEEH B
2012 2011 i
—E-=f £ e
Off B
Subsidiaries indirectly held by Ef
the Company: (Continued)
ANAEBERENHELR: ()
Wing Shing Chemical Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Sale of chemical
HK$1 each products and
investment holdings
kAL T £ 3,000,000/% & IR E & HELIEMR
BEITRRR REREER
Wing Shing Chemical BVI 1 share of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holdings
International Limited us$1
Wing Shing Chemical RERRES REREE REER
International Limited (B0l 30
Wing Shing Chemical Macao Macau MOP500,000 100.00% 100.00% Sale of paints and
Commercial Offshore blended solvents in
Company Limited Macau
KBt TIRPIRE 7 5 IR R JRF9%500,0007T RRFIHE R K
BRAR REBE
Wing Shing Colours Limited Hong Kong 100,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Inactive
HK$1 each
XREMBRAA N 100,000 & A [ & BET
BE1ITE RN
L REIBAER PRC RMB7,516,360 49.98% 49.98% Investment holdings
BRAER3
IR B IEA R H AR #7,516,3607T REZR
BRARR3
BERAN EﬁitE/EE ks PRC US$8,000,000 95.00% 95.00%  Exploitation and sale of
BREMA crude oil in the PRC
Eﬁﬁwﬂﬁﬁiiﬁiﬂaﬁﬁﬁf FE 8,000,000% 7T P BB R R
BEREERA HE R



=

B

R%

40
=
i
H:j,
Hﬁ,
I
|
H‘H
|
fidy
I
o
5
o~
i
g
&
=
=3
=
C
<

e
e
K
T
el
3
£
5
"
(=]
S
]
T
>
=
[
{=4
&
]
%
<
S
©
o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

43. B A BFHE (&)

Place/
country of Nominal value of Proportion of
incorporation issued share nominal value of
or registration/  capital/registered issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIREM BRITREZR AQRFMBERITRE,
il NGRS Kew® Bx REAEE EfBRAEENES L TEER
2012 2011
—E--F —2——F
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
ANAEBERENHELR: (8)
EIMRMEZERRAEP PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% 70.00%  Coal trading
EIMRMESERAES i AR #5,000,0007C BRE
Galali® PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% - Trading of fuel oil and
chemical
REER FE AR #5,000,0007T BaRktIERES
Winner Tread Enterprises BVI 100 shares of 56.00% - Investment holdings
Limited US$1 each
THICERRAF HERREE 100 B R EE REZR
1ETHRR
Huge Power BVI 100 shares of 100.00% - Investment holdings
US$1 each
Huge Power RERLEHS 1008 & AR E B REER
1= TR
PetroAsian Energy Cayman Islands 10,000 shares of 100.00% - Investment holdings
International Limited US$0.01 each
PetroAsian Energy HEMS 10,000/ &R EE REER
International Limited 0.01= T HIBR 1D
Jin Xin Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% = Investment holdings
HK$1 each
REREERAA BE 10,000/ B R EE REZR
BEITRRR

! Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations.

2 Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations.

3 The Group holds 98.00% equity interests in this subsidiary through a
51.00% owned subsidiary, Easyrich Group Holdings Limited. Therefore, the
Group has control over this entity and it is considered as a subsidiary of the

Company.

4 This subsidiary has been struck off during the year.

B Limited company established in the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations.
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RFMBEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENF —FTNF T F —T——F ZB--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
AETT  B¥Tr BB TT  B¥Tr BE¥TR
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REVENUE Y s 351,530 399,409 307,982 282,398 339,967
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE EANCIE 2SN "
TO OWNERS OF FE {5 &5 18 g
THE COMPANY (228,725) (71,639)  (262,280)  (305,507)  (176,864) o
———— ———— ———— ———— — DR
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A FUBEE
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENF —FENF _—FT-FTF T —®B-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
AETT  B¥Tr BB TT  B¥Tr BE¥TR

E—_FFER

Annual Report 2011-12 =ZZ——2%

TOTAL ASSETS BMEE 682,315 722,284 1,065,923 1,020,766 888,124
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (260,480) (456,476) (257,401) (175,781) (190,140)
TOTAL EQUITY R 4AEE 421,835 465,808 808,522 844,985 697,984
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PHREFRERER QA
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
B NFERD BB BN E6RE3601E

Tel E3E: (852) 2698 6093 Fax {£H: (852) 3580 7793

Website #94E: www.petroasian.com
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